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We give people the freedom
1o live in sustainable, vibrant
neighbourhoods. Places that bring
people together in communities
where everyone can belong.
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Ata glance

VIBRANT COMMUNITIES

WHERE EV

-RYONE

CAN BELONG

What we do

Get Living 15 a leading provider of high quality homes for rent,
committed to creating neighbourhoods where people can thrive,
come together and know they beiong. We are for people who
valug nLL JUST & great home in a distinct've neighbourhood, but also
the opportunity to connect with others In a welcorming community

We create exceptional neighbourhoods and we builld them at
scale. From design to delivery we are inspired by bringing people
together n places where they have the space to breathe. We are
a proneering business with a goal to deliver a resident proposit:on
with the best in choice, service and anvironment, thereby delivering
strong returns for our shareholders.

Get Living was founded in 2013 with the UK's first large-scale
buld-to-rent neighbourhood at East Village, Stratfora Today,
we have almast 4,000 homaeas acrass three neighbourhoods in
Lordon and Manchester, with a planned pipeline that wiil see
the business grow to over 10,000 Fomes across the UK.

Get Living PLC
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Our vision

At Get Living, it's our
vision to offer people

a better way to live and
rent in sustainable,
vibrant communities
that build belonging,
nurture togetherness,
and create opportunity.



OUR NEIGHBOURHOODS

NEW MAKER ecst village
YARDS london ko

New Maker Yards offers Qur first and flagship
canat-side living just minutes neighbourhood, East
from Manchester and Salford's Village, is a vibrant 67-acre
vibrant centres, community on the doorstep of

Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park.
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ELEPHANT ELEPHANT AND CASTLE NEWTON
CENTRAL TOWN CENTRE PLACE

In London's zone 1, Elephant The new town centre will deliver Get Living's third
Central sits at the heart of the close to 500 new homes and the London neighbourhood will
wider Elephant and Castle rejuvenation of what is already be a transformational scheme
regeneration area and is one of London’s most dynamic for this well-connected
perfectly placed for city living. and vibrant areas. South London hub.
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Portiolio overview

BRILLIANT U
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NEIGHBOURK

east village
london e20

Elephant and
Casitle, London
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Location

Salford,
Manchester

S21
11637 sq ft

Launched in

2019

» Read more on pages 24 and 25

NEW MAKER

YARDS

.WITH MORE TO COME

NEWTON Location
PLACE Lewisham,
London
Homes

649

» Read more on page 26

Location
Elephant
and Casile,
London

%S5

» Read more on page 27

ELEPHANT AND CASTLE
TOWN CENTRE
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Commercial space

87,328 sqi1

Launching in

2023

Commercial space

181,03/ sqit

Launching in

2026
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Highlights

CONTINU
GROWT

=D,
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Homes

Revenue (Em)

5.99.2m
A40.3%

99.2

3,918
s 26.2%

3,918

3,105
70.7

2021 | 2022 | 2021 2022 |

Financial and operational

» In June 2022, 2898 further homes were launched at
New Maker Yards, iIncreasing our total homes to 827
ir Middlewood i_ocks, Saiford

» Portlands Place opened its doors r August 2022,
adding 524 new homes to the heart of East Village

s Strong rental demand and the gunch of new homes
In Saiford and East Village drove an increase In gross
revenue to £99.2m, up 40 3%

s A strong performance across the business saw
net profit increase 134.6% to £136. 2m

* Underpinning the financial results are
operatronal efficlencies and a cortinued focus
on cost management

* The balance sheet Is robust with £1.51bn
(2021 £1.330br) of net assets, 47 2% (2021 46 2%)
aggregate Loan to Value and weighted average
maturity of debt 15 6.5 years (2021 7.8 years)

+ The Group has dentified pipeline opportunities in
Leeds, Maidenhead, Birrmingharr and Leatherhead
giving access to a poo! of potertial irvestments
within the private rented sector

« Get Living was shorthsted for the BtR Specialist
Award at the EG Awards in November 2022

Net profit (Em)

Portfolio value (£bn)

$136.3m $%.2.73bn
4134.6%  413.8%

f
136.3 2.73

2.40

|
| s81

' 2021 2022

2021 2022

Environmental and social

* Get Living was awarded the top 5-star GRES8 rating
for the third year running for the operational portfoiio
In recogmiton of our sustainabiity performance

« We are working towards compliance with the
recommendations of the UN's Task Force for
Iimate-related Financial Disciosures (TCFD) and
in 2022 carried out a TCFD Gap Analysis

e |n June 2022 three Get Living neighbourhoods
featured in the HocrmeViews' Top 10 "best places to ive”
N the UK, as voted by our residents

Inspining E£ast Village and Inspiring Elephant
Cormmunity Funds both launched in 2022,
supporting local projects and chamtalle causes

+ Get Living Gives Back launched in 2022 with
colleagues participating in group chantable
inttiatives in the communities In which we operate

+ Throughout 2022 we partrered with our suppiy chain
to innovate the Iifecyc'e of domestic furniture and
kickstart a circular economy business model

Get Living PLC

06



TTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

CLO’s statement

BUILDING BELONGING:
CREATING VIBRANT AND
CONNECTED URBAN
NEIGHBOURHOODS FIT
FOR THE FUTURE

Get Living PLC




t1s a mark of the progress and potential of Get Living

that we are posting a positive set of results in this

Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 20272

It 15 a pomnt that merits emphasis because this has baen
a year characterised across the UK by a mild recovery in the
winter and spring, a better summer followed by a disruptive
autumn. Get Living showed regsiliance in the fare of rapidiy
changing gec-political, domestic governmental, econamic and
consumer confidence circumstances. This reflects the strength
of our portfolo of totermic destination assets, the platform
we have bullt, the resident proposition we offer, the fireless
work of our committed team and the professionalism of our
investors whose support 1s resolute.

It 15 why we have referred to our Report as Buillding Belonging
It s based on the unrivalled expertise that Get Living has to
create thriving nesghbourhoaods that bring pecple together

In a way that kindles relationships, attachments and familianty.
This provides us with a powerful platform for the future.

The year 2022 saw us launch further significant new

housing provision at East Village and at New Maker Yards,
increasing the operational portfolio by 26%. taking us to just
under 4,000 homes At Lewisham, we will soon be launching
549 new homes and the construction of 485 homes is
urderway at Elephant and Castle Town Centre. Further
oipeline developmeants are planned across the UK which
sigmificantly add to our portfolio,

The strategic proposition to invastors of estabiishing an
exemplary BtR portfolio and platform, providing high quality
homes In vigrant neighbourhoods which 15 supported by
comrensurate service, 1s increasirgly achieving the level of
scale that remunrerates shareholgers with out-performing total
returrs and net profit. Further scale from here becomes more
rewarding .n terms of accret.or.

66

Arecord year
positions us well
for further progress
as we enler an
exciting period

of opportunity.”

The legacy of the pandemic has in no small way reminded us
of the true value of connections and community, especially in
big cities, where laneliness ard the pursult of wellbeing and
purpose can be chailengirg, At a time when the UK 1s facing
probems of workforce capacity, business investment and
productivity, Get Living has a vital role to play 1 being part of
the solution, providing inspiring homes and neighbourheoods
which support high quality jobs and prospects in the local arca

It's not just where we ive, but how we ive We are developirg
places for discovery, where togetherness, choice and
exploration are central tenets of the Get Living proposttion

It creates an opportunity for Get Living to be the defining
creator of homes and neighbourhoods where people know
they belong.

Financial Performance

Total revenues for the year to December 2022 reached
£99.2m, up 40.3% on the previous year. Gross profit was
£63.2m, up 37.7% for the same pgriod, This transiaten infa

a gross margin of 63 7% The year saw a significant revaluation
uplift of the portfoho of £136 Om, which fed through o create
an overall net profit of £136.3m.

These resuits are manifestatons of a number of themes
across the year Demand for homes was high, but interestingly
it was from a broader dermographic and from people who
were seeking more than Just a home, endorsing our resident
proposition about place. belorging and ambient weil-beirg
Cccupancy levels typically stabiiised at over 98% and rent
collect:on averaged at 97% That fed through into rental
growth ahead of expectations Operatirg costs were a big
focus and, notwithstanding the inflationary influences bearing
down on all areas, cost per unit - the metric by which we
manage diract costs - saw reductions. Central costs were
held firm, deployed across a growing portfolio.

Annual Report 2022
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CLEO’s statement continued

Financial Performance continued

Capitat expenditure Included two mobilisations at Portiands
Place in East Village ard the final phase of New Maker Yards
alongside identifieq asset management opportunities.

The debt arrangements across the Group closed 2022 with a
welghted average matunty of 6.5 years and the average cost
of debt was 3.2%. We are confident :n our ability to refinance
the debt facilities maturing in 2023 and 2024 which fund our
Portiands P ace and New Maker Yards assets. At a time of
rapidly rsing swap rates, the value of the Company's hedging
instruments increased.

Finally, the December revaluation came at a trme when all

real estate assets were cormming under pressure from macro
headwinds The BtR sector appears to have been among the
most resilient and the Get Living portfolio one of the most
resilient within that sector, vaildating once agam the business
rmodel focused on major urban neighbourhoods in and around
Lendon and the principal UK cities

Market outlook

The UK's structural shortage of housing 1s well documented
The Government's recent abandonment of 1ts 300000 p a
target and 'ts delays to an updated overal! planning strategy.
coupled with wider headwinds of bulld cost inflation and
higher costs of debt, will lead to a significant under delivery
of rew homes for the foreseeabie short-term. Actiaty within
the for-sale housing market has slowed on the back of higher
mortgage costs, the end of Help to Buy and receding prices.
The delvery of new affordabfe housing stock by the Housing
Association sector is alsg seeng 2 marked slowdown. Alongside
that, the buy-to-iet iInvestor sector 1s experiencing an exodus
in the face of ircreasingly onercus regutation and taxatior

The BtR sector has an importart role to play ir providing

the housing that an increasirgly wige demographic is

seeking. As the UK looks to create the conditions for
companies te grow and invest, N turn creating the conditions for
the recruitment and retention of talent 'r well paid, productive
and purposeful occupations, we will be heavily rehant or the
younger generations to drive our future national prosperity
The mobility of this group 1s therefore both necessary and
desrrable, and the need for a great horme in the urban centres
where the jobs are located s essertial

The housng sector therefore s i transition, and 1IN 1t lles
opportunity. As the ongmal gioneer, Get Living 1s wail placed
to expand its modei and Its operations to a much higher level
on the back of a decade of experience and with the long-term
capital that sits behind it Restdent preferences are changing,
new formats are emerging and a desire for genuine gualty of
experierce 1S sought after, all of which speaks to the unigue
Get Living proposition Data from Trust for London shows
that. in + oncon alone, the populatiore s uxpected to rise to 9 4
million 1N the rext eight years, and 300,000 additional rental
properties wili be reguired according to JLL's Londor BtR
Report Our mission 1S to respond with the solutior to

the probiem, with disciplined. well researched, imnovative
acguisitions ard new deveiopments,

2023 and 2024

Tre next twelve months will see Portlands Place and the

finai phase of New Maker Yards reach fuil stabiisation with
occupancy of at least 95%. Combined with the stabilised
assets In the rest of East Village, New Maker Yards and
Elephant Central, our task 1s to consistently improve the value
proposition for residents as we seek to attract new customers
and retain existing ones. Lewisham will see the launch of 649

Get Living PLC
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new homes at the end of 2023, including 119 new co-hiving
studios and 106 affordable bomes on a London Living Rent
tenure. This will be above a new street of retall and food and
beverage provision, together with a gym and six-screen
cinema. This is another exciting moment when the Get Living
model has 1ts chance to be validated and further innovated

i U backyground, we are also retreshing our technology suite
and centraised customer hub, so that the business s fit for
the significant increase n the number of operational homes
This will improve cperational efficiency, customer experience,
data anmalytics and risk management,

Looking further ahead, we have plans to expand our portfolic
by a further 6 500 homes across the UK. This includes one of
London’'s most significant regeneration schemes at Elephant
and Castle Town Centre, the first phase of which 1s due to
launch in 2026,

In terms of new pipeline, we anticipate that the opportunities
we continually screen will convert into rewarding acquisitions
towards the second half of 2023

ESG as a force for good

Qur ambitious ESG agenda 1s progressively becoming
embedded :nto every area of our culture and operations
for the benefit of our residents, our people, and Jultimately
for our investors in terms of sharehoder value.

For the third year ir a row, we were awarded a GRESB 5 Star
rating for our standing portfolio against a benchmark which
rises each year

we are implementing the findings of the TCFD gap analysis,
now giving rise o training on chimate awareness, improved
record keeping and updated poicies for HR, development,
strategy and risk management New investment in metering
haraware and consent workflows 1s mproving the guality,
reliatnlity end efficiency of utlity consumption data collections
that underpin multiple energy and carbon disclasures.

We are aiso establishing the finarcial and cperational impact
of aligning existing neighbourhoods with the CRREM net zero
pathway through raetrofit works.

Finally

No annual review of the year would be complete without

a sincere expression of gratitude to the many people who
contribute to Get Living's succass. To our residents, who
entrust us to provide them with an opportunity te belong in our
neighbourhoods, thark you for making them the communities
that they are lo those within Get Living, bringing their passion,
energy and professionalism to work every day, my profound
appreciation for all your commitment and mutual support of
each cther i every collaboration. To our investors who suppaort
us with therr capital, their wise counsel and their ambition, It s a
privilege to serve you and the stakeholders you in turn ook after

At the time of writing, Australian superannuation fund Aware
Super has recently exchanged with QD UK Holdings LP
("QD") te purchase thetr 22% stake In Get Living and join our
group of investors This means that we part ways with QD,
one of our founding investors, who have played a pivotal role
in the success of the company, from the early days of
launching Get Living to where we are today. | would ke to
thark QD for their vision and their iInvaluable support and
commitment to Get Living. in Aware Super, we are extremely
privileged to have a long-term, purpase-dr.ven ard mature
mvestor, ard | look forward to working closery with their team.
Aware Super's backing of Get Living 15 a huge vote of
confidence :n our business, which gives ys rea: firepower to
drive ambitious growth plans, in service to all our 'nvestors

The year to December 2022 has been a confident set of
results, but 1t s ar iImportart step in an exciting journey
towaras a wider vision and mission. It will see Get Living
continue 1ts successful growth, driven by the pursuit of
enhanced business performance, creating a class-leading
portfolio of neighbourhoods In which people can connect,
thrive and belong, ara as a culmination of that, rewarding
sharehalders with commensurate returns,

Rick de Blaby
CEC
27 April 2023

Annual Report 2022
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Business model

HOW W

= CREAT

We create value by building the exemplar BtR platform, driven by a clear vision and mission, creating sustainable
neighbourhoods that are fit for the future and delivering long-term investor returns,
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Customer-focus
approach
Operational Enyironmental
sc-alle an- nd social
efficiencies impact
» Read more
on page 15

> Read more
on page 16
> B 20

Rlsk mﬂnagement page

Sustanabie
neighbourhoods fit for

Outputs
the future

A compellirg resident
proposition underpinred
by market insight

mnovaton-driven teams
thriving 1IN a collaberative

anvironment

Long-term capital
and income returns

for inwvestors
Our purpose is to create places that are sustainable

and vibrant, places where people beiong

Get Living PLC
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Strategy and KPIs

=S T
UR
GROWTH

=NT

m=

Grow the property portfolio by funding and acquiring high quality newly developed homes that
provide secure income streams with the potential for rental growth and capital enhancement.

Total portfolio value ¢(£bn)}

$.2.73bn’

2022 2.73
2021 2.40
2020 2.03

KPI definition (non-IFRS)

The aggregate total value of
the Group’s property portfolio
independently valued by
CBRE nh accordance with
RICS valuation standards.

Calculated in the Business review on
pages 44 tc 46.

Activity in 2022
¢ In June 2022, 289 further homes

Looking forward
*» Newton Place and Elephant and Castle

wereg launched at New Maker Yards,
increasing our total homes to 821
i~ Middlewood Locks, Salford

» Portlands Place opened It5 doors in
August 2022, adding 524 new homes
to the heart of East Village

* wWe have continued to invest in
the improvement of homes and
nerghbourhcods within our portfolio,
with a refresh programrme upgrading
the gquality of our existing homes
:n East Village

* Allsh Christian-West was
appolinted as Chief Operat'ng Officer
n November, providing strategic
leadership to portfolio management,
development ard ESG.

Town Centre gevelopments are well
progressed, anticipating to laurch in
20232 and 2026 respectively.

The Group has identified pipeine
oppoertunities in Leeds, Maidenhead,
Birmingham and Leatherhead
niving access to a pool of potontiat
Investments within the private
rented sector.

LUK BtR sector fundamentals remair
strong with cortinued demanrd for
privately renred purpose bullt homes

Get Living PLC
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Average cost of debt (%)

3 0/

oiim /O

2022 3.2
2021 2.7

2020 25

KPI definition (non-iIFRS)

Interest rate on loars, weighted
by the amount borrowed relative
to totai borrowings.



OPERATIONAL
AND

SCAL
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Efficient and effective management of portfolio through our experienced and
innovative team ensuring operating costs are controlied to gain efficiencies.

Activity in 2022

+ The Customer Hub continued to
orovide centralised customer services
to support ail neighbourhoods.

« Ann-house development team has
been established bringing a wealth
of experience and expertise of project
management and corstruction.

« in June 2022 three Get Living
neighbourhoods featured in the
HomeViews Top 10 "best places
fo live” In the UK, as voted by
our residents.

Looking forward

* Focus on optimising the Group
operating model to improve
resident experience and reduce
operating costs.

* Supparting our dyrnamic and diverse
team, to continue working efficiently
In a collaborative working culture

Annuai Report 2022
15

Net rental income (Em)

5.62.6m’

2022 62.6"
2021 45.4
2020 35.5

KP| deflnition (non-IFRS)

Rental income net of direct
property costs less management
fees. Refer to page 43 for the
reconciliation of net rental iIncome,

Calculated in the Business review on
pages 44 to 46.

Renta! income growth (%)
19 L1 74
. /O

2022 19.5

2021 11.4

2020 2.1

KPi definition (non-IFRS)
Growth in rentai income for
properties heid throughout
the entire currert pericd on
a like-for-lke basis



STRATEGIC REPORT

Swrategy and KPlIs continued

ENVIRONM;

—ENTAL

AND SOCIAL

IMPACT

Future proofing assets against emerging physical climate impacts,
engaging with decarbonisation and supporting positive social outcomes.

Activity in 2022

¢« Get Living was awarded the top
5-star GRESB rating for the third
year running for the operational
portfoic .n recogrnition of our
sustainability performance.

« Donat-ons were made throughout
the year to local projects, charities
and initiatives in the communities
in which we operate.

* We investigated the recommendationrs
of the UN's Task Force for Climate-
related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)
ard carried cut a TCFD Gap Analysis

* Energy efficiercy improvements were
brought forward to reduce landlord
erergy consumption through improved
highting specification and controis

* We carried out a holistic review of
our approach to energy consumption
data, with a view to improving data
guality and coverage, and reducirg
the cperaticnal costs of collating
utility consumptior readings.

Locoking forward

= A new prograrmme, run by Raeburn,
will run in The Lab E20, London's
naew creative hub in East Village.
Titied Regenerative by Design, the
programme celebrates Lordeon's
cultural innovation acress climate
action the circular economy.

* All three operational neighbourhoods
and the new Lew'sham development
will faunch Inspiring Commurity Funds
to support local community projects.

¢ A new programme of resident events
will take place to bring people together
and encourage new connections

* We pian to roll out energy efficiency
works across multiple builldings
and neighbourhoods.

¢ Our emerging =SG Data Strategy
will improve visibility of occupant’s
consumption data and help close the
performance gap between predicted
and observed energy performance,

Get Living PLC
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Greenhouse gas emissions

24.6 (+1%)

2022 24.8
2021 24.4%
2020 22.7

KPI definition (non-IFRS)

L ke-for-like/degree day adjusted
rtensity (kgCO,e/m?) based on ali
consuming assets owned for two
consacut ve years withun the Group
See table 1 on page 38 for detalls.
* Historic data far 2021 1s re-stated to reflect

data quality iImprovements and like-for-like
metrics reflect the revised histeric data.

Energy usage

39.4k (+5%

2022 39.4k
2021 37.5k*
202C 21.1k

KPI definition (non-IFRS)
Like-for-ike/degree day adjusted
consumpt on (WWh in O0Q0's)
based or all consurming assets
owned for two consecutive years
withir the Group. See table 2 on
page 39 for details,

Historic data for 2021 is re-stated to reflect

data guaiity iImprovements and like-for-like
metrics reflect the revisea historic data.
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Market review

UK

ITS RESILIENCE
%.3bn

investment in BtR in 2022

0/
/O

growth per annum over
the last five years

In 2022 despite political and ecanomic headwinds, the UK
BtR sector continued to break its owr impressive records,
driven by shortage of supply, growing rental demand for
high quality homes and strong Investor momentum,

Investment in the UK's BtR sectar reached a record £4.3bn in
2022, with significant capital comrmitted throughout the year
and nearly £ibn 1n the last quarter alone.

According to the British Property —ederation (38PF), there are
now over 242,000 3tR homes in the UK, up 14% from 2021
Of those, ¢ 78,700 horres are complete, ¢.50,000 homes

are urder construction and ¢113,400 hemes are in planning.
Regioral BtR grew at aimost double the pace of Lorndon (17%
vs 9%) in the year. The last quarter of 2022 saw a siowdown
n construction levels as a result of build cost inflation, labour
shortages and wider economic uncertairty

UK BtR continues to grow across the UK
45,000
40,000
35,000
30,000
25,000
24,000

15,000

Number of Homes

10,000

5,000

BtR MARKE

380,000

BtR homes in the UK by 2032

Zoopla's UK Rental Market Report, published in December
2022, saw rental growth come to 121% on a year-on-year basis,
twice the average earnings growth for the same time frame.
Meanwhile, In the for-sale market, there has been a fall in the
number of new buyer enquiras, with demand faling by 23%
ir January 2023 compared to the five-year average. Rental
demand 15 higher than ever, anda for many residents, BtR s a
more cost-effective and corvenient solution than the private
rental sector given the new build energy efficient homaes and
wider amenity offering that BtR offers

Although, there s still a strong investrment case for wondon
BtR, investor focus has shifted o irclude key regional cities.
Ore of the largest transactiors in 2022 was £200m forward
funding of One Eastside in Birmingham by Persion nsurance
Corporate plc.

Due to the rising cost of debt anad construction cost inflationr,
BtR investment yields trended weaker in the second half of 2022

"]
Ql Q2 Q3 Q4 Ql Q2 Q3 Q4 Ql

2018 I 2019

Q2 Q3 Q4 Ql Q2 Q3 Q4 Ql Q2 Q3 Q4

2020 2021 | 2022

Source BNPPRE

Lendon

Reqions
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Elevating the living experience

BPE's annual "Who L.oves in BtR” report highlights that,
despite rental inflation, the affordability of BtR remains
significant when compared with the private rental sector
We antic'oate that these considerations will become more
important given ecenomic and political headwmnds

The report stated that of the UK BtR providers. 88% offer
soclal events, 81% offer a concierge. 69% include nternet
provision in rent, ana 73% offer co-working spaces As the
world has emerged from two years of intermittent lockdowns,
neighbourhoods which encourage and erabie community
mnteraction are increasingly attractive

in 2022, a decade on from the London 2012 Olympics in Stratford,
Get Living launched ts newest developmert at East Village,
Portlands Place, delivering 524 new homes at our flagship
London site, This site epritomises 3 space designed to meet
the expectations of modern residerts, providing attractive
homes, weilness amenities, flexible workspaces, and fostering
a clear feeling of community.

There 1s also a demand from residents that the spaces

they occupy reflect and enable their vaiues, reflected In

Get Living’s neighbourhood, retaii and placemaking strategy.
Moving forward, we anticipate that sustainabliity and social
impact will continue to form an important consideration
within consumer decision making.

Get Living continues to leverage the value-add benefits

of embedding sustainabilty ard resident wellbeing nto
deveiopments whilst aiming for best-in-class development
N ane with our ESG agenda and values,

References:

bpt org uk/Media/press-releases/inflation-and-labour-shortages-cortrioute-to-
slowdowr-1n-puild-to-rent-growtn-in-2022/

www savills Couk/research articles/229130/333547-0
bpforg.uk/media/oross-releases,/bulld-ta-rent-5/# - text —Rasearch%2Cfrom%20
tne%20British%20Property housing%20delivery%20and%20economic%20growth
www savills.couk/research_articles/229130/339547-0

advantage zog.co uk/insigrts/rental-rar et -report)/
bpfarg.ux/media/press-releases/buila-to-rert-provides-secure-leases-ard-vahue-
for-money-finds-targest-ever-analysis-of -sector-2/
WWW.CDrECOyk/Insights/bocks /uk-real-estate-mrarket-outloos-2023//residential
bpf srg u</media/press-releases/opeline-of-bulld-to-rent-nomes-ir-uk-regiors-
Increases-oy-over-a-fifth-year-on-year/

Looking ahead: the investment case for BtR

Looking to 2023, whilst there will be new challenges, the
sustained acute suppty and demand imbalance driven by

a slower housing market due to fewer first-time buyers, PRS
landlords exiting the market and hikes ir mortgage costs will
mean {hat demand for rental product 1s projected to remain
strong. Continued rental growth over the year will see the
sector retainmg its allure for iInvestors despite chailenging
economic conditions, However, sensitrvity around the
increased cost of lving wiil be imperative for operators

to retain the trust, provide affordable rmid-market

products and ensure the weilbeing of their residents

High burd cost nflation will continue to slow down new
homes delivery over the medium to long term. Capital
markets wil remain subdued untii the second haif of 2023
due to outward prassure on yields, although some areas of
distress will present opportunities for investors where forced
sales or refinancing will hasten the process of price discovery
as the year progresses.

Nevertheless, according to CBRE's Real Estate Market
Outlook, the investment appetite for BtR and co-uving will
remain strong as the more defensive asset class compared
to other traditional real estate sectors Get Lwving's newest
Londen neighbourhood in Lewisham will launch at the end
of 2023, delwer:ng 642 new homes inciuding 119 co-living
homes In response to rising demanrd

With rising mortgage rates and the increasing cost of

hwing putting home owrership out of reach for more and

more pecple, it has ctearly naver been more important that

we have a diverse, robust, well-invested rental housing market
Further investment will be needed If BtR 1s to grow frorm s
current penetration of 1.6% of the rental market to 8% by 2032,
as projected by Savills, but this well only be able happen If
investors and policymakers continue to support the sector.

The introduction of rent caps, as we have seen in Scotland,

will only iead to the contraction of the rental bousing market
and sustain the upward pressure on rents caused by a shortage
of supply. We continue to engage with respective governments
to ensure the views of Get Living and the BtR sector are
represented in emerging legisiation and policy
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Portfolio review

A THRIVING NEIGHBOURHOOD
SETTING THE BENCHMARK
FOR RENTAL LIVING

east village
london 20

n 2023, East Village will mark ts ten-year anniversary as the

first large-scale BtR neighbourhood in the UK. In that time,

the former Athletes’ Village has become a thriving home to

more than 6,500 residents, over 30 majority independent
retailers, restaurants and cafes, and ar Ofsted “"Cutstanding”
education campus.

This year. Portlands Place opened its doors to residents with
524 high guatity apartments within two towers, Skylark Point
and Hightall Point. Setting a new benchrrark for rental living,
the towers are adjoined by a Skybndge on the tenth floor
which offers 7.836 sq ft of indoor best-ir-class amenity space
Residents have exclusive access to a gym, wellbeing room, the
"Come Dine With Us” prvate dinng space, a cinema room and
10,473 sq ft of large outdoor terraces wth views of the London
skyline. Having launched in August, Portlands Place was almost
80% occupled by the erd of the vear

The addition of Portlands Place to East Village brings the total
rumber of Get Living homes to 2 445,

In 2023, 48 new affordable homes developed by Get Living
will faunch at East Village These hugh quality, two and three
bedroom Romes were sold to Notting Hill Genesis in August
2022 and will be avalable to 'ccal peaple at sccial rent.

2022 saw the launch of the Elizabeth Lineg, adding to the already
impressive travel inks at Stratforg With the line now running
from Reading to Abbey Wood, residents can get to central
London lecations faster than ever, including ten minutes to
Liverpool Street and 18 minutes to Paddington.

The retail and F&B offer at East Village was boosted in the year
with the additions of Signorelli Bakehouse and 3amboo Mat.

Following the launch of The Lak E20 1in 2021, Get Living's flagshin
tor sustainabie retall, cultural exMibinon and creative workspace,
we have worked closely with Fashion District and other partners
to drive a programme of creat.ve everts, exhibitions and
workshops throughout the year. This year, The Lat E20 has
been host to an architectural simmer school, a catwalk show
for sustanable brand Molim London ard a panel discussion
on regenerative des:gn.

At the end of 2022 we partnered with Hypha Studios, a chanty
matching creatives with empty spaces for free, to convert
a former retai store Into a creative space for emerging design
talent at East Village. This unigue take or an empty retaill space
will see several artists curate and exhibit their work as weil as
engaging with the local commurity with workshops and everts

In 2023, a programme of remeaiation works will take place to
address a number of bulding defects -dentified through fire

safety Inspections
Get Living PLC
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4> 30+

homes for rent

independent retailers

Meet the team

“I'rom the moment

I joined the Company
I knew I had made

a great life decision.”

Nick Marston, Head of Relationship Management

“As Head of Relationship Management for the Olympic
homes, my aim Is to ensure the team s always providing
a best-in-class service to our residents. The team

at Get Living are some of the most passionate and
dedicated individuals I've had the privilege of working
with, and their desire to improve and maintain Get
Living's reputation amongst renters 1s demonstrated
avery day From the moment | joined the Company

| knew | had made a great life decision. I'm coming up
to my fourth anniversary at Get Living, and watching
East Village develop into one of London's most thriving
neighbourhcods has been an immense scurce of pride.”

Meet the residents

“Choosing Last Village
as my home was a
great choice.”

Yasmin Malhis, East Village Resident

“A Business Management bachelor student, » moved to
East village in September of 2022 after arrving from
Jordan East Village is the best place to reside in; with
its very convenient location that is only three stops to
university and approxamately hatf an hour to central.

“East Village hosts events such as brunch preparea by
Signorell which gave me the opportunity to make life-‘ong
friends who live in the same building! We aiso watched the
world Cup tegether with people from all arnuna fhe wanrin
n the common space. In the same area, there s a gym to
stay active daily, a TV room and a kitcher that you can
book ta hest your friends. Choosing East Village as my
home was a great choice.”

Annual Report 2022
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Portfolio review continued

NEIGHBOURHOOD
LIVING IN THE HEART
OF LONDON

ELEPHANT
CENTRAL

lephant Central offers 278 high quality student
homes and 374 homes for rent right 1in the heart of
London Ideally located opposite Elephant and Castle
Train Station, Eiephant Central continues to attract
residents and students with occupancy laevels at over 99%.

Located in London's Zone 1, Elephant Central 1s within walking
cistance of both Longon College of Communication and King's
College London. Regant’s University London is less than half an
hour's commute. It s also within walking distance of London's South
Bark which plays host to cultural events, exhibit:ons and shows
throughout the year and the West End 15 a short tube ride away.

The nearby train staton provides quick and convenient, transport
links nnto the city, Including less than 15 minutes to both _ondon

Bridge and St Pancras, The nearest tube statior 1s a short walk from
the reighbourmnoocd with access to the Northern and Bakerloo iings.

The retaill offer .s tallored to the need of the locality and 'noiudes
Gymbox, a nursery. a Samnsbury’s Local and indeperdent
restaurarts Including TUP!, Przzeria Pappagone and Murger Han
At nearby Castle Square, over 25 local traders operate along with
a thriving event space nr the public sguare. €vents at the square
are hosted throughout the vear ard -ncluae Urban Eiephant, the
Queen's Jubilee Celebrabon ard Easter ir Wondertand, reflecting
the vibrant and culturally diverse nature of the community.

Work 15 underway art the Elephant and Castie Townr Centre
redevelopment which wil transform the former shopping centre
site and deliver brand new homes, shops and a state-of-the-art
rew London College of Commurication campus. The first phase
of the redevelopment s set to complete In 2026

Orce complete, Elephant and Castle Town Centre will offer

a new destination and transpert hub :n London, including
L208G,000 s5a. th of commercial space as well as delivering
significart investment and opportunities for creative place
making. This will sit alongside wider regeneration within the
borough. Adjacent to the development, the recently compieted
Elephant Park has brought new private sector hormes and
enhanced public reaim to the area, 'n addition o rumerous
restaurants and retajlers that have aiready etevated Elephant
and Castle's appeal to residents and visitors.

The Elephart and Castle tearr continues to engage closely with
the local community ard hosted numerous events in the year,
including the Urban Elephant Festival and histornic walking tours
that took wisitors through Elephant and Castie's history

By late 2023, a programme of remeaiation works 15 expected
to have commenced at Elephant Central to address a number
of bullding defects idertified by recent fire safety srspections.
Get Living PLC
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374 278

homes for rent

student studios

Meet the team

“Over the years

I have built so
many relationships
with residents.”

Alexis David, Senior Relationship Manager

at Elephant Central

“I have been with Get Living for nearly eight years now
and I'm still very much enjoymng my time here. | started
as a Property Consultant at Get Living 1in East Village
all those years ago and now I'm a Senior Relationship
Manager at Elephant Central looking after |ettings.

"Qver the years | have built so many relationships with
residents, many of which have stayed with us for a iong
tirme, including couples who viewed with me and are
now starting a family. The most amarzing feeling 1s taking
somepne to view a home ard seaing their reaction wher
they love the home and know that it is the perfect
place for them.

"I have to thank the brillant team | work with, from
Relationship Managers to cleaners to maintenance,
all of which are a huge part of the successes at
Elephant Central”

Meet the team
“No day is the same.”

Jane Reeves, General Manager at Elephant Central
and Lewisham

"l have beer with Get Living for nearly nine years,
starting as a Senior Relat.onship Manager in East
Village, then moving to Elephant Central to cpen
Get Living's second site as General Marager. it's been
great to be part of the oniginal story and see all the
changes implemented over the years to create the
yreat platform we have today. | love my job, ne day
15 the same, and | enjoy the rewards it gives from
delivering a great operation, which keeps homes fuil
and residents happy. | work with some great people
and look forward to bulding a new team and
successfully mobilising vewisham, which will launch
late 2023 1 am proof of the career cpporturties

in Get Living for peaple that want to develop and
establish careers in BtR."
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Portfolio review continued

CANAL-SIDE
LIVING BETWEEN
TWO CITIES

NEW MAKER
YARDS

ew Maker Yards continues to go from strength

to strength, sitting on the old Salford-Manchester

berder. Following the full opening of the second

phase of homes at New Maker Yards this year,
the neighbourhood 1s now home to over 1,200 residents
nving In 821 homes.

Set beside a canal-side green space, New Maker Yards 1s
located in the highiy desirable Middlewood Locks, within
wallang distance of Salford Central Station and Marchester's
Spinningfields, a popular dinirg, shopping and event destination
Manchester city centre s withir walking distance and both
Manchester University arnd Manchester Metropoitan University
are within easy reach from the neighbourheod.

New Maker Yards is very popular with residents, who are able

‘o make use of the neighbourhood's new 3000 sg ft. amenity
space, “The Lock”, which opened ir 2022 as well as a ¢lub room
for co-working and resaxing The Lock also provides access to a
brand new parcel managaement store and s home to 92 Degrees,
an independent roaster and coffee shop which serves both
residents and the wider community. The retall offer 1s boosted
by a local Co-op store

Residents at New Maker vards are able to socialise at Seven
Bro7hers, a beerhouse that s local to Manchester and Salford
Seven Bro7hers has guickly become a part of the community
and hosts rumerous events.

The wider event programme at New Maker Yards regularly
brings local residents together Ongoing everts incluge a canal
side Jazz event and Christmas ceiebratiors,

Get Living PLC
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S21

homes for rent

acres

Meet the team

“It feels really
rewarding to know
vou are contributing
to somebody’s
perfect home.”

Sophie Bottomley, Senior Relationship Manager

"I am coming up to my fourth year with Get Living and
have recently been promoted tc Senior Relationship
Manager here at New Maker Yards It has been wonderful
to see both the site and the area develop so much
whilst launching the deveiopment, especially since

I am from the area myse'f. We have a great team and
work environment and its lovely to be able tc meet
and connect with so many new people due to the
rumber of residents we come across every day it
feels really rewarding to know you are centributing to
somebody’'s perfect home, whether that be by renting
the home to them, assistng with any queries they may
have or fixing any maintenance 1ssuegs that arise It's
baen a pieasure to watch the Company grow and
change so much since joining and | can only imagine
the growth the next four years will bring!”

Meet the residents
“I love the location.”

Julia Anna Godlewska, Resident of New Maker Yards
“| have hved at New Maker Yards for over a year.
sharing a one bed apartmenrt with my partner | am

a junior business consultant and moved to Manrchester
right after finishing university

‘| iove how aesthetical and practical the apartments are
- the furmiture 1s of the best quality and everythirg locks
so modern The views especially are breath-taking
The on-site office “The Lock” makes hfe so easy as we
are beth working from home ard the communal area
to work/study perfectly reflects an office ervirorment
| love the location - 1t is very quiet ne'ghbourhood
with the caral and yet so close to the city centre -
ter minutes' waik. New Maker Yards also provides
excellent 24/7 security and every time | calied for
assisrance | was rever disappomnted.”
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Portfolio review continued

IN DEVELOPMENT

NEWTON
PLACE

A DYNAMIC, VIBRANT NEW
LONDON NEIGHBOURHOOD

530

homes for rent

119

co-living homes

ewton Place Is our next neighbourhood to launch in

London and 1s set to compiete in the second half of

2023, welcoming its first residents shortly after _ocated

In Tono 3 10 Soyutheast London, wrth great rransport
Inks to the centre of the city, the rew neighbourhood wilt deliver
649 homes, ncluding 424 for market rent, 106 affordable
homes at London Liv'ing rent and N9 for co-living.

Complementing the residential offer :s 25,000 sg f* of

retad space, 15,000 sq ft of food and beverage space,

a gym, a multipiex cineMma and 10.000 sg f+ of co-working
space. Emprre Cinemas is already signed up to the scheme
w'th nimerous retaliers set to follow. The commercial offer
Is prominently located along what will becorme the principal
pedestrian route connecting Lewisham town centre with
Lewisham's main line ang DLR stations.

25,000

sq ft of retail space

The developrment marks our first foray into co-living, with
self-contained studio-style flats and high quality shared
communal facilities to enable socialising and shared living.

The scheme is part of a w:der regeneration project which witl
deliver a new heart for Lewisham's town centre and includes
hormes, shops, restaurants and a pubiic sguare, In addition

to major infrastructure improvements. Directly adjacent to
Lewisham Nationai Rall and DLR station, there are excellent
transport Iinks from the neighbourhoed to central London

with connections to London Bridge n nine minutes, Charing
Cross in 17 minutes and Canary Wharf i 16 minutes. A potentiai
extension of the Bakerloo line weuld provide further hirks.

This remains under consultation.

The new neighbourhood has been developed In partnerstip
with Lewisham Gateway Development, a subsidiary of
Muse Developments.

Get Living PLC
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IN DEVELOPMENT

ELEPHANT AND CASTLE
T@WN CENTRE

A NEW TOWN
CENTRE IS EMERGING

485

homes for rent

iephant and Castle Town Centre 15 a major regeneratior

project which will deliver a new, vibrant town centre

n London’s zone 1, located alongside our existing

nalghiewrheed, Elephant Cantral The schoma, whikch
will complete in 2026, will deliver close to 500 new homes for
rent, a vibrant mix of shops, restaurants and leisure facihities,
workspace, a state-of-the-art new campus for London College
of Communication and major infrastructure irmprovements.

Construction 1s now well underway on the site of the former
Eiephanrt and Castle shopping centre and good prograss has
been made on site, with piling work completed in December
2022 The first sections of the basernent slab have progressed
with the concrete tower structures to be constructed
throughout 2023 and the cladding to commence towards

the end of the year.

S.8

acres

The development is part of a wider rejuvenation of the area
and will deliver much needed high guaiity rental homes in

a prime location and 35% of the homes that will be affordable
kry etoberbber toun L A seeuniu phiase ol Uns proweel s

expected to commerce or the site of the London College of
Communication falowing it's relocation to the new university
buldirg. ntroducing further homes as well as additional shops
ard leisure venues.

The public realm located next to Eiephant Central, Castle
Square, 1s home to a number of local traders and plays host
to numerous events over the year which celebrate the rich
culturai diversity of the local area.
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Stakeholder engagement

OUR APPROACH

TO

QOur employees

Our employees are those who are directly
employed by Get L:ving, Employees want
to feel supporteq, working in a safe and
comfortable environment where they
can thnve In a collaborative culture that
celebrates diversity and inclusion.

wWhy we engage

Our business sutcess will be determined
by our employees. We recognise the
ynportance of attracting and retaining
talent and creating diverse teams with
reievant skills and expertise

How we engage

Divers.ty and inclusion are central to

cur offer and we commit to being an
organisation where teams feel supported
and inspired to realise their potenta.

We Invest In our pecple through trairing
courses and walent deveiopment
programmes, encouraging aspiring
fermale leaders by providing executive
ceaching and sponsorships. Appraisal
structures support staff retention and
employee performance. Our employee
value proposition s regulany reviewed
to ensure 1t 1s relevant for our people.
We cotlect employee feedback through
surveys and promote wellbeing activities.

Qutcomes of engagement

* =egular =xecutive led events increase
top down communication and
encourage business engagement

* A cost of iving allowance was provided
to certain employees during the year
to provide financial assistance

+ Cur sickness and parentai leave
policies have been entanced ip
response to employee feedback

+ As part of our pledge to reduce carbon
amissions, we offer employees a cycle
to work scheme

NGAG

Our contractors and suppliers

Our contractors and suppliers are
those who provide goods and services
to Get Living. they want to be treated
with respect, through professional
interactions and prompt payment.

Why we engage

Contractors and supplers play a
crtical role in our ability to operate
sustainably, safely and efficiently and
therefore we ensure that they comply
with Get Living standards.

How we engage

The procurement and developrment teams
maimntain close relattonships and regulariy
meet with contractors and suppliers

We have a collaborative approach to our
supply chain and encourage contractors
and suppliers to raise any ssues or
concarns about thair relatiorship with the
Group, their contracts or the warkforce
wWe require pur contractors and suppliers
to support ant:-slavery initiatives and
controls are n place to mit-gate the rsk
of slavery and human trafficking from
occurring within our suppely chains.

Cutcomes of engagement

¢ Key contractors and suppliers are
proactively managed to maintam
positive relationships

e Enktanced corporate due diligence
cortrols have been implementead
to provide more in-depth data to
MoniTor our sUppiy chain

= Our terder process scores contractors
and suppilers with a mirmirmum 20%
welighting lirked 1o ESG credentials

* Terms with contractors and suppliers
include a commitmeant to comply
with the law on anti-slavery and
hurman trafficking

Get Living PLC
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Our residents

Cur residents are those who live in

our property and inciudes their guests
and visitors. Residents want us to
understand theair changirng requirements
and provide guality and sustainable
homes with responsive services

Why we engage

Qur residents are our business and
stay!ng In touch with their wants
and needs s essential to the Group's
performance and reputation

How we engage

Regular engagement is faciitated through
our Welcome Offices situated r each
neighbourhood, allow!ng residents to waik
n and engage directly with the customer
service team, Our Customer Hub team are
also dedicated to dealing with residert
gueres via phone, emaii, website chat

or s0cial media o ensure we are prompt
and responsive 1o Issues. We hold socal
avents for our residents as part of our
placemaking strategy to encourage social
engagement .n our neighbourhoods and
stay In touch with residert needs and
feedback through surveys.

Outcomes of engagement

« Three Get Living neighbourhoods
featured in the HomeaViews' Tor 10
“best places to hive” In the UK durihg
the year, as voted by our residents

* We are partnered with Lordon Stadium
as hfestyle sponsor, providing residents
with access to concerts, stadium tours
and use of commumty facilities

+ Automated NPS surveys are sent
every six months with an ogtion to
ieave a comment

+ Get Living has now Joined the Spotify
piatform, providirg a further unigue
opportunity to engage with residents



Section 172 statement

At Get Living, listening to and engaging effectively with our
stakeholders is key to ensuring the right decisions are made.
As a result, the relationships with our stakeholders are key

to the

Our retailers

Qur retaillers operate businesses within
our neighbourhoods, with offerings
such as retail, leisure and F&B Retallers
want us to understand therr changing
requirements and provide afforaable
and sustainable space, and responsive
services, that help them compete and
operate successfully

Why we engage

Retallers are a key element of our
neighbourhoods ard not only serve our
residents, but draw adaditional visitors
play:ng a key role i our placemaking
strategy. We engage to ersure products
and services can be provided to denver
mutually benefimal outcomes

How we engage

We have a dedicated team led by

an experienced Head of Retaill that
ergage reguiarly with cur retailers
through a variety of commumication
charnels. We adopt a tallored approach
te our retatters who range from small
independent businesses to 'arge
national corporates The retall teamr
take the opportunity to connect
with brands andg bulld relationships
through attending retail events.

Our neighbourhgogd events present
an cpportunity for our retailers
showcase therr offering.

Outcomes of engagement

+ Get Living hosted exhibition stards
at the Compietely Retall Marketplace
events in Apr| ard September 2022

* The Retal team increased in si7e
during the year, ensurng sufficient
capacity to adequately service our
existing retaillers and in anticipation
for future retailers as developmerts
reach compietion

Our investors

Our Investors are those who own shares
in Get Living. Investors want the Group
to generate attractive returns and
theraefore require clear and transparent
communrication of our long-term
strategies. short-term plans and regular
updates of the Group's progress
towards these.

Why we engage

investors provide eguity funding o

the Group and institutionai INnvestors in
particular are constantly evaluating therr
portfolio holdings Providing 'nsightful
infermation about the Get Living's
strategy and performance Is cruciai

for their assessment of the Group

and allows them to provide valuable
feedback and make assessments for
capital deployment. The Group pays
speciat attentior. to maintaming regular
and transparent dialogue with investors,
in order to ensure that they are treated
and informed equaily.

How we engage

The Board 1s made up of three Non-
executive Directors and an independent
Charr, ail of whorm are independent from
the maragement tearm of the Group as
investor nominees The Board meets

af igast aparteriy et Lnong rogularhy
meets with the investors and provides
monthly and quarterly report ng.

Outcomes of engagement

v A Group strategy day was held
in December 2022 atterded by the
Executive Team and a number of
investor representatives

» The Group continues to adopt ard
adbere to the Wates Corporate
Governance Principles ("Wates
Principles”), ncreasing transparency
for investors and other stakeholders
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long-term success of the Group.

Our communities

Cur communities are those who live

In areas where we operate, such as
local residents, businesses, schools and
charties Local people and groups want
us to enhance the physical and social
infrastructure 0 their area, helping ther
community to thrive.

Why we engage

We want our neighbourhoods to

have a positive impact on the local
community. We have to understand the
needs of our iccal communities to helg
them thrive which has a airect impact
on the success of Get Living

How we engage

wWorking in collaboratior with our
partrers, our community support

is wide-ranging. Get Living has a
dedicated events team which ocrganises
and funds year-rourd everts and
activities creating the opportunity
for people to come together which
are incwsive and open o all We
ensure we fisten to and consult with
residents, businesses and community
groups when we deveiop a new
neighbourhocd.

Outcomes of engagement

= The Lab E20, East Village's ¢reative
hub has held a number of free
exhibit.ons, workshops and activities
throughout the year

« Our lnspiring Communities Fund has
contirued to support a number of
organisations and initiatives across
our neighbourhoods

« Our Sports Aid sponsorship enables
and empowers the next generation of
athletes to achieve theirr ambitions



STRATEGIC REPORT

Environment, social and governance

—“NVIRONMENTAL

SUSTAINABILITY

2022 has seer a step change in interest 1in the environmental
performarce and sccial credentials of property companies
such as Get Living. This year we have built on our established
£5G6 strategy to practically and culturaliy embed sustainability
within cur operations and our plans for the future.

Our multi-faceted approach to ervironmental performance
ncluded engagement with every single employee, capital
works to Improve energy efficiency, improvements to ESG
aata quality and processes. developing robust design standards
and tackling the thorry issue of embaodied carbon In

new developments.
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improving environmental data quality

Access to high quality data 1s essent:al to understanding.
Improving and communicating our operational energy and
carpbon performance, However, as a landlord, we are particularly
rellant on access to residents’ and commercial tenants” utility
meter readings, which underpin key metrics such as Energy
Use Intepsity and Scope 1, 2 and 2 carbon emisgionn

We have dentified opportunities to automate ubilhties data
and improve the granularity of data inputs through the Data
Communications Company (DCC) smart meter network, heat
networks, and loT-enabled sensors. These will replace current
practices, which are labour intensive and reliant on |ess
frequent reporting Intervals.

We are working to automate the collation of landlord utilities
data for commeon parts and void properties, where we are
the ultimate bill payer. Elsewhere, we have developed a plan to
originate and maintain occupants’ nformed consent to access
their automated utility data, which make up the majority of
our operational emissions Across all utility consumption data
sources, we wish to reduce reporting intervals from a matter
of months to a matter of minutes.

In the meantime, wé have revamped our irternal ESG data
dashboards to track the use of automated readings versus
manual and estimated readings as a KPI. We have also
aligned cur quarterly internal reporting with the EPRA's
sustainability Best Practice Recommendations (EPRA sBPR)
for absolute electricity, heating. gas and water consumption,
carbon emissions and waste diversion rates.

Buiiding for the future

Get Living recognise the need to future proof bullding
performance during the design and construction phase.
We have therefore corsolidated our reguirements for new
developments 1o guide our discussiors with thurd party
deveiopers and informe our In-house developmert projects,

The standards reflect a fabric-first "energy hierarchy” and
draw on the Low Energy Trarsition Initiative (LETI) guidance,
emerging regulations (ncluding the Future Homes Standard
and draft London Plan), and professional stardards,

Specific targets for Energy Use Intensity, space

heating demand andg embodied carbon align with LETI
recommerdations and refererce guidance from the Royal
institution of Chartereq Surveyors (RICS) and the Chartered
Institute of Bulding Services Engineers (CIBSE). Targets for
thermal comfort refer to CIBSE technical memcranda TM52
and TM59, while we have developed our own standards for
smart metenng and zero reliance on fossil fuels In operation,

Tackling embodied carbon

Reducing the impacts or construction 1s & key challenge for the
property industry that wil require iInnovation and collaboration
throughout the value chain. We include a Whole Life Cycle
assessment as a requirement In new developments and site
acquisit:ons, and seek to align with LETI standards for embodied
Larbon. We have alsu carried out an innovative and detailed
retrospective study of the embodied cartbon in our recent
development, Portlands Place i~ East Village

The study offered important lessons in how to improve
measurement and understanding of embodied carbon across

the development supply chain and Get Living supported the

authors of the report to publish a peer reviewed academic
tudy In the open access Journal "Energles”.

we will apply insights from this study to future projects.

These including identifying a WLC study as a deliverable

n projects consultants’ and contractor teams’ appointments.
The inter-operabihity of Bulding Informaticn Models,
construction/manufacture models and WLC assessment

tools should also be considered throughout the design and
construction process It 1s hoped that greater awareness of
WLC studies will impact design decisiens to favour iow-carbon
technologies ard encourage supply chars to provide more
robust Environmertal Performance Declaratiors,

Energy efficiency works

The energy efficiency of buldings 15 emerging as a key guality
differentiator, which ¢an be improved through capitai works
to reduce energy consumpt:on.

In 2022 we 10entified landlord lghtng in common parts

of our buildings as a key area for iImmediate improvement
and developed detailaed plans to replace lghting and improve
lighting controis In commor parts The works are expected
to reduce the electroity consumptior of landiord light by
79% for 148 hames in East Village These benefits form part
of a triple bottom fine of reduced energy and mantenance
costs, lower carbon emissions and fewer wisible defects in
highly trafficked areas. The scheme 15 expected to read to
energy and maintenance savings of £98k per annum at a Yied
on Costs of 12.5%, ard f successful, we aim to rolt out similar
schemes in other blocks

The eff.ciency of district beating networks has been
dentified as another opportunity for improvement. In 2022
we benefitted from government funding under the Heat
Network Efficiency Scheme, arnd dentified opportunities
to improve heating efficiency and comfort 1n East Village
We are continumng to work with the heat network coperator
for the Queen Elizabeth Clympic Park to develop these
opportunities in 2023

Looking further ahead, we are developing a decarbonisation
plan for an archetypal plot in zast Village. This study will
identify capital works required to align with the Carbon

Risk Real Estate Moniter (CRREM) net zerc pathway and
make recommendations regarchng zero reliance on fossi
fuels, low energy use, renéwabte generation, enargy demand
responsiveness, and in-use verification Learmngs from this
project will be applied throughout the portfolo.
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Lnvironment, social and governance continued

E N v | R O N M E N TA L Making sustainability personal
Every Get Living employee sets personal targets to integrate ESG
S U STA | N A B | L I TY into ther work and aporaisal for the year. To help our team relate
key chmate 1ssues to ther day-to-day work, over 170 employees
CO N T | N U E D attended chmate literacy traimng workshops in 2022,
These workshops expiored climate within the broader
sustanalylly landscape, nicluding 1ssues such as physical and
trarsition risk, and how these relate to Get Living. Every employee

was also invited to additional traning to update them on Get
Living's ESG progress throughout the year

Circular Economy panel discussion with David Philips.

Kickstarting the Circular Lconomy

Throughout 2022 we partnered with our supply chain to This resulted in 2,098 items (12%) being refurbished

innovate the hfecycle of domestic furnifure and k.ckstart and re-used within the Get Living estate. A further
7,409 items {44%) were refurbished and donated to

an exermplar circutar economy business model
charity, with the remainder re-sold or diverted to energy

We dentified that furniture in our older homeas was
. generat:on from waste. The project represents sizable
becoming warr and In need of replacerment A traditional, ,
potential value, both as airect chantable denatiors, and
linear business madel would have condemned older
the social impact of supporting low-carhnn shids

furniture to landfill. However, Get Living workad with our
supply ¢hain to assess 16,840 individual items of furniture
for refurbishment and re-use.

Re-sold items were marketed for sale under our furniture
provider's new consumer brand "Release”. OQur partner
plans to expand the consumer brand with ex-rental
furniture from across their wider business.
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SOCIAL IMPACT

At Get Living, we know that a person’'s home 1s more than
about bricks ¢nd mortar, 1IU's also about the community and
neighbourhood that they become a part of, where peopie
come together and feel connected That's why social value,
creating wider social, ervironmental and economic benefits,
5 one of the vital iIngredients across our neighbourhoods.

This has been aur philosophy since Get Living was
founded back in 2013 with our pioneering netghbourhood,
East Village. Being a force for good means taking an active
role In our neighbourhoods, working closely with residents,
local stakeholders and wider caommunities. To that end, we
have not only donated to 'ocal charntable and community
causes In 2022, but we have also set up our own initiatives
and projects that respond to local needs with the awn of
supporting, empowering and Jpskiling local communities,

Our Social Value Policy

wWe invest In places for the long term and it's important to

us that we focus our efforts not only on our neighbourhcods
and res:dents, but also the widear locahty. Our role s to support
iocal employment and local suppliers, become civic family
members of the communities in which we operate, while
pursuing a green and sustainable agenda

We work hard to offer pecople a better way to live ard rent,
in nelghbourhoods that are fit for the future We aim to
provide great rertal homes, create healthier places and
boost the social ana economic worth of communities

Creative Placemaking
with The Lab 220

Having launched in 2021, The Lab E20 has guickly become
a new flagship for expenential retall, cultural exhibition and
creative workspace. Designed by Christopher Raeburn,
founder of REBURMN, the 3,500 sg ft and double-heighted
space In Stratford plays host to events and experiences with
various cultural partners for residents and wider community

The Lab has successfullv incuhated lkoca creative tech
start-ups. supported the emergence of local design
talent in partnership with the Londen College of Fashion
and works with local and global culturat partrers for
further collaboration between the faskion industry, the
bullt ervirorment and the creative industries,

In 2022, Fashion Distr ¢t curated The —ab's cultural
programme with a focus on sustainabinty, commurnity and
creativity Activities included an 'nvestment series event
featuring pitching workshops and investrment clirics, a
LOANHOOD pop-up with a preview party and upcychng
workshop, and a Project ReGo Exhibition supported by
Foundation for Future Londor and tondon College of
Fashron Regular monthiy events at The Lab E20 include
salsa classes, knitting clubs and & community fund club.

To achigve that an, we are working to

* help local economies grow through the provision of flex:ble,
hugh-guality, value focussed nerighbourhood development,
detvering homes, new job opportunities and contributions
to the local economy In turp, this attracts further inward
investment and can act as a catalyst for further growth
and productivity. As fong-term stakechoeiders in the piaces
i~ which we operate, we alsc invest in projects and
imtiatives that support local businasses, institutions and
students in the form of funding, upskilling and mentoring

= support training, skills and career development for our
employeas and through our supply chain

» create wider social value by supporting local causes
and projects through our Inspiring Communities Fund
and by monitoring and targeting improvermneant of
tenant satisfaction

« mprove the health and wellbeing of our residents
and employees through assessment and introduction
of initiat'ves such as biodiversity erhancement and
provision of cultural and physical activities

The Lab E2Q.
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Environment, social and governance continued

SOCIAL IMPACT
CONTINUED

Supporiing
Communities with
Actionl'under

Working with ActionFunder, Get Living's Inspiring
East Village Community Fund supported seven local
commurity project activities In 2022 QOver £20,000
was awarded to nen-prefits making an impact n the
local area

The launch follows the success of a similar funding
campalgn at our New Maker Yards neighbourhood
in Salford in 2021, Across the UK, Get Living provides
funding to local community groups and initiatives
focused around four key themes:

¢ driving local werk and growth,

+ working towards more sustainable cities;

+ ncreasing focus on the arts and creat vity; and
= improving neighbourhood inclus:vity

A selection panel, which included locar residents at
East Village, chose the winning projects based on the
above critenia. “his year the Inspining East Wllage Fund
supported a broad range of projects ard intiatives that
focus on Jpskilling and education, Iife skills workshops
and groups that brng together ang connect local
people These projects are Ready to Waork - Vine
Connect, XLP Fomewaork Project, Who's Behind the
Camera - Youth Charter at Londor Stadium Learning,
YouMels @ The Lab E20 - Catalyst in Communities,
QEQP Girlguiding Goes Camping, Inclusive Community
Cooking, Skate Gals & Pals,

Local Girlguides group, supported by the inspinng East Village Fund.

Get Living Gives Back at Thorogood Gardens, Stratford.

Get Living Gives Back

In 2022 Get Living launched Get Living Give Back,
an opportunity for colleagues te volunteer for group
charitable imitiatives in the commumities in which

we operate. Colleagues spent a day of therr time
supporting varied projects that closely align with
Get Living's wider social value objectives, including
promoting biodiversity, cambating loneliness and
providing essentials for those most in need.

50 team members participated :n 2022, with further
activities planned for 2023,

The events held inciuded.

Thorogood Gardens, Stratford

In late Spring several Get L.virg colleagues joned
wrth some of our key supply partners to rejuvenate

a commurity garden in Stratford. The team Felped
with weeding and mowing, the pianting of beds ana
contalpers and the installation of a shed and brd boxes
Plants that would encourage wildhfe to the area were
als0 selected to belp promote bioaiversity.

Blackfriars Settlement, Southwark

Qver the course of two days a group of Get Living
staff visited the Blackfriars Settlement Day Centre

to prepare, cook and serve lunch to a group of eiderly
Southwark residents. The team spent time chattng
with the residents, hosted a quiz and sang songs.

Newham District Foodbank, Stratford

Instead of an all-coileague Secret Santa and to suppoert
those struggling with the cost of iving crisis, the Get
_ving Stratford office chose to make donations to

a local foodbank. Over a three-week pericd nearly 300
food items were donated and dehvered to the charity
tho woolt bofore Christrnss

Coco Collective, Lewisham

The Coco Collective s an afro daspora community
garden 1in Lewisham. In Novembaer, nine people from
across Get Living were guided by the Coco Collective
team Ir a day of bramble cleanng, weeding, and
digging Jp a lawn and repiacing it with new turf,

all to improve the garden for the local commumity.

Don't Walk Past, Manchester

Towards the end of the year staff and residents at
New Maker Yards, Salford, donated urwanrted but
usable clothes for the homeless In Manchester
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The launch of Hypha Studios at East Village.

Bringing local art
to East Village with
Hypha Studios

At the end of 2022 we began working with
Hypha Studios, a charity matching creatives
with empty spaces for free, to convert a former
Sainsbury’s store INto a creative space for
emerging design talent at East Village

Centred around the themes of design

and community Iving, the space has become

a showcase for a series of artists and exhibitions,
cementing East Village as the gateway to East
London's creative district and further supporting
Get Living's strategy In creating an inclusive
and sustainabie urban neighbourhood.

“Creativity 15 central to many communities and our naewest design
studio :n Stratford's East Village will bring new iife to a vacant
commercial space, transforming the unit into a not-for-profit
gallery and exhibition space for local and emerging talent.

“East Village 1s a fantastic location for the new and historic local
communities, and with great travel connections we really hope

that the exhibitions will also draw new visitors to the area With

The two unique gallery spaces showcase curated
and immersive works by local artists and emerging
tatent from Goldsmiths Urniversity students As
part of the residency. the artists are also engaging
with the local communty.

Elephant
& Castle
Business
Forum.

1ts deep cultural history, Stratford 1s becoming a new creative hub
for London ard Aypha Studios is excited to be working with Get
Living to bring a serigs of exhibitions to £20.°

Camilla Cole, Founder of Hypha Studios

Working with local businesses through
the Llephanit & Castle Business lorum

Estabhished in 2027, the Tlephant ard Castle Business
Forurm s & vehicle for local businesses to work together

to rake advantage of 'ocal opportunitics, develcp initiatives
to promote the local commercial and cultural offer and
apply for funding to deliver projects .n Elephant and Castle
The forum has so far brought together 66 locai businesses
and stakeholders. led by a steerng group ard an appointed
chair person

Two successful projects have been delivered to date

Tre Forum is working n partnership with the UAL-LLC
University and the People's Company Theatre with support
from Southwark Council It 1s aiso working with Urban
Elephant Festival ara Digital Marketing face to face
training to support 30 local businesses.
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Environment, social and governance continued

SILITY

SUSTAIN
GOV

Sustammabie fashion
show at the Lab E20.

Strong governance 1s essential to ensure that good intertiors
are carried through to practical ends This 1s particularly true in
matters of sustasrability, where sustainability thermed benchmarks
and disclosures augment our wider carporate governance.

Get Living's appreach to ESG benchmarking 1s guided

by participation in the GRESE, and supported by voluntary
disclosures on our social impact and the wide-rarging
sustainability Best Practice Recommendations of the EPRA
(EPRA sBPR) We are nvestigating the recommendations of
the Task force for Ciimate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)
and include ight-touch disclosures in this report. We also make
mandatory disciosures under the Streamlined Erergy and
Carbon Reporting framework, detaills of which are

provided below.

S-star GRESB rating

For the third year running, Get Living participated in the
GRESB and was awarded a 5-star GRESE rating for Stanaing
Investments Cur Development Assets were also awarded a
4-star GRESR rating for the second consecutive year, placirg
Get Living second from top in cur Residential Mult-Family
peer group of eight cormpanies.

As g an investor-led orgarusation, GRESB provides a rigorous
and rounded framework for sustamabie practice and preparing
ESG cata for the financial markets. Get Living have benefitted

—ERNANC

from the regular benchmarking process which collects, validates,

scores, and ndependently benchmarks ESG data.

AN

Participation in GRESB has helped shape cur policy

and approach to ESG leadership, inciuding reporting, risk
rmanagement, stakeholder engagement, development standards,
bulld quailty, green building cert:fication, energy efficiency,
water efficiency, waste management and total greenhouse
gas emissions

Preparing for the Task force on Climate-related

Financial Disclosures

Get Livinrg worked with external specialists to investigate the
recommendations of the TCFD ard carried out a gap analysis
I~ preparation for emerging mandatory reguirements.

we have mnvestigated the rote of cimate on Get Living's
governance, strategy. risk management and target setting,
identifying a number of "guick wins” to improve our approach,
as well as deeper, systemic changes that we intend to implement
over the madium to long term. Climate strategy 15 interwoven
throughout aur wider strategy.
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Table: Snapshot of our sustainability journey

TCFD Recommendation

Response

See also

Governance

The Board’s role

Chmate matters are raised at the Board's guarterly meetings as appropr:ate.
Elements of chimate risk ars also captured in the Audit Sub-commitiee’s duties
regarding general risk management.

Corporate Governance
Report page 48

Management’s role

Chmate strategy 1s represented within senior management by the COO. who
Is responsible for ESG (ncluding chimate-related opportunities and risk) The
COO 1s supperted by external advisers, the ESG Steering Commuttee and
the Head of Net Zero

Executive Team
page 51

Strategy

Climate
opportunities
and risks

The broader topic of "sustainability” has been identified as a pnncipal nisk that is
actively managed and regularly reviewed by senior managerment “Sustainabihity”
includes chimate transition risks such as build cost inflatbion and changing customer
expectations, while physical cimate impacts are captured as sensitivities to other
principal rsks, such as acute environmental events impacting heaith and safety,
and investor sentiment iImpacting market risk.

Principal Risks page 40

Climate impacts
on strategy and
financial planning

Working with external adwvisors, Forvis, Get Living carried out a TCFD
GAP Analysis in 2022 This identified a number of “auick wins” to improve
our appreach and included strategic recommendations o benefit from the
Taskforce's wider recommendations

Sustainability goals are already included m every team member's annual
appraisal to promote ownership of sustainabihty (and climate) at every level
of Get Living's culture. Budget has also been aflocated to improve ERPC ratings,
reduce ianalord electricity consumption and invest in ESG data quakty
through smart metering .nfrastructure and processes.

Envirenmental
Sustainabihity page 30

Scenario analysis

Get Living 15 conducting a Scenario Analysis for standing assets :n 2023
Development assets are already investigated by specialist copsultarts to
dent fy and mitigate physical chmate risks such as flooding, extreme heat
ard high winds throughout the development cycle.

Risk management

Identifying
and assessing
climate risks

The Executive Team regularly reviews all principal risks and how these are mitigated
and managed across Get Living's business activities. The ESG Steering Committee,
whick .5 chared by the COO also provides support to semor management
regarding the identification and interaction of climate risks,

Managing Risk and
internal Controis
page 40

Managing
climate risks

Get Living seeks to future proof assets against emerging physical and transition
chmate risks through robust new build standards and improvements to the
energy efficiency of existing neighbourhcods. We are working to quantify the
capital commitrnents required to align with CRREM decarborisation pathways
and are alsa investing In training to improve awareness of climate sensitivities
amd e Easts.

Environmental
Sustainability page 30

integrating climate
within wider risk
management

in light of the TCFD Gap Analysis, we are working to improve understanding

of “"chimate” both within the “sustainability” agenda, and the broader business
strategy landscape To this end, all principal risks are assessed for cimate
sensitivrties te highiight the interaction between cliimate matters and traditional
rnisk classifications such as market risk and health and safety

Principal Risks page 40
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Environment, social and governance continued

SUSTAINABILITY AND
GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

Table: Snapshot of our sustainability journey continued

TCFD Recommendation Response See also

Metrics and targets

Climate metrics Detalled chimate metrics are disclosed annually in Get Living's anrudal Sustanability Report
Sustainability Report, which aligns with EPRA sBPR standards.

Greenhouse Scope 1, 2 and 3 greenhouse gas emissions are disclosed arnually SECR Statement
gas emissions N accordance with the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting page 38
reguirements, which are included in this report.

Targets for Get Living 15 investigating alignment with the Carbon Risk Real Estate Monitor
improvement (CRREM) methodology and aspire to set targets in line with the UK's National
Determined Contributions to the Pans Chimate Accords.

EPRA’s sustainability Best Practice Recommendations

Get Living's annual Sustamability Report for 2022 will continue to :nctude detailed sustainability metrics in line with the
European Public Real Estate Association’s sustanability Best Practice Recommendations (ERPRA sBPR). These irclude guality
assured statements on the pertfolio's energy consumption, water consumption, carbon emissions, waste management, green
building certification, social impact, employment practices, procurement practices and governance. The report for 2021, which
was published in 2022, can be found at https,/www.getliving com/about/esg-policy/.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

Get Living PLC ermussions and energy usage statements are reported 'n the below tables for the year ending 31 Decembaear 2022,
Absolute emissions/corsumption, like-for-like' and an intensity value" for 2021 and 2022 are reported These tables set out the
emissicns and consumption for the entity overall and the spht between "Reasident.al” and "Student Accommodation” asset types.
Like-for-ilke and :ntensity values include all consur~ing assets owned for two consecutive years within the entity The approach
taken follows guidance provided by the GHG Reporting Guideinas (BEIS, 2019)". See Appendix for further cetails of the
reporting methodology.

Table 1: Get Living PLC Greenhouse Gas Emissions Statement for year ending 31 December 2022

Absolute ermissions L:ke-for-iike/degree day adjusted L ke-for-uke/degree day
(tonnes COe) emissions (tornes CO, e} adjusted nrensity (kgCQOe/m? NLA}

Sector and GHG source 2021 2022 2021 2022 % change 2021 2022 % change
Scope 1 813 1,178 738 970 31% 15.7 20.7 31%
Scope 2 2,889 2,848 2,860 2,714 -5% 10.1 9.6 -5%

Residential
Scope 3 3,239 3,230 3,150 3,096 -2% 111 10.9 -2%
Total 6,941 7,256 6,748 6,780 0% 23.8 23.9 0%
Student scope 1 237 218 237 250 6% 43.4 46.0 6%
Accommodation Scope 2 74 85 74 85 15% 13.6 15.6 15%
Scope 1 1,050 1,396 975 1,220 25% 18.6 23.3 25%
Totai Scepe 2 2,963 2,933 2,934 2,799 -5% 10.2 9.7 -5%
I Scaope 3 3,239 3,230 3,150 3,096 -2% 11.1 10.9 -2%
Total 7,252 7,559 7.059 7,115 1% z24.4 24.6 1%

Like-for-like excludes assets that were purchased, sold or urder refurbishment durirg the two years -eported
o Irtensity values are calcuiated on a -(gC(JYe/rn’ nasis for GHG emissions and kWh/m? for energy consumption

monttps fassets.oublishirg service.govuk/governmert/uploads/system/uploads/attachmert_data/file/73152%/Erv-reporting-guidance_irc_ SECR 3TMarc» pd
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Table 2: Get Living PLC Energy Usage Statement for year ending 31 December 2022

Abso-ute consurmpuon Like-for- ike/degree day adiusted L ke-for-1ke/degree day
Ckwh im 000's) consumption (kwh in 000's) adjusted intensity (kwh/rm2 il A)

Sector and energy source 2021 2022 2021 2022 % change 2021 2022 % change

EHlectricity 8,100 8,875 7,981 7,681 -4% 28.2 27.1 A%
Residental District Heating

& Gas 11,293 13,083 10,858 12,509 15% 38.3 44.2 15%
Landlcrd

Total Energy

Landlord 13,393 21,958 18,839 20,190 7% 66.5 71.3 7%

Electricity 6,363 6,888 5,899 5,842 -3% 22.6 22.0 -3%
Residential District Heating

& Gas 11,058 11,121 10,990 11,522 5% 41.4 43.4 5%
Tenants

Total Energy

Tenants 17,420 18,009 16.989 17,363 2% 63.9 65.3 2%

Electricity 348 439 348 439 26% 63.9 80.5 26%
Student District Heating
Accommodation & Gas 1,292 1,185 1,282 1,371 6% 237.2 251.7 6%

Total Energy 1,641 1,634 1,641 1,810 10% 301.1 332.3 10%

Electricity 14,811 16,202 14,329 13,961 -3% 49.6 48.4 -3%
Total District Heatirg

& Gas 23,643 25,399 23,140 25,402 10% 80.1 88.0 10%

Total Energy 38,454 41,601 37.469 39,364 5% 129.8 136.3 5%

'n light of our efforts to iImMprove epvironmental data quality, we have increased the scope of energy data sources, whilst refinirg
the methodology of our carbon accourting (for instance via the apporticnment of emissions across GHG Protocol scopes and
organisational boundaries).

Most materiaily, we bave secured access to heat consumption data for East Village, which is included for the first ime. Aggregated
data was used on a plot-by-plot basis and apportioned to landlord and tenant spaces on an area basis. Consumption within
leasehold properties owned by Triathion Homes has alsc been excluded for the first time, followirg 2 detalled review of best practice
crntena (GHG Protocol) relating to ermissions that fall within financial and operational control of the business. Historic data for 2021

s re-stated to reflect these Improverments and like-for-itke metrics use the revised historc data accordingly to ensure consistency

Absolute consumption figures have increased to refiect the absorption of new development in East Village and New Maker
Yards, and ‘ncreased occupancy of Portchester House in Elephant Central. Like-for-ilke metrics include degree day adjustments
(adjusting for weather conditions), which suggest that heat demand has not reduced in proportion to the relatively mild winter,
with gas consumption growing on a relatve basis. However, as grids and other energy sources improve, absolute and like-for-
like degree day adjusted emissions metrics have benefitted from reduced carbon factor {the carbon emissions resulting from
the usage of a particular form of energy), for both grid electricity arnd gas supplies. This means that for equivatent energy
usage, the carbon emissions for both erergy types will be lower than the previous year.

it's envisaged that continued improverments to utility data collection may create scme initial volatility in SECR metrics,
whilst generating operational mnsights {0 reduce consumption in the medium-term.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

MANAGING RISK AND
INTERNAL CONTROLS

Get Living continued to strengthen its internal controls framework
during the year, which enhanced its ability to manage risk.

Overview The Executive Team has considered emerging risks and their
potential impact on the Group In this regard, one addional
principal risk has been identified. development risk, as the Group
has now taken responsibility for managing our development

The Executive Tearn analyses rnisks on a monthly basis and
reviews how these are mitigated and managed acress all areas
of Get Living. Like all businesses, the Group faces a varety of
risks that have the potential to impact its performance and projects in-house.

ability to realise vaiue in neighbourhoods. This includes external

factors that may arise from the markets in which the Group Principal risks heat map

operates, government policy. regulation and general economic Residual risk (assessed after ‘Existing Controls’)
conditions, as well as internai risks that arise from the way in
which the Group 15 managed and structures Its operations.
Risks are considered as a fundamenta: part of decisior making,
determiming strategy and considering new opportunities.

The Group has a range of internal controls and operational
procedures that are desigred to effectively manage risk, but it s
recognised that risk cannot be totally elirminated. A Risk Register
1s maintained and updated monthly by the Executive Team with
contribution from senior maragement. It Includes current and
future mitigations of the identified risks, as well as potentia:
oppoertunities, ard I1s discussed at each quarterly Board meeting.
Our principal risks consist of the most significart rsks impacting
the Group and are considered across a two year timeframe,

| Alrnost certain |
0

Probable

Likelihood

The executive Team recogrises that it has limited ability to
control certain external rnsks that the Group faces, such as
government polcy, but keeps the possible iImpact of such nisks
under review, taking mitigating action where possible, and
considerrg therm as part of the overall decision-makirg process.

Possible

!

The Audit Committee 1s responsibie for reviewing effectiveness
of the Group’'s Internal controis and risk management systemns
on behalf of the Beard.

Unlikely
m
T

T Miror | Moderate | Major i Severe

Outlook impact

Our risk assessment has evolved over the past twelve months
tc address the new and emerging risks largely driven by the
MACrO-_CONDMIe environment, 2022 saw unprecedenled
global shifts caused by the war in Ukraine and post-lockdown
econormic supply constraints resulting . sharp inflationary
increases and a cost of iving crisis with soarng energy prices.
UK political instability and policy changes led to interest rate
volabiity and the largest single-meeting increase n the Bank
of England Base Rate in 30 years, disrupting financial markets
towards the end of 2022 and beyond. We will contirue to
focus on the risks relevant to the Ger Living business which
have the highest likelihood to adversely impact operations
and/or prevent value growth, the cost of lving crsis and
ncreasing energy costs iImpacting on BtR market demand;
economic decline and hugh cost of lending on property values
ard avallability of capital; industry regulation and cost inflation
constraining revenue growth and operational efficiencies
preventing attractive mmvestor returns.

Market

Financing and capital markets
Sustainability

Cyber security and technology
People

Regulatory

Health and safety

I OmMmQoonwd»

Deaveiopment
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A

Market

Residual risk rating
High

@ Increase

Inherent risk rating
High

@ increase

Risk description

Declire In market conditions, reduction In demand for UK
real estate. changes in PRS consurmer behaviour, changes in
political policy regarding BtR homes, increased competition
and interruptions due to other development activities and
geopoltical Issues that may adversely affect the Group's
portfolic valuation and performance.

Commentary on risk in the year

Despite headwinds of rising inflation and interest rates increasing
the cost of Iving In the UK, the BtR sector experenced another
record-breaking year in terms of investrment, with over £4 3 killior
irvasted i 2022* Demand in the sector has continued to far
outstrip supply supperting pricirg growth and mitigating the
valuation risk by offsetting yield pressure. The PRS market
shows resilience in the inflationary environment as It provides
more flexibility and a lower financial commitment compared
to home ownership

An expanding portfolio helps to mitigate against changing

factors that mignt increase barners to entry Get Living

opened Portlands Place in August 2022, adding a further

524 new homes to the heart of East Vilage in addition

to a further 2838 homes laurchirg at New Maker Yards in

Salford In June 2022 We contirue to see development

expansion with the Group Increasing its portfofio value as

a result of significant capital expenditure; Newton Place

15 due to reach practical completion r the second half of

2023, whilst Elephant and Castle Town Centre 1s expected

to launch in 2026,

Mitigation

* Get Living has established a Pricing Committes in the year
charred by the Head of Portfolio Management which meets
monthly and sets the PRS priaing taking into account external
factors such as enquiry ievels, reasons for move outs and
generai market condrtions

= We proactively keep 1in tn date with and react accordingly to
changes to relevant legisiation including potential government
rert controls or similar imitations through active engagement
with policy makers, industry bodies and professional advisors,
the Renters’ Reform Bill 1s being actively reviewed,

s We continually strive to understand the needs of the
customer and communicate with residents through customer
satisfaction surveys.

= We nvest in markeling campaigns to ensure & clear and
competitive market position.

* rttos Awww.savils couk/research_articies/229130/338547-0

Financing and capital markets

Residual risk rating
Medium

@ No change

Inherent risk rating
Medium

@ Increase

Risk description

Inability to raise appropnate equity or debt as required to
meet the needs of the business. Changing capital market
conditions could drnive adverse movement In Interest rates
and have a negative impact on property valuations and
locan covenants

Commentary on risk in the year

Resilience in the PRS sector and swift recovery post-pandemic
evidenced by high occupancy, collection rates and rental growth
provides corfidence to existing and potential lenders.

Debt markets were volatile in the period with nsing nterest rates
and a reduction in the avallabiiity of finance We were significantly
protected from rising interest rates through hedaing our floating
rate facilities.

The Portlands Place development loans, with a total balance of
£163 O million at the year end, are due to mature in Septermber
2023 The refinancing of this debt 1s in progress with strong
lender interest and we anticipate closing this refinancing n
advance of the development lcan matunty dates

Looking further akead to March 2024, the £32.6m New

Maker Yards Phase 1 debt facility will require refirancing

whilst the £64.8m New Maker Yards Phase 2 facility will

require refinancing uniess an option Is taken to exterd

the facility for ore more year

Mitigation

» The compasition of the Group's debt portfol.o 1s manitored
to ensure compliance with covenarts and continued
avallability of funds.

» The Board 15 reported to on a quarterly basis with regards
to current debt. covenant compliance ard projections of
future funding reguirements to ensure early warning of
potential 1ssues

» We engaqe with debr arhnsars ang londers proactively,
keeping abreast of market trends which feed into
underwrting assumptions.

= We approach potential lenders well In advarce of
a refinancing requirement to reduce refinancing nsk

Annual Report 2022
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

C

Sustainability

Inherent risk rating Residual risk rating
High High

@ No change @ Increase

Risk description

Impacts of environmental events due
to climate change, ESG requirements
on operations and net zero carbon
obligations. A faiure to anticipate and
respond to environmental risks could
damage our reputation and cause
disruption In our operations. Growing
nvestor and lender preferences for
sustainable properties may impact the
Group's ability to meet current and
future financing commitments.

Commentary on risk in the year

Work s in progress to guanrtify the capital
commitments required to align with the
Carbon Risk Jeal Estate Monitor (CRREM)
decarbonisation pathways. We are also
nvesting in training to Improve awarenass
of chmate sensitivities and impacts

Get Living was awarded the top 5-star
GRESE rating for the third year running
for the operational portfolio in recogmtion
of our sustainabiity performance

Mitigation

+« Get Living's £5G Steerng Committee
considers sustamnabiity, including
physical and transitional chimate
risk, and :s sponsored by the Chief
Operating Officer with support
from the Head of Net Zero.

Physical climate risks are monitored
at an operational level and addressed
N development with screening ard
mitigation measures assessed through
flond righ agpeearmonis Mo ok
and wind safety studies and thermal
comfort standards.

Climate tramsitior risks are addressed
through rebust new build stardards and
improvements to the energy efficiency
of existing nerghbourhocds

* We invest In £56 focused traiming and
personal objectives for employees

D

Cyber security
and technology

Inherent risk rating Residual risk rating
High Medium nigh

@ No change @ No change

Risk description

Critical system interruptions through
systermns fallure or major T security
breaches could lead to exposure or
loss of data held by the Group, leading
to operational disruption, reputational
damage and potential regulatory fines.

Commentary on risk in the year
Get Living has progressed the
recommendations from the latest
Cyber Audit report. This has
strengthened Get Living's operating
position by adopting best practice
learrmngs in the NCSC guidance and
implementing recommendations.

Get Living 15 now conducting detailed

analysis and threat assessment which

allows for real-time Al response o

threats and 24 -hour monitoring.

Mitigation

s Get Living operates in a secure
encrypted cloud environment
monitored around the clock by
experierced service partners and
alt systems are fully backeg up.

= Detailed analysis and threat
assessment 15 conducted through
Darktrace which allows for real-time
Al response to threats and 24-hour
monitorirg of both on site and
remote works and activities.

¢« The Group relhes on key systems
to ensure operational efficiency.

= fguiar Uybet Audils are carried
out by third-party firms.

Get Living PLC
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People

Inherent risk rating Residual risk rating
Low Low

@ No change @ No cnange

Risk description

Group performance could suffer due to
the loss of key staff through resignation
or extended periods of absance Falure
to attract and retain a diverse workforce
could impact performance as it 1s key
that our employees can connect with
our residents, communities and

wider stakehelders

Commentary on risk In the year

A HR-led policy review during 2022
resulted In an enhancement to our
sickness and parental leave Regular
events and meetings led by the
Executive Team were implemented

in the year to increase top-down
communication and encourage business
engagement. We continued to promote
health and wellbeing across the
business through a number of events
and activities herd during the year

Mitigation
= We provide learning and deveiopment
support for all employees as well
as specific leadership traimng
and executive coaching for
identified taient

» Diversity and inclusion data s
continuously monitored, including
gender pay gaps

+ Appraisal structures are
In place to support employee
performanrce, development
internal career progression,

+ Company policies and our employee
value propositior are regularly
reviewed to ensure they are relevant
for our pecple

* Employee feedback 1s collected
through surveys and averts and we
promote wellbeing activities

» Executive remuneration and long-term
incentive plans are aligned with Group
performance and overseer by the
Remuneration Committee



F

Regulatory

inherent risk rating
High

@ No change

Risk description

Failure to monitor, adhere to and be
proactive to changes n the legislative or
regulatory environment, including the REIT
regirme, TISE listing rules, GDPR, bullding
regulat:ons, rental reform, consumer
protection law and Association of
Residential Letting Agents (AR|_AY could
lead to cperational disruption, complants,
reputational damage and regutatory fines.

Residual risk rating
Mediym

@ No cnange

Commentary on risk in the year
Quarterly governance review meetings
were held throughout the year to actively
rronitor regulatory compliance and review
forthcoming legislation

Get Living engages Savills ta ensure legal
ard regulatary compliance across all
neighbourhoods.

During the year two senior legal counsels
joined the team and subseguent to

the year end Get Living appomted a
Head of Tax

Get Living 1s working with acivisors to
rmonitor and assess the risk of potential
rentar reform reguiation, in ralation to both
current and future governments.

Mitigation

¢ Regular advice is received from
professional advisors ard we actively
engage with industry bodies to ensure
in-house knowledge 1s Maintained.

* We have invested in legal and corporate
affairs tearms who proactively monitor
e e, ruluvantt logmiamsy amd
conduct horizon scans to ensure the
Group 1s kept abreast of potential and
actual regulatory changes. A programime
of engagement with key policy makers
is ongoINg.

= We are conducting a review of consumer
protection laws relevant to the residential
sector to ensure existing processes and
procedures are fuily compliant Action
ponts with traming will ba rolled out,
audited and updated on an annual basis

G

Health and safety

Residual risk rating
Medium

@ No change

Inherent risk rating
Hign

@ No change

Risk description
A major heaith and safety incident could
lead 1o loss or inury to residents, staff or

contractors as well as reputational damage,

fimancial loss and potential lability. We
particularly consider fire safety and our
responsibility to keep our residents safe
and ensure our buildings are compliant
with the latest bulding safety regulations.

Commentary on risk in the year

Get Living's Cperations Director oversees
and implements H&S policies with

the assistance of a dedicated Health

and Safety Manager. A health and

safety matrix has been developed and

impiemented across all operational areas.

The Group has continued to undertake
building surveys and rnisk assessmenrts
o igentify areas where fire safety
remediation or improvement works are
required to our buldings, commencing
necessary works based on advice from
internal and external experts.

Mitigation

* Quarterly health and safety
meetings are held and chaired by
the CEQ attended by a number of
representatives across the business.

= Each Get Living building undergoes an
annual health and safety audit as well
as a fire and generai risk assessment
with actions documented.

= Development project health and
safety responsibility 15 managed by
principa! conlractors who contrel
sites, deliver traming and rmanage safe
construction ervironments.

» Get Living has corvened a senior
managerment weekly forum to discuss
and provide direction on matters
relating to the fire safety of the
exterral wall corstruction of builldings
within the Get Living portfolo.

* Advice Is recaived from industry
experts at least on a weekly basis.
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H

Development

Residual risk rating
Medium

{Owva

Inherent risk rating
Medium low

O NAA

Risk description

Inability to deliver guality BtR assets
with flexible and sustainabie designs
on time and within budget could have
a significant impact on performarce
and future growth plans. In the current
environment, securing a contractor
1s challenging and construction cost
inflation makes it challenging to make
projects viable

Commentary on risk in the year
The Group established an in-housa
gevelopment team during the year
bringing a weaith of experience and
expertise of project managerment
and construction.

Get Living was largely protected from
the adverse impacts of the inflationary
environmenrt on construction costs due
to forward funding arrangements and
fixed pree direct deveiopment projects.

Mitigation

*« Get Living has an in-house development
management team with significanrt
experience and strong relationships
with third-party development and
constructior adviscrs.

* The Group partners with reputable
contractors known to deliver
auality schemes

* \We actively monitor cost inflation,
interest rates, rents and y-elds as
well as analyse trends to identify rew
pakwnilidl pislin an they smerge and
react accorcingly
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Operating performance

The 2022 results delivered a strong parformance for Get Living.
wWe made significant progress through further investment in
developments and capturing strong rental dernand which
cantributed to sigmificant rental growth and high stabilised
occupancy levels

Rental sncome of £83.4 million for the year represents an
increase of 30 7% when compared to 2021 (£63.8 millien)
The exceptional leasing performance and delivery of

new pipeline led to net rental income of £62.6 million,

an increase of 37.9% versus 2021 (£45.4 milhon)

We continued to invest In the improverent of homes and
neighbourhoods within our portfolio, with the continuation
of a refresh program upgrading the gqualty of our existing
homes in East village

Get Living's costs of cperations continue to be carefully
managed through control of overhead costs Total costs as
a proportion of Income reduced with the Group's EPRA cost
ratio being 65.6% (31 December 2021: 73.2%).

Subsequent to the year end the Group made a paymenrt of
£18.8 million to HMRC as part of an agreement signed 1n
March 2023 to settle an ongoing tax enquiry. see note 18 of
the financial staterments.

Development programme

Portlands Place opered its doors in August 2022, aading 524
new homes to the heart of East Village and closed the year
79% occupied raefiecting the strong gemand In June 2022, 289
further homes were launched at New Maker Yards ard closed
the year 94% occupied, iIncreasing our total homes to 821 1n
Middlewood Locks, Salford.

The Newton Place deveiopment has made substantial
progress durnng the year ahead of expected completion

ir 2023, whilst construction at Eiephant ard Castle Town
Centre commenced 1n January 2022 and 15 progressing weli,

Ail of this contributed to a 13.8% ircrease in total partfolio value

to £2.73 billion (31 Decerber 2021: £2.40 bilion).

Ir additior to cur ir-progress developments n Lewisham
and Elephart ard Castle, the Group has a strong pipeline of

opportunities to further grow the number of homes it provides.

Get Living's continued investment will support the long-term
demand for a more flexible and modern lifestyle which renting
offers, as the cost of home ownership increases

66

Summarised results

Year ended Year ended
31 December 3L December
2022 2021
£m Frm
Rental income 83.4 63.8
Direct property costs (26.5) (24.8)
Management fees (Included
within direct property costs) 5.7 6.4
Net rentat iIncome 62.6 45.4
Other incame 15.8 5.9
Other cost of sales (9.5) —
Management fees (included
within direct property costs) (5.7) (6.4
Administrative expeanses (35.7) (28.3
Operating profit before
revaluation 275 17.6
Net financing costs (36.7) (27.0)
EPRA earnings (9.2) (9.4)
Revaluation gain 136.0 £51.9
Fair value gain on derivatives 25.6 5.8
IFRS profit before tax 152.4 58.3
EPRA cost ratio
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2621
£m £m
Direct property costs 26.5 24.8
void costs (1.8 —
Management fees (5.7) 6.4
Administrative expenses 35.7 283
EPRA costs 54.7 46.7
Rental :ncorme 83.4 63.8
EPRA Cost Ratio 65.6% 73.2%

We made significant progress
through further investment in
developments and capturing

strong rental demand.”
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Business review continued

Property portfolio - Valuations

CBRE independently valued the portfono at market value in
accordance with RICS Valuatior Standards The aggregate total
value of the Group's property portfolio totalled £2 73 billion
as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: £2 40 biilion).
The increase 1s driven by a valuation gan of £136 O million
inthe year, £146.3 milhion of development spend and capital
invested 1IN asset management projects This represents
a13.8% increase 1N total portfolio value.

31 December 31 December

2022 2020

£m £m

Investment properties 2,223.5 2,058.7
Properties in the course

of developrment 435.7 3075

Total investment properties owned 2,659.2 2,366.2

Trading property 6B.6 5.6

Total properties owned 2,727.8 2,401.8

Capital commitments 546.6 669.0

Total completed and committed 3,374.4 3.070.8

Debt facilities

At the beginning of the year furndirg draws commenced
on Newton Place and Elephant ana Castle Town Centre
development debt facilities to progress with construction

The Portlands Place development loans, with a total balance

of £163.0 million at the year end, are due to mature in
September 2023 The refinancing of this debt 15 it progress
with strong lender interest and we anticipate closing thes
refinancing ir advance of the matunty date of the development
loans. Looking further ahead to March 2024 the £32.6 million
New Maker Yards Phase 1 debt facilty wil regquire refinancirg
whilst the £64.8 milien New Maker Yards Phase 2 facility will
require refimancing Jnless an option s taken to extend the
facility for one more year.

Whilst there has been an :rcrease in the cost of borrowing,
Get Living has benefitted from holding lorg term debt at
favourable fixaed irterast rates, with minimal exposure on
floating rate debt facilities due to hedging n place. Of the
total external loan baiance at 31 December 2022, 69 2% has
fixed interest, whiist the floating rate debt was 96 4% hedged

Average cost of debt in 2022 15 3.2% (31 December 2021 2.7%)}
and weayl ileu averaye toatunly uf Jebit s 6.5 years (31 Cucerobas
2021 7.8 years).

Total debt

At 31 December 2022, the Group had access to debt faclities
totailing £1,722.8 milhon (3" December 2021 £1.7210 milhon)
and drawnr debt totalling £1.352.9 million (31 December 2027
£1177.4 million). £66.5 midlion (31 December 2021 £67 2 milion)
of free cash was held as at the year end, resulting 1n Group net
debt of £1286 4 milkon {31 December 2021 £1110 2 mullion).

The Group had two assets on site under construction at the
year end with committed develepment costs of £546.6 million
(31 December 2021: £669.0 milhien).

Headroom on the Group's available debrt facilities totals
£376.9 milion (31 December 2027 £543.6 million)

The Group's aggregate Loan to Vaiue ratic as at 31 December
2022, including all debt facilities, was 47.2% (31 December
2027 46 2%)

Cutlook

Foliowing a record financial performance in 2022 with strong
rental iIncome growth, Get Living Is well pasitioned for further
growth and success with a strong baiance sheet, competitively
oriced debt and supportive investors

Subsequent to the year end, Australian superannuation
fund Aware Super has exchangea with QD UK Hoidings
LP to purchase their 22% stake in Get Living and join our
investor group which 1s @ huge vote of confidence to
our business.

We acknowledge the risks associated with upcoming
refinancing and other external headwinds and are confident
that we are well equipped to face the chatlenges ahead

We will continue to capitalise on rental growth as demanrd

s expected to continue into 2023 and look for opportunities
to drive efficiencies i our operaticns and deliver strong
returns te our iInvestors.

2023 will see the launch of Newton Place with Eiephant and
Castle Town Centre following in 2026, unlocking further
growth to support our ambition to realise value through
coperational scale.

Dan Greenslade
Chief Financial Officer
27 April 2023

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board of Directors
and signoed on ite bohalf by

Vames Bosdle

James Boadle
Director
27 April 2023

Get Living PLC

46



COR

GOV

ZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZ



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance report

Enhanced and adaptable governance,
supporting Get Living's strategy.

Introduction

tffective corporate governance i1s a key reguirement for
the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2022, under
The Compames {(Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018,
Get Living has applied the Wates Corporate Governance
Principles for Large Private Companies (the "Wates Principles™)
as I1ts framework for disclosure regarding its corporate
governance arrangements We continue to support our
business to deliver on our strategy 1n an ever-changing
regulatory environment. Corporate governance at Get Living
15 about running the busingss In the right way 10 order to
realise value 1n our neighbourhoods for the benefit of all
our stakeholders and s treated as a core discipline that
complements our need to improve the performance of the
business cn behalf of our stakehoiders In this section we
orovide details of our Board members, the Executive Tearn
and the rale of the Board and its Committees.

The Board

The Board currently comprises three Non-executive Directors,

all of whom are independent from the management team of
the Group The Board 1s responsible for setting the overall
Group strategy and investmert policy, monitoring Group
performance ard authonsing all property acquisitions

To assist it In aischarging these responsibilities, it receives
regular finarcial and operational reports from the Executive
Team. It also monitors updates on regulatory 1ssues and
corporate governarce rules and guidelines on a reguiar basis.

The Board meets at least four times per year and has adopted
a schedule of reserved matters for deciston making.

The Board has established an Audit Committee and a
Remuneration Committee and continues to support the
ongoing development of these Committees in support of
the adoptior of the Wates Corporate Governance Principles.

Accountability and audit

The Board's responsibilities with regard to the financial
statements are set cut from page 67 The Independent
auditar’s report 1s given on pages 60 to 66.

Internal control

The Board recognises ts ultimate responsibility for the
Group's system of internal control It s actively developing
procedures for identifying, evaluating and managing risks that
the Group 15 exposed to and has identified risk management
controls in the key areas of business objectives, accounting,
compliance and operations as areas for the continuat review
These procedures have operated throughout the year and

up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and audited
financial statements. It has, however, to be understood that
systems of Internai control, however carefully designed,
operated and supervised. car provide only reasonable and
not absolute assurance agairst matenal misstatement or loss.

A description of the Group's operations and the strategy
which it employs to maximisa returns whilst minimising risks
can be found on pages 40 to 43

Our governance structure

The Board

Responsible for the «ong-term
success of the business

Development of strategy

Deterrmines the nature and extert
of significant rsks

Audit Committee

Operating Committee

T

{
Remuneration Committee

Oversees quality of
firarcial reporting

Provides assurance on intarnal
controls, risk managemeant
i and audit processes

Approves routine business matters
between Board meetings

Sets remuneration policy

Approves level of remuneration ard
Board appomtments

Ensures appropriate balance of skills
and experence o Board

fach of the above Committees report on their activities to the Board

Get Living PLC
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Wates Principles application

The Board considers that Get Living successfully applies the Wates
Principles, through the corporate governance practices described above.

Principle One

Purpose and leadership

The Board implements a five-year plan which supports our
vision to bulld the exemplary UK BtR platform dehlvering
quality homes to our residents whilst contributing to local
communities and ensuring that Get Living values, strateqy
and culture align with our overall purpose. An annual Board
Strategy Away Day has been introduced in the year, which
shares the vision, purpose and mission of the Board and
provides an open forum to discuss the strategic direction
and expected challenges and opportunities. Detalls of the
Board Sirategy are set out on pages 14 to 16.

Princinte Three
Director responsibilities

The Beoard meets on a quarterly basis and has delegated the
day-to-day operation of the business to the Executive Team
The Executive Team meets at least monthly to review the
operational performance of the bus.ress

The Board and Executive Team have a clear understanding of
their accountability and responsibihties Te assist in discharging
their duties, the Board has established an Aucit Committee
and Remuneration Committee and has deiegated appropriate
levels of authority to the Executive Team The delegated
authorities and reserved matter procedures support effective
decision-making and ndependent challenge. The Group

has clear corporate governance practices in place, with clear
lines of accountability and responsibility. Detars of the Board
Cornrmittees are set out an pages 52 to 55,

Principle Five
Remuneration

The Buend promuoles execulive remunerglion structures
angned to the long-term sustainable success of the Group,
taking into account pay and conditions elsewhere in the
business. The Remuneration Committee’s role 1s to seak
ard retain the approprate calibre of peonle on the Board
and Executive Team for the Group and recommends
remuneration leveis to the Board consistent with prevaiting
market conditions, peer group companies and roles and
responsibiities. Detaills of the Directors’ pay pohcy 's provided
in the Remuneration Commrttee Report or page 55

Principle Two
Board composition

The Board currently comprises three Non-executive Directors
and an ndependent Charr, all of whom are independent from
the management team of the Group The Remuneration
Committee reviews the structure. size and composition of the
Board and its committees and makes recommendations with
regard to any changes considered necessary in the
identification and nermination of new Directors, the
reappoeintment of existing Directors and appointment of
members to the Board's cormmittees. It also acts as a forum to
assess the roles of the existing Directors in office to ensure that
the Board and Executive Team are balanced n terms of skilis,
knowledge, experience and diversity. The Chair is responsible
for the effectiveness of the Board. Detaills of the Board and
Executive Tearm composition are set out on pages 50 and 51,

Principle Four

Opportunity and risk

Strategic opportunities are identified through the five-year
strategy planning process which includes mput frorm all
areas of the business. The five-year plan is reviewed and
acknowledged by the Board on an annual basis.

The Executive Team regularly reviews risks and how these
are mitigated and managed across all areas of Get Living's
business activities Risk 1s considered at every level of the
Group's operations and the rsk management process ensures
prompt assessment and response to risk issues that may be
identified at any level of the Group's business. The Board's
approach to oversight of the dentification ang mitigation of
r:sks can be found in the Strategic Report on pages 40 to 43,

Principle Six
Stakeholder relationships and engagement

AT Ger Living, hstening to and engaging ettectively with our
stakeholders 1s key to ensuring the nght decisions are made,
As a result, the relationships with our stakehoiders are key to
the long-term success of the Group The Board and Executive
Team are responsible for overseeing meaningfui engagement
with stakeholders, including employees, and having regard o
their views when taking decisions. Detalls of the Company’s
stakeholder engagerment are set out in the 5172 staterment

on pages 28 and 29
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James Boadle
Non-executive Director

James i1s Senior Vice
Prasident, Europe and a
member of the European
leadership team at Oxford
Properties ("Oxford"} Oxford
1s the real estate arm of
OMERS, one of the largest
Canadian Pension plans

He 15 resporsible for -ogist.cs
and residential strategies
across Europe, as weil as

the development of Oxford's
wider European strategy

Jarmes has over 15 years’
track record In the real
estate sector with global
transact'on experience
across all major asset classes,
including residential, office,
retaill and inaustrial, and has
led Oxford's involvement into
the UK residential prvate
rented sector through
DOOR, Pricr to jcining
Oxford, James spent sever
years at real estate advisory
firms Savills and CBRE

James Is a member of

the investment Property
Forum (IPF) and the Rovyal
Institution of Chartered
Surveyors {(RICS)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Mabel Tan
Non-executive Director

Mabel 15 Director of Asset
Management for Qatari Diar
Europe, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Qatari Diar
Real Estate Investment
Company which 1s owned
by the Qatar. Investment
Autharity, the sovereign
wealth fund of the State

of Qatar. It 15 the specialist
real estate arm of the Qatar
Investrment Authornty with
a significant presencea in
the UK and the US.

Mabel has over 20 years’
expernience in finance and
investments. Prigr to |Qining
Qatar Diar in 2008, Mabei
developed new commercial
projects, including JVs and
acguisittion gpportunities
for Group RC1 a division

of Wyndham Worldwide.

Mabet 1s a board member
of various entities in the UK
and Montenegro.
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Rafael Torres Villalba
Non-executive Director

Rafael 1s a Senjor Portfolio
Manager at APG Asset
Management, focusing on
APG's Eurgcpean residential
investment. APG s the
pension fund manager for
the Dutch civil servants
pension fund ABP

Rafael has been working for
APG's real estate group for
more than 20 years, working
on both Asian and European
real estate After heading the
European real estate team
for close to 15 years, he has
taken raesponsibnlity for some

of the residenbial investments

in APG's portfolio His skiflset
entanls both transactional

as well as portfolio
ranagement skills

Rafael 1s & board member
of the Spanish PRS Socimi
Vivenio and Oslo based
shopping centre company
Steen & Strom
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Jeremy Heisby
Non-executive Charr

Jeremy provides strategic
advice and support for
Get Living as 1t continues
to deliver on 1ts ambitious
growth plans

Jeremy has immensely deep
rea estate and operational
expertise gained from his
40-year tenure at Savills,

1 years of which were spent
as Chief Executive, prior

to his retirement 1n 2019



The Executive Team

LEA

N

Rick de Blaby
Chief Executive QOfficer

Rick joined Get Living ir 2017
as Executive Vice Chairman
before being appointed

as Chief Executive Officer

N 2019 He s focused on
growing Get Living's platform
across the UK, creating new
BtR neighbourhoods that
change the way we live

In cities.

With a demenstrated track
record of regenerating urban
areas, Rick has 40 years of
real estate development

and investment experience
across both residential and
commercial property, Priar
to Get Living, he was CEQ
of United House Group and
CEQ of MEPC,

PR
-MPOW

Dan Greenslade
Chief Financial Officer

Dan joined Get Living as
Chief Financial Officer m
2022 and 1s responsible for
all aspects of Get Living's
financral management,
reporting and debt strategy.
With more than 20 years

of finance experience,

Dan brings a deep track
record of bullding a robust
finance operation to support
a company during its
growth phase.

Before joimng Get Living,
Dan was Drirector of Group
Finance at Logiceor, a
lFAAING CUrQRQAAN @wner
and manager of logistics
real estate, where he spent
more than five years. Pricr
to Logicor, Dan spent over
four years at Quintain He
qgualifiea as a Chartered
Accountant at PwC

Annual Report 2022
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Ailish Christian-West
Chief Operating Qfficer

Allish was appointed as
Director of Real Estate
ar Get Living 1n 2020
before becaming Chief
Operating Officer in
2022, She 15 accountable
for Get Living's existing
£2.8 billion build-to-rent
portfolio. including retail
and public realm space
She provides strategic
leadership to operational
asset management,
developments and ESG

Allish has more than

20 years' experience in
1 vl mslalo. frrior o
Get Living, she was Head
of Property at _andsec
and during the year was
President of Revo, the
placemaking and retail
property organisation,



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Audit Committee report

Stephen Murphy (Chair)

MONITORING

Members of the Audit and Risk Committee
{the “Committee”)
During the year, two meaetings were heaid.

Members of the Committee

* Stephen Murphy (as Chair)

* Nick Sisshing (replacing Ahson Lambert effective
18 October 2022)

* Rafael Torres Viilalba
Responsibilities

The main roies and responsibilities of the Audit
Committee include:

monitoring the integrity of the Group’s annual and interm
financial statements, ensuring they are farr, balanced and
understandable and reviewing sigmficant financial reporting
issues and Judgements contained theren;

reviewing the Group's systems of financial control and
risk management;

*

making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
of the external auditor ang approvirg its remureration and
terms of engagement;

monitoring and reviewing the externai auditor's
ndependence, objectivity and effectiveness, taking into
account professicnal and regulatory requirements; and

annually corsidering the need for an nterral audit function

CFPORTING AND RISK

Report on the Committee’s activities

during the year
During the year, the Committee discharged s
rasponsibiities by:

reviewing the Group's draft financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and draft unaudited interm financial
staterments for the perod to 30 June 2022 prior to discussion
and approval by the Board, and reviewing the external
auditor’s report on the annual financial statements;

advising the Board on whether the Annual Report s farr,
balanced and undarstandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's performance,
pasition, business model and strategy:

reviewing the continuing appropriateness of the Group's
accounting policies;

considering the potential imphcations of forthcoming
changes in accounting standards for the Group,

reviewing the auditor's plan for the audit of the Group's
December 2022 financial statements, receiving and
reviewing confirmations of auditor Independence and
approving the terms of engagement and proposed
fees for 2022,

considering the gualifications, expertise, resources and
independence of the auditor through reviews of .ts reports
ana performance; and

recommending the reappointment of the auditor.
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Significant accounting matters

The Committee considers all financial information published
in the Annuai Report and unaudited interim report and
consicers accounting policies adopted by the Group,
presentation and disclosure of financial informaticn and, in
particular, the key judgements made 1in preparing the financial
statements For December 2077, the primary ricks identified
were in relatron to the valuation of the property portfolio
(ncluding the net realisable value of trading property), gong
concern and revenue recognition

Valuation of the property portfolio

The Group has property assets of £2,727.8 mdlion,
including nvestrment property of £2,659.2 million and trading
property of £68 6 million, as detalled 1n the Group balance
sheet. As explained :n note 12 to the financial statements,
investment property 15 iIndependently valued by CBRE in
accordance with RICS valuation standards in the United
Kingdom and 1AS 40 investment Property The Audit
Carmmittee reviewed and discussed with management the
Judgements and assumptions made 1N respect of the property
valuation, reviewed the valuer's report and the auditor’'s
comments thereon, and concluded that the valuation 1s
appropriate.

Net realisable value of trading property

The Group's trading property is stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value ("NRV™"). NRV Is calculated with
reference to the expected seling price, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale, discounted to the net prasent valug. The Audit
Committee reviewed and discussed with management the
Jjudgements and assumptiors made in respect of the net
realisable value of trading property and concluded that the
valuation s appropriate

Going concern

The Committee has reviewed Management's gomng concern
assessment for the period to 30 June 2024 1n order to
assess the requirements of the Group over that period and
the appropriateness of adepting the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the full year financial statements

Despite the buoyant rental market, driven in part by a market
supply and derrand imbalance, the going concern assessment
has been performed agamst the backdrop of a subdued globai
economic cutlook. The Directors have therefore considerad

a base case a downside scenario, and performed reverse
stress testing, in consideration of the potentiat future rsks of
econormic uncertainty and further recession related to macro-
economic events; the cnsis in Ukraine and aftermath of the
global pandemic driving global supply constraints leading to
high inflat.or and a cost of ving crisis, along with high interest
rates as a result of UK political instability and policy changes
The Directors have also considered the payrment subsequent
to the year end of £18 9m to HMRC, and the receipt of E7.0m
funding from shareholders in March 2023 in the going concern
assessment. The Directors also evaluated potential events and
conditions beyond the period ending 30 June 2024 that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, with no sigmificant transactions or events of
matenal uncertainty dentified.

The Directors are confident in the Group's ability to refinance
debt facilities expiring during the going concern period.

The Directors have held discussions with @ number of potential
lenders on the refinancings and a senes of competitively
priced indicative guotes have been received (subject to

credit committee approvai). The Directors are confident that
the market appelile for lendirg agamsl PRS assets remains
strong and that Get Living PLC 1s weill placed to secure the
reguired financing an both the Portlands Place and the New
Maker Yards Phase 1 and Phase 2 debt facimes which fall

due In the going concern period. However, If the Group 15 not
successful in refinancing the debt facitities, it will be rehant

on shareholders providing funds to support the repayment

of existing debt facilities, in addition to the shareholder
funding assumed In the base case scenario. The Directors have
therefore concluded that there 1s a material uncertanty with
respect ta refinancing the Portltands Place, New Maker Yards
Phase | and New Maker Yards FPhase 2 debt facilities which may
cast significant doubt over the Group and Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

The Board believe that, subject to the material uncertainty
relating to achieving the refinancing described above, the
Group will be able to manage its business risks successfuily,
and the Group's forecasts and projections show that the Group
will be able to operate within the level of its avallable hquidity
and covenant reguirements Accordingly, the Directors continue
to adopt the goirg concern basis in preparing the annuat
report and financial staterments, however, the matters described
above result In the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt over the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern

Revenue recognition

The Group recognised revenue of £39 2 million of which

£83.4 miillicn relates to rental iIncome. The Audit Committee
reviewed and discussed with management revenue recognition
and the auditor's comments thereon and corctuded that the
revenue recognition s appropriate.

Review of risk management

and internal control processes

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
adeguacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk management
processes and systems of internal control,

Foilowing 11s own assessment and the maragement report
and the work it performed on risk management and irternal
congrol procadures, the Committee betieves that the key
risks facing the business have been correctly identified and
disclosed 'n the Risk management section of the Strategic
Report on pages 40 to 43,

In addition, the Committee believes that, although robust, the
Group’s systems of interral control are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate, the risk of fallure to achieve the Group's
business objectives. Therefore, the system can provide cnly
reasonable and not abscolute assurance aganst mater'al
misstaternent or lass
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Audit Committee report continued

Financial reporting

The Board 1s responsible for the Annual Report. The Audit
Committee 15 asked to review the Annual Report and consider
whether it s fair, balanced and understandabie and provides
the necessary nformation for shareholders to assess the Group's
position, performance, business model ana strategy.

Inunderlaking its assessment, the Committee considered:

» the systems and controls operated by management around
the preparation of the accounts;

» the procedures inciuded in these to bring relevant
nformation to the attention of those who prepare
the accounts,

» the consistency of the reports; and

» whether they are in accordance with the information
provided to the Board during the year.

It also considered whether the Annual Report had been written
n clear and concise language and without unnecessary
repetition of information, and that market-specific terms and
any nor-statutory measures had been adequately defined

or explained

The Audit Committee has reviewed the contents of the
December 2022 Annual Report and financial statermments and
confirmed to the Board that, in its view, the repcrt 1s fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's position,
performance, business model and strategy

Auditor independence

The Group's policy ensures independence and objectivity

of the exterral auditor and comphiance with the FRC Ethical
Standards; the Group may procure certain non-audit services
from the external auditor All other proposed engagements
must be submitted to the Committee for approval prior to
engagement. Detalls of the amounts paid to the external
additor during the year for audit and other services are set
out In note 9 to the Group financial statements

The external auditor was engaged for tax reiated services
being the only non-audit assignments during the year Its
engagement was not deemed tc compromise s objectivity
and independence as sufficient safeguards were 1n place.

Effectiveness of external auditor

The effectiveness of the audit process 1s dependent on
appropriate sudit risk identification at the start of the audit
cycle. The Committee receved from Ernst & Young LLP a
detalled audit plan, identifying its assessment of these key
risks. For 2022, the primary risks identified were in relation
1o the valuslion of the property porttolio, geing concern and
revenue recogmtion,

The Board takes responsibility for exercising judgement
when necassary 1N preparing the Annual Report and financial
statements. it prepares and reviews papers provided to the
auditor setting out its jJudgerments and approaches taken

to specific items The work undertaken by the auditor in

this area to test management’s assumptions and estimates

s challenged by the Audit Committee, which assesses the
effectiveness of the audit process through the reporting
received from Ernst & Young LLP at year end. The Committee
is satisfied with the effectiveness of the auditor and therefore
recommends its reappointment.

The Committee assesses the effectiveness of the external
auditor on an annual basis Fellowing the completion of the
December 2022 year end audit, the Committee conducted its
review and considers that the audit was appropriately planned
and scoped efficiently and effectively performed by Ernst &
Young LLP. The Committee is satisfied that Ernst & Young LLP
continued to perforrm effectively as the external auditor.

Audit tender policy

The Audit Committee will consider the need for a competitive
tender for the role of external auditor at least every ten years

and recommend to the Board If a tender process 1s felt to be

appropriate.

The tender process will be administered by the Audit
Committee which will consider whether to seek major
investors’ views on the audit firms to be invited to tender
and success critena to be used by the Group n the course
of the tender.

If a *tender 15 conducted as part of a normal tender cycle,
the imcumbent auditor wiil be mvited to participate in
the tender unless prohibited due to specific factors such
as ndependence.

The Audit Committee will make a recommendation o the
Board of 1ts preferred appointee.

The current external auditor, Ernst & Young LLP (EY) was
appointed in 2018. Graema Downes is the audit partner and
has held the role since 2022

Internal audit

The Audit Committee considers annually the requirement
for an internal audit function and the Board, on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, having regard to
the matters considerad above, has concluded that one is not
currently reguired.

The Audit Committee
27 April 2023
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Remuneration Committee report

Jeremy Helsby (Chair)

ALIGNING TO
FRFORMANC

Members of the Remuneration Committee
(the “Committee”)

During the year, four meetings were held, and these were
attended by shareholder reprasentatives.

Members of the Committee
¢ Jeremy Helsby (as Chair)

+ Mabel Tan

« James Boadle

» Rafael Torres Villalba
» Stafford Lancaster

The Remuneration Committee’s role 1s o seek and retain the
appropriate calibre of people on the Beard and Executive
Team for the Group and recommend remuneration levels

to the Board consistent with prevailing market conditions,
peer group companies and roles and responsibilities. Executive
remuneration structures are aligned to the .ong-term sustanabie
success of the Group, taking Inte accourt pay and conditions
clsewhere in the business. A recommendarion s then made
to the Beard.

The Remuneration Committee also acts as a forum to assess
the roles of the existing Directors in office to ensure that the
Board :s balanced n terms of skilis, knowledge, experience
and diversity

BUSIN

Responsibilities of the Committee
The principal responsibilities of the Commuttee are:

= setting the remuneration framework or poiicy for all
Directors, Executives and senior managers,

+ reviewing the ongoing appropriateness and relevance of the
remuneration policy;

+« withip the terms of the approved pohcy determimng the
total Indiv:dual remuneration package of each Director,
Executive and senior manager;

agreeing the policy on the recovery of expenses incurred
whilst performing duties; and

= reporting to shareholders on the implementation of the
remuneration poilicy N accordance with relevant statutory
and corporate governance requirements

Committee’s activities during the year

The Committee met four times during the year to discuss
the remuneration of Uwe Executive Team, which included
approving the grants of long-term incentive plans, setting
specific targets for the annual bonus ana reviewing progress
aganst the long term incentive pran. The Committee also
considered external, publicly avallable survey information of
remuneration ievels paid by similar companies .n making any
recommendation to the Board The Committee agreed that
there 1s no remuneration for the Directors for the year This
15 In line with previous reporting periods.

The Remuneration Committee
27 April 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Directors’ report

The Directors present their Annual Report including audited
Group financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022
This report should be read together with the Corporate
Governance Report on page 48

Directors
The Drectors who corved during the year, and al Lhe dale of
this report, were:

+ Jarres Boadle (appointed 17 October 2019)
« Mabel Tan (appointed 18 August 2020)
» Rafael Torres Villalba (appointed 30 June 2021)

Future developments

In the coming year, the Directors will continue the proactive
investment and management of the 8tR schemes and

will continue to work on the bullding phases of its 8tR
developments including Newton Place and Elephant and
Castle Town Centre. Detalls of these developments are
included n the Portfolio Review section from pages 26 to 27

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, The Directors have prepared cash flow
farecasts for the period to 30 June 2024 1n order to 555€ss
the reguirements of the Group and Company over that
period (the "going concern period™). Despite the buoyant
rental market, driven in part by a market supply ara
demand imbalance, the going concern assessment has
been performed against the backdrop of a subdued global
economic outiook. The Directors have therefore considered
a base case, a downside scenario, and performed reverse
stress testing, in consideration of the potential future risks of
economic uncertainty and further recession related to macro-
economic events; the crisis in Ukraine and aftermath of the
glebal pardemic driving global supply constraints leading
to high inflation and a cost of iving ¢crisis, along with high
mterest rates as a result of UK political instability and policy
changes The Directors have also considered the paymert
subseguent to the year end of £18.9m to HMRC, and tre
recerpt of £70m funding from shareholders in March 2023
N the going concern assessment

In the base case scenario

The Directors have performed a detalled going concerr
review based on the Board approvea 2023 budget, which
reflects current trading trends at high occupancies for
stabilised assels, o slrong laurch of lease-up assets and
cortinued strong rental growth, with revenue on stabilised
assets forecast to Increase approximatety in ine with
inflationary trends between 2022 and 2023 The impact of
inflation on costs over the going concern perod has been
incorporated inte this scenaro. Key assumptiors in the
base case scenaro include:

+ The Group successfully refinances the debt facilities on
its Portlands Place asset ahead of the maturity date of
September 2023 and 1ts New Maker Yards Phase 1 and
Phase 2 debt facilities ahead of their matunty date in
March 2024. The Group has the option to extend the New
Maker Yards Phase 2 facility for one year to March 2025,
subject to meeting certain conditions whick the Group
are confident can be achiaved.

* The Group recewves further capital from its investors to
meet the costs of carrying out fire safety remedial works

» The Group receives further capital from its investors to
meet non-contractual commitments specifically for the
development of other plots at East Village If funding
1s not obtained, the Group has the option nor o enter
into these transactions

In the downside scenario, the Board has considered
a severe but plausible scenario which considers the
following assumptions’

Reduced occupancy across the Group's assets and
downward pressures on pricing, modelled based on an
extended economic downturn. This scenano assumes a
10% decrease from the base case in PRS, student and retail
revendes. This scenaro also models a 10% increase in vaid
unit and 15% increase In bad debt costs.

« Various mitigation measures that would need to be exercised
incluading the deferral of certain discretionary operating
costs, development and capital expenditure. The Directors
are confident these mitigating actions can be executed in the
necessary timeframe If required and are within the control of
Management. The use of these mitigations would not have a
resultant impact on the forecast revenues.

=« There are no breaches of loan facility covenants.
» The Group receives no further funding from sharehoiders.

Based on the downside scenario, assuming the debt faciity
refinancings 1IN the gong concern period are achieved ard the
controllabie mitigations are acticned, the Directors assess that

the Group has suffictent cash reserves to operate as a gomng

concern This judgement 1s based upon:

» Reference to the approved budget for the year ended
December 2023, through which shareholders have agreed
to provide funding for fire safety costs and non-contractual
commitments for development plots,

*« The Directors have considered the financial ability of the
investors and assess they have sufficient cash rescurces
to provide the funding committed.

= 'n the scenario where no further shareholder funding 's
received the Group has sufficient cash reserves to mest its
liabilities after executing the mitigating actions which are
within the control of Management.

The Group also performed a reverse stress test over the
wnpact of a fall inite proporty vatuations during the guing
concern periad, with an unprecedented percentage falt not
even seen during the Covid-19 pandemic required to result

n a loan to value covenant breach, a decrease not historically
seen by the Group. This s therefare considerad to be a
remote possibility during the going concern period.

The Directors also evaluated potential events and coraditions
beyond the period ending 30 June 2024 that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, with no sigrificant transactions or events of material
uncertainty identified

The Directors are confident in the Group's ability to refinance
debt facilities expirng during the going concern period, The
Directors have held discussions with @ number of potential
lenders on the refinancings and a seres of competitively
pr:ced indicative quotes have been received (subject to
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credit committee approvai). The Directors are confident that the
market appetite for lending against PRS assets remains strong
and that Get Living PLC s well placed to secure the required
financing on both the Portlands Place and the New Maker

Yards Phase T and Phase 2 debt facilities which fall due in the
going cancern period However, if the Group 15 not successful

In refinarcing the debt factities, it wil be renant on shareholders
providing funds to support the repavment of existing debt
facilities, in addition to the shareholder funding assumed in the
base case scenario The Directors have therefore concluded that
there I1s a materal uncertainty with respect to refinancing the
Portlands Place, New Maker Yards Phase 1 and New Maker Yards
Phase 2 debt facilities which may cast significant doubt over the
Group and Company's ability to continue as a going concern,

The Board believe that, subject to the material uncertainty relating
to achieving the refinancing described above, the Group will be
able to manage its business risks successfully, and the Group's
forecasts and projections show that the Group will be able to
cperate within the level of its avalable quidity and covenant
requirements. Accordingly, the Directors continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the annual report and finrancial
staterments, however, the matters described above result in the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt over the Group's abihity to continue as a going concern.

The consolidated financiai statements do not Include the
adjustments that would result If the Group and Company
were unable to continue as a going concern.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
Financial risks include interest rate risk, credit risk and hauidity
risk. These risks, and management objectives and polcies

in relation to these risks, are described further in note 23 to
the firancal statements.

Charitable and social donations

The Group made charitable donation contributions of £31k
(December 2021 £nil) and community project contributions
of £188k (December 2021: £157k) during the year

Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use

On a Lke-for-like basis, Greenhouse gas ermissions (GHG) for

the Group increased by 1% (December 2021 decrease of 5%)
whilst energy usage increased by 5% during the year (Decemier
2021 1% which suggests that head demand has rot reduced

i proportion with the relatively mild winter. The measurernent
approach taken follows guidance provided by the GHG and
IMREEY Sustamabiimy Lopasmirg UlTdenHas F18A8E PaTér to Our
Statement of GHG Emissions and Energy Usage n “sustainability
and governance’ section of the Strategic Report.

Stakeholder engagement

The Group continued to foster business retationskips during
the year. Please refer to the Group Section 172 statement on
pages 28 and 29

Dividends
No dividends were recommended or paid to shareholders
during the year (December 2021 ni)

Staff policies
The Group seeks to inveolve alt employees .n the development
of the Group's business. The Group undertakes to provide

employees with information of concerrn to them that 1s likely
to affect their interests

The Group supports the principle of equal opportunities in
employment and oppases all forms of discrimination. Every step
Is taken to ensure that indiwduals are treated equally and fairly,
and decisions on recruitrnent, training, promotion and career
developrnent are based only on objective ard |ob-related critena
The Group gives full and fair consideration o applications for
employment from disabled persons and also seeks to continue
to employ, with suitable traiming, If approprate, any person who
becomaes disabled whilst employed by the Group

Subsequent events

Subsequent to year end QD UK Holdings LP, one of the Group's
controlling parties, exchanged on a transaction to dispose of its
entire shareholding in Get Living PLC to Aware Super. Theare are
no further subsequent events that Impact the Group.

Subsequent to the year end the Group made a payrnent

of £18.9 million to HMRC as part of an agreement signed In
March 2023 to settle an ongoing tax enguiry The settlemenrt
of this balance confirms that the Group had a present
obligation at the end of the reporting pertod and therefore the
Group has recognised a provision for £18.7m, refer to note 18,

Directors’ statement as to disclosure

of information to auditor

The Directors who were members of the Board at the time

of approving the Directors’ report are referred to on page 56.
Each of the Directors in office at the gate that this Annual
Report and financial statements were approved confirms that:

» to the best of each Director’'s knowledge and belief, there
s no relevant audit iInformation (that 1s, iInformation needed
by the Group's auditor in cornection with preparng its
report) of which the Group’s auditor 15 unaware; and

» each Director has taken all the steps a Director rmight
reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware of
relevant aucit iInformation and to estabhsh that the Group's
auditor 15 aware of that information

Directors’ indemnity

The Group has in place appropriate Directors’ and Officers’
hability insurance cover in respect of potential legal action
against 1ts Directors. These indemnities are guabfying
third-party ‘ndemnity provisions as defined by Section 234
of the Companias Act 2006, The iIndemnities were vahd
throughout the year and are currently vald.

Auditor

In accordance with Section 485 of the Companies Act 20086,
a resclution for the reappointment of Ernst & Young LLP as
auditor of the Group 15 to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual Generai Meeting

Approved by the Board of Cirectors and signed on behalf
of the Board

Jaemes Bandle

James Boadle
Director
27 Aprit 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Statement of Directors responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report,
and the financial staterments in accordance with applicable
Urited Kingdom law and regulations.

Company law reguires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law the
Directors have elected to prepare the Group financial
statements In accordance with UK-adopted nternaticnal
accounting standards (IFRSs), and the Company financal
statements in accordance with United Kingdorn Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standaras and applicable law), including Financial Report'ng
Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework {(FRS 101

Under company law the Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they grve
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and the
Company for that penod

In preparing these financial statements the Directors are
required to:

v select sultable accounting policies in accordance with I1AS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors and then apply them consistently;

» make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent,

+ present information, including accounting policies, In
a manner that provides relevant, retable, comparable
and understandabie information,

+ provide additional disclosures when compliance with
the specific requiremeants in IFRSs and in respect of the
Company financial statements, RS 101 1s :nsufficient
to erable users to understand the impact of particular
transactions, other events arnd condit:ons on the Group
and Company financial positior and financial performance;

» nrespect of the Group financial statements, state whether
UK-adopted international accounting standards have been
foliowed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed andg
explaned In the financial statements;

+ nrespect of the Company financial statements, state
whether applicable UK Accounting Standards, including
FRS 101, have been followed, subject to any matenai
departures disclosed and explained n the financial
statements; and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concerr basis
unless 1t is inappropriate to presume that the Company
and/cr the Group will continue N business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient te show and explain
the Company's and Group's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that
the Company and the Group financial staternents comply
with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detectior of fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable iaw arnd regulations, the Directors are also
responsible for preparing a Strateagic Report and a Directors’
report, that comply with that law and those regulations The
Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company's wepsite.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent auditor’s report

to the members of Get Living PLC

Opinion

In our opinion:

« Get Living PLC's group financial statements and parent company financial statements (the “financial statements™) give a true
and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of the group’s profit
for the year then erded;

* the group financial statements have been properly prepared 'n accordance with UK adopted internatioral accnninting standards;

» Lhe parent company financral statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, and

s the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 20086.

We have audited the financial statements of Get Living PLC (the ‘parent company’) and its subsichanes (the ‘group’) for the year
ended 31 Decamber 2022 which comprse

Group Parent company

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022  Statement of financial positior as at 31 December 2022

Censolidated statement of comprehensive 'ncoma for the Statement of changes in eguity for the year then ended
year then ended

Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended Statement of cash flows for the year then ended

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended Related notes 1to 16 to the financial statements including
a summary of significant accounting policies

Related notes 1to 38 to the financial statements, ncluding a
summary of significant accounting policies

The financial reporting framework that has been appiied in the preparatior of the group financial statements 15 applicable law
and UK adopted internaticnal accounting standards. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation
of the parent company financial statements 1s applcable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 107
“Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

wWe conducted our audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK}) and applicabte law Cur
responsibilities urnder those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsidpilitias for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report We are independent of the group and parent cormpany 1IN accerdance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as apphed
to listed entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities In accordance with these requiremerts

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaned is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 2 in the financial statements, which indicates that there 1s a matenal uncertainty relating to the
refinancing of the Portlands Place, New Maker Yards 1 and New Maker Yards 2 debt facilities which fall due in the goirg concern
pericd As stated In note 2, these events or conditions, along with the other matters as set forth in note 2, inclicate that a
materiai uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's and parent Company’s abtlity to continue as a going
concern. Qur opinion 1s not modified in respact of this matter

In auditing the financal statements, we have canchdan that the diractar's use of the gomyg vuneern basls of accountirg in the
preparation of the financial staterments 1s appropriate. Our evaiuation of the directors’ assessment of the Group and parent
company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

+ We obtained Management's going concern assessment, including the cash flow forecast and covenant calculations covenng
the goirg concern pernad to 30 June 2024.

» We understood the process followed by Management to prepare the Group's going concern assessment, including the going
concern penod considered by Management, identifying, and assessing the impact of a severe but plausibie downside scenano :n
their cash flow forecasts and covenant calculations in order to assess the farecast liguidity and covenant compliance of the Group.

« We challenged the appropriateness of Management's base case and severe but plausible cownside forecasts by assessing
historical forecasting accuracy, the reasonableness of assumptions, ‘ncluding forecast occupancy, rental rates and operating
costs, by reference to historical performance, post year end occupancy rates, external industry forecasts and the perspective
of our Chartered Surveyors in assessing the potental reductions in property valuaticns in the going concern period

» We challenged Management's consideration of a severe but plausible downside scenario, and performed our own additional
stress testing to cash collections and vaiuations where appropriate to test the impact on lquidity and covenant comphance.
We also carred out reverse stress testing and assessed the hkelihood of such conditions arising that would lead to the group
utifising alb iguidity or breaching :ts financial covenants during the goirg concern perrad
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Material uncertainty related to going concern continued

* \We svaluated whether the covenant requirements of the debt faciities would be comphed with under the scenarnocs prepared
by Management and our additional stress testing scenar:os including assessing the impact of the timing of these events

+ We challenged the availability of mitigating factors included in the cash flow forecasts such as removing cash flows relatirg to
uncommitted development costs and evaluated Management's abulity to control the level and tming of these outflows as mitigating
actions If required. We assessed this through our understanding of the business and the presence of any contrary evidence

s We challenged the ability of the investors to provide funding If required, by researching the financiat health of the investors
and assessing any indicators that the financial support would not be forthcoming.

+ We challerged Management's view on the probability of being abie to refinance the Portlands Place, New Maker Yards 1 and
New Maker Yards 2 debt facilities :n the going concern period. Our audit procedures include the perspective of EY Debt
Advisory Speciaiists on the probabiity of being able to refinance, understanding how far discussions have progressed with
prospective lenders and assassing the historical trends of debt refinancing when required.

= We reviewed minutes of board meetings with a view o identifying any matters which may impact the going cencern
assessment. We inspected Management's assessment of tax exposure relat:ng to land and property transactions to identify
any matters which may impact the going concern assessment.

s We Inspected evigence to support the £18.9m tax settlement paid to HMRC and receipt of £7.0m shareholder funding, both of
which occurred after the year end.

* We reviewed the Group's gaing concern disclosures included in the annual report in order to assess whether the disclosures
were appropriate and in conformity with the reporting standards.

Going concern has also been identified as a key audit matter,

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections
of this report However, because not all future events or condittons can be predicted, our responsibifities and the responsibilities
of the directors with respect to going concern are described In the relevant statement 1s not a guarantee as to the group’s
abihty to contirue as a going concern,

Overview of our audit approach

Audit scope « We performed the audit of the group as f it were a single aggregated set of financial -nformation

Key audit matters « valuation of the property portfolic
» Revenue recognition
« Coing concern basis used in the preparation of the financial statements

Materiality « Overall group matenality of £29.7m which represents 1% of total assets.

An overview of the scope of the parent company and group audits

Tailoring the scope

Qur assessment of audit rnsk, our evaluation of materiality and our allocation of performance materiahty determine cur audit
scope for each company within the Group Taken together, this enables us to form an opinton on the consolidated financial
statements. We performed the audit of the group as If ' were a single aggregated set of financial iInformation. The audit was
performed Jsirg the materiality level set out above and covered 100% of group revenue, group profit before tax and group total
assets (December 2021 100% of group revenue, group profit before tax and group totai assets).

Climate change

Stakeholders are Increasingly :rterested in how climate ¢hange will impact Get Living PLC. The Group has determined that

rhe mast sigrificant future impacts from ciimote change on then uperations will be fram irmpacls of E5G requirements on
operations, net zero carbon obhigations ana the potential impact of sustainable lenaing reguirements These are explaned

on pages 40 - 43 1 the principal risks and uncertainties which form part of the "Other information”, rather than the audited
financiai statements Our procedures on these unaudited disclosures therefore consisted solely of considering whether they are
materially inconsistent with the firancial statements or our knowledge obtained In the course of the audit or otherw:se appear
to be materially misstated, in line with our resporsibilities on "Other information”.

In planning and performing our audit we assessed the potential impacts of climate change on the Group's business and any
conseguential material impact on 1ts financial staterments.

The Group has explained in the Strategic Report governmental and societal responses to climate change risks are still developing,
and where the degree of certairty of these changes means that they cannot be taken into account when determining asset and
habiiity vamiations and the timing of future cash flows under the reguirermnments of UK adopted international accounting standards.

Our audit effort in considering the impact of climate charge on the financial statements was focused on ensuring that the effects
of material chimate rsks disclosed on page 42 have been appropriately reflected in the valuation of the property portfolio and the
going cancern assessment where values are determined through modelling future cash flows, including those related to chmate

risks, Details of our procedures and findings ¢n the vaiuation of the property portfolic are included :n our key sudit matters below
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent auditor’s report continued

to the members of Get Living PLC

An overview of the scope of the parent company and group audits continued

Climate change continued

Wae alsc challenged the Dwrectors’ considerations of climate change risks In ther assessment of going concern and associated
disclosures. Where considerations of climate change were relevant to our assessment of going concern, these are described above

Based on our work we have not identified the impact of cimate change on the financial statements to be a key audit matter or
to impact a key audit matter

Key audit matters

Koy audit matters are those matters that, In our professional judgment, were of most significance In our audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of materal misstatement (whether or not due to
fraud) that we identified. These matters :ncluded those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allocation of
resources In the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in our opimon thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters in
addition to the matter described in the materal uncertainties related to going concern secticn, we have determined the matters
descrbed below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Risk

Valuation of the property portfolio
Investment property
2022 £2,6592m (December 2027 £2.366.2m)

Trading property
2022 £68.6m (December 2021. £35.6m)

Refer to the Audit Cammuittee Report (pages 52 to 54) Accouniing policies (pages 74 and 76); and Note 12 and 14 of the
Consohdated Financral Staterments (pages 87 to 83)

Investment properties are held at fair value. Trading properties are held at the lower of cost ana net reaiizable value (NRV),
though EPRA measures are also disclosad in the annual report which reflect the fair value of trading properties. The vaiuat:on
of the property portfoho contains a high degree of estimation uncertanty. Additionally, the potential for mampulation of the
underlying data provided to the third party valuer ard Influence on the significant judgements to meet investor expectations or
performance targets or to avoid ar impairment of trading properties give rise to a fraud risk.

In addition to the above, for all properties in development, there 15 an addittonal risk around compieteness of forecasts costs to
complete, and the allocation of capital expenditure between nvestment property and trading property,

Our response to the risk

We included Chartered Surveyors on ocur audit team and held discussions with the Group's external valuer, CBRE, to assess and
chailenge the appropriateness of the methodoicgy adopted for each property,

Working with our EY Chartered Surveyors, we assassed

* The approprateness of the methodoiogy adopted for the property valuations, including holding meetings with CBRE

* We challenged whether the assumptions (yields. market rent, sales and cost assumptions for developments) adopted by the
external valuers fall within a reasonable range based on knowledge and evidence from the market. This rrcluded performing
benchmarking of the key inputs of the valuation agamst comparable bulld to rent schemes

* We searched for transactional evidence which contradicted the :nputs adopted by the valuer and challenged the valuer during
our meetings with them.

* We reperformed vaiuation caiculations, including sensitivity anaiysis over key assumptions, to determine a reasonable range of
values for the entire portfolio of properties.

For operational properties’

* We agreed the contracted rertal income at the valuation date to the assumed contracted remt per the valuatior report

* We assessed the 6-morth traiirg rents achieved across the properties and compared this to the market rents assumed by CBRE.

* We challenged the completeness of Managemert's identification of remediatior works as a result of bulldirg and fire safety legisiation
through selecting a sample of fire risk assessments across the entire portfolro to assess the completeness of the provisions.

* For each property with remediation works required, we inspected the results of the fire risk assessments performed by
Managements external specialist

= wWe challenged Managemenrt over the completerness of the risks identified and the reguiraed costs to remediate the fire safety 1ssues.

This included obtaining evidence to suppart the remediation work such as signed contracts and forecast costs to complete.

We read the contracts to determine whether the scope of works was sufficient to address the remediation works reguired per the

fire risk assessments.

* We corroborated the costs to compiete were appropriately included in the valuat:on of the property portfolio.
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Key audit matters continued

Qur response to the risk continued

For properties under development:

On a sample basis, we vouched development expenditure to supporting evidence and determing whether these have been
capitalsed appropriately. iIncluding whether the allocation between investment and trading property was nnpropriate.

W assossed the completeness of the costs to complete. ncluding inspection of board rminutes for contract variations,
perforrming comparison of costs over time and vouching a sampte of forecast costs to committed contracts or other
supporting evidence,

» Compared total forecast costs at the year end in comparison to the prior year and investigated material changes.

* Assessed Management’s split of the costs to complete for developments where costs are incurred acress both investment and
trading properties.

= We performed site visits and attended meetings with property development managers for a sample of properties. We
Inspected the stage of development, understood the key development risks and challenged the development managers on
the costs to complete.

We als0 carried out the following procedures:

* We performed a walkthrough and dentified the key controls over data used In the valuation of the property portfohio and
Management's review of the valuations,

« We made inguiries with the valuer to determine whether any undue pressure had been placed on them to armve at a particular
valuation

= Reconciled valuations to the financial statements and reviewed this for any caveats or limitations 1in scope, unusuai terms
or conditions.

» We evajuated the competence of the external valuers in performing the valuation of investment properties, including
consideration of ther gualifications. expertise and independence

In additior to the above procedures, we performed the following procedures for trading property:

+ We obtained the net reaiisable value (NRV) calculations from Management and assessed whether the properties were
appropnately measured at the lower of cost and NRV. We assessed the reasonabieness of the cash flows used to calculate the
NRV, nicluding the agreed sales price and development costs to complete.

Scope of our procedures
The whole Group was subject te audit procedures over the valuation of the property portfolio

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee

Based Jpon the audit procedures performed, we corcluded that the valuation of the property portfoio has been recogrised on
an appropriate basis as at 31 December 2022

The Investment properties are appropriateiy recorded at their fair value. The trading properties are appropriately recorded at the
lower of cost and NRV and are approprately disclosed at fair value in the EPRA disclosures.

Risk

Revenue recognition
Rental income
2022 EBZ Am (Decembear 2021 £63 8m)

Trading property disposal

2022. E0.71n (Deceriber 2U20 ril)
Revenue from development contracts
2022: £3.9m (December 2027 nii)

Other income
2022: £6.2m {December 2021: £6 9m)

Refer io the Audit Committee Report (pages 52 to 54), Accounting pohcies (page 76), and Note & of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (page 79}

Investor expectations and profit based targets may place pressure or Managernent to distort reverue recogrition. This may
result In overstatement or deferral of revenues to assist In meeting current ar future targets or expectations.

We consider that the risk lles within the revenue being overstated through fictitious leases. ary top-side adjustments, and
incorrect cut off
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Independent auditor’s report continued

to the members of Get Living PLLC

Key audit matters continued

Our response to the risk

We performed a walkthrough of the process and key controls over revenue recogmtion which have been designed by the
Group 10 prevent and detect fraud and errors in revenue recogrition.

we performed data analytics over the wheie population of journals posted to rovenue during U year to search for evidence
ul Management override or inaporopriate journal postings. This involves investigating manual journal postings te revenue and
journals with unusual account pair ngs.

For rental income:

* We obtaned and used data from the property management systerm to form a highly granular expectation for the revenue recognised
for every single lease using our iease analyser. We compared this detalled expectation at the tenant levei to the General Ledger.

* We audited the integrity of the tenancy schedule downloaded from the property management system. agreeing a sample
of lease information to the onginal lease documents or subseguent lease amendments and traced our sample through to
cash receipts, Using this data we recalculated the expected rental iIncome and deferred income balances. comparing this to
the reported figures in the general ledger

= From our sample we recalculated the total expected rental ncome for the year, and agreed this to cash receipts In
December 2022 to confirm the completeness of the rentai iIncome recognised We also considered any lease terms that
could impact revenue but were not 1dent fied by Management.

For the trading property disposal:

* We obtained and read Managerneént's technical accounting paper for the sale of NO5, including an assessment of the timing
of revenue recognition and determine whether the sale of NOS has been accounted for in accordance with IFRS 16

» We reconciled the revenue recognised to relevant clauses in the [ease agreement and cash receipts through the bank
statement f

+ We inspected the lease agreement and other supporting agreements related to the sale. We searched for evidence of any
residual valie held by the Group after the sale and whether any value should be recegrised on balance sheet.

» We performed cut-off procedures cn the timming of development costs, focusing on costs incurred durng the month of sale
and whether they were allocated to trading property pre or post sale.

For revenue from devetopment contracts

* We inspected Management's technical accourting paper, ncluding an assessment of the identified performance obligations,
ailocation of the transaction price and the timing of revenue recognition to determine whether the construction iIncome has
been accounted for in accordance with the urnderly:ing contract, the stage of completion and IFRS 15

» We reconciled total revenue forecast by maragement to the revenue contract. We inspected the entire agreement to
identify any terms or conditions that would impact the revenue recognition that were rot identified by Management,

+ We challenged Management's treatmert as to whether Get Living retain the cantrol over the services provided. and
whether they are the ‘principal’ or ‘agent’.

* We recalculated the revenue recognised in accordance with the terms of the contract and venfied compietion of
performance obligations through evidence to support completion.

For other income:

*« We obtained Management's schedule of the allocation for the property maintenance costs between Get Living and the Nonr-
Controliing Interest, iIncluding how these costs were apportioned between each property.

+« We performed test of detalls, Inciuding sample testing. relating to the property mamtenarce costs incurred and the amounts
recharged to the non-controlling interest. For the sample selected, we obtaned evidence which siipparts Lhe value and
iy of the cost ineurred and assessed whether the costs can be recharged in accordarce with the underlying agreement.

« We tested a sample of the revenue transactions refated to the Non-Controlling {nterests properties and obtaired evidence to
challerge whether the revenue was being recognised in the Group financial statements sppropnatery, and, to search for any
potential overstatement of Group revenue.

= We searched for any evidence of clams, correspendence or credit notes from the Nor-Controlling Interest through
Inspection of board minutes, post year end bank statement testinrg and Inguires of the external property management team

Scope of our procedures
The whole Group was subject to audit procedures over revenue recognition.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee

Based Lpon the audit procedures performed, we concluded that revenue has been recogrused on an appropriate basis in the year,
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Our application of materiality
We apply the concept of matenality in pianning and performing the audit, in evaluating the effect of identified misstatements on
the audit and in forming cur audit cpirion

Materiality

The magnifude of an omussion or misstatement that, mdividually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of the users of the financial statements. Materiality provides a basis for defermining the nature and
axtend of wur Ut procedures.

The table below sets out the materiaiity, performance materiality and threshold for reporting audit differences applied on our audit:
Basis Materlallty (Em) Performance materiallty (Em) Reporting threshold (Em)

Group (overall) 1% of total assets  £29.7 £22.3 £15
(Cecember 2021: (December 2021: £26.2) (December 2021; £19.6) (December 2021: £1.3)

1% of total assets)

Group (specific) 3% of EBITDA £0.89 EC.67 £0.05

Related to revenue, expenses
and working capital balances

Parent 1% of total assets £12.8 £9.6 £0.6
Company (December 2021: (December 2021: £12.8) (December 2021: £9.6) (December 2021: £0.6)

1% of total assets)

When establishing our overall audit strategy, we determinad a magritude of uncorrected rmisstaternents that we judged would be material
for the financial statermenrts as a whole, We determired that an asset-based measure would be the most appropriate basis for determining
overall materalty given that key users of the Group's financial statements are primarily focused on the valuation of the Group's assets.
Based on this, we determined that it s appropriate to set the overall materiality at 1% of total assets (2021 1% of total assets) We appled
overall matenality to all firarcial statemenrt ine iterns excluding those related to revenue, expenses ard working capital balances

in the current year, we determined that for revenue, expenses and working capital balances a misstatement of less than overall
rmatenality for the financial staterments as a whole could .nfluence the economic decisions of users. For these accounts, we betieve that
It 1Is most appropriate to use a prefit-based measure as profit 1s also a focus of users of the financial staternents. This change was made
In order to more closely aign with what we assess to be a primary focus of users of the financial statements, being a specific focus on
balances which impact upon EBITDA. Based or this, we determined that it 1s appropriate to set the specific matenality at 3% of EBITDA.

During the course of our audit, we reassessed initial materiality which has not resulted in a change from our planming materiality

Performance materiality
The application of materality at the \ndividual account or balance level It s set at an amount to reduce to an appropriately low
fevel the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceads matenality.

On the basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the Group's averall control environment, our jJudgement
was that performance materiality was 75% (2021 75%) of our planning materiality, namety £22.3m (2027 £19.6m) and £0.67m
respectively for overall and specific materiality levels. We have set performance maternality at this percentage based on our
expectations of identifying material misstaternents and the cortrol environment supporting the prevention of materal misstatement.

Reporting threshold
An amount below which identified rmisstaternents are considered as bemng clearly trivial

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would repor: to them all uncorrected audit differences in excess of £15m
(2021 £1.3m) and £0.05m respectively for overali and specific materiaiity leveis, which is set at 5% of planning materiality,
as woll as diffarences below hal Uneshiold Lhat, In our view, warrarted reporting on qualitative grounds.

we evaluate any uncorrected misstaterments against botk the quanttative measures of matenality discussed above and In hight
of cther relevant guautative considarations in forrming gur opiNioN

Other information
The other information comprises the informaton Included in the annuai report, other thar the financal statements and our
auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise expicitly
stated i~ this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our rasponsibility 1s to read the other information and, In doing so, consider whether the cther information 1s matenally
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtaired in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to

be materially misstated. If we identify such materar Inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether this gives rise to @ maternial misstaternent in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there 's a materal misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact

We have nothing to report in this regard
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Independent auditor’s report continued

to the members of Get Living PLC

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken n the course of the audit

« the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financral staterments
are prepared 1s consistenrt with the financial statements, and

* the strategic report and directors’ repart have been prepared ir accordance with applicabie lega. reguirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the ight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not dentified material misstaterments in the strategic report or the directors’ report

We have nothing to repart in respect of the foliowing matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report

to you 'f, 1N our cpimon:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adeguate for our audit have not been
recetved from branches not visited by us. or

* the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made,; or
* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 58, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for be.ng satisfred that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the cirectors deterrmine I1s necessary to enabie the preparation of financial staterments that are free from matertal misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial staterrents, the directors are responsible for assessing the group and parent company's abidity to
continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going congern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial staternents as a whole are free from materiai
rmisstatement, whether due to fraud or errar, and to 1ssue an auditor's report that ircludes our opirion. Reasonable assurance 1s a

high level of assdrarce. but Is ot a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a mater:al
rmisstatement when it exists, Misstatemeants can arise from fraud or error and are considered materiat if, iIndividually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basts of these finanaial statements

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, inciuding fraud

Irregularities, including fraug, are instances of non-comphance with laws and regulations We design procedures in ling w'th

our responsibilities, outined above, to detect irregulanties, iIncluding fraud. The risk of not detecting 2 materiai misstatement
due to fraud 1s higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve deliberate conceatment by,

for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent to which our procedures are capable of
detecting irregularties, including fraud Is detalled below. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of
fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the company and management.

= We obtaned an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the group and determined that
the most significant are those which are directly relevant to specific assertions in the financiai statements are those that relate
to the reporting framework (UK adopted irtermationat accounting standards) and the relevant tax regulations in the United
Kingdom, mcluding the UK REIT regulatrions and UK Building and Safety regulations.

+ We urderstood how Get Living PLC is complying with those frameworks through enguiry with Management, ana by
identifying the policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations. We also identified those members of
Management who have the pnmary responsibility for ensuring comphance with laws and regulations, and for reporting any
known instances of non-complance to those charged with governance,

« We assessed the susceptibiity of the group's financial staterments to mater:al misstaterment, includinrg how fraud might occur
by reviewing the Company's principal risks and uncertainties, enguiry with Management and the Audit Committee gduring the
planning and execution phases of our aucdht
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements continued

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud cortinued

* Based on this understanding we designed our aucht procedures to identify non-compilance with such faws and regulations
Qur procedures involved the following

- Inguinng of members of Management, and when appropriate, those charged with governance regaraing ther knowledge of
any non-compliance or potentia non-compliance with laws ard reguiations that could affect the financial statements.

- Reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance,
- Obtaning and reading correspondence from legal and regulatory boedies including HMRC.
- Performing journal entry testing.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at https #/www frc org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report 1s made solely to the company’'s members, as a bedy, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume resporsibiity to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

6;44 I 4 %u‘:f LLP

Graeme Downes (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LL.P, Statutory Auditor
London

28 April 2023
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group statement of comprehensive income

2022 2021
Notes £m Em
Revenue 6 99.2 70.7
Cost of sales 7 ¢36.0) (24.8)
Gross profit 6%.2 45.9
Administrative axpenses (35.7) (28.3)
Valuation gain on investrrent property 12 136.0 51.9
Operating profit 8 1635 79.5
Finance costs 10 (36.7) (27.0)
Change In fair value of derivatives 21 25.86 5.8
Profit before taxation 152.4 58.3
Tax charge 11 (16.1) (0.2
Profit for the year 136.3 58.1
Total comprehensive income for the year 136.3 8.1
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 136.3 58.1
Non-controiing interests — —
Total corrprehensive iIncome for the year 136.3 58.1
Basic and diluted earmings per share (£) 35 1326.36 58.03
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Group statement of financial position

{As restated*)

2022 2021

Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Investment property 1z 2,659.2 2,366.2
Property, plant and equipment 13 2.4 2.5
Trade and other recevables 15 5.8 10.5
Derivative financial instruments 21 31.7 23
Total non-current assets 2,699.1 2,381.8
Current assets
Trading property 14 68.6 35.6
Inventory c.1 0.1
Trade and other receivables 15 142.3 115.8
Derivative financial instruments 21 0.5 —
Restricted cash 16 135 15.9*
Cash and cash equivalents 16 66.5 85.1*
Total current assets 291.5 252.5
Total assets 2,990.6 2,634.3
Current liabilities
Trade ard other payables 17 (93.2) (126.03
Income tax payable {0.5) {0.75
Lcans and borrowings 20 (270.0) (97.8>
Dervative financial instruments 21 - {0.3)
Provisions 15 (33.0) —
Total current liabilities (396.7) (224.8)
Non-current liabilities
Long-term other payabies 19 (7.9) (12.2)
Loans and borrowings 20 (1,072.3) (1,067.3)
Dernvative financial instruments 21 _— (0.8)
Total non-current liabilities (1,080.2) (1,080.1>
Total liabilities (1,476.9) (1,304.9
Net assets 1,513.7 1,329.4
Equity
Share capital 27 1.0 1.0
Distributable reserve 27 783.6 783.6
Consolidation reserve 27 (10.8) (10.8)
Retaired earmngs 26 150.5 14.2
Other equity reserves 25 5893 5413
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,513.6 1,329.3
Non-controthing intarests 28 0.1 0.1
Total equity 1,513.7 1,329.4

* Cash and casn egquivarents and restricted cash have been retrospectively restatad as at 31 Decemoer 2021 foilowing & clarfication oy FRIC on tne oresentation of mores
that have legal or contractual restnctions on therr Use but are physically accessible, see ~ote 16 for fusther informatior

The financial statements on pages 88 to 106 were approved by the Board of Directors for 1ssue on 27 April 2023 and were signed
on its behalf by:

James Boadle

James Boadle
Director
27 April 2023
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group statement of changes in equity

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Other Non-
Share Distnbutab.e Consolidation Retained equ:ty controlling Tota
capital reserve reserve earmngs reserves Teral nterests equity
Notes Em £m £rr £m £mr £m £Em Erm
At 1 January 2021 1.0 7826 (10.8) (13.7) 2304 0023 c.1 0604
Total comprehensive
‘ncorne for the year - - — 58.1 - 58.1 — 58.1
Other equity
contributions 25 - — — — 301.9 3019 - 301.9
At 31 December 2021 1.0 783.6 (10.8) 14.2 541.3 1.329.3 0.1 1,329.4
Total comprehensive
income for the year — — — 136.3 — 136.3 — 136.3
Cther equity
contributions 25 — - — — 48.0 48.0 e 48.0
At 31 December 2022 1.0 783.6 ¢(10.8) 150.5 589.3 1,513.6 0.1 1,513.7
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Group cash flow statement

(A5 restated™)

2022 2021

Notes £m £m
Operating activities
Profit before taxation 152.4 583
Adjustmonts ta recancile profit befare taxotion to met cash flows.
— Depreciation 13 1.7 1.1
— Valuation gain on investrment property 12 (136.0) (61.9)
— Finance costs 10 36.7 270
— Change n fair value of derivatives 21 (25.6) (5.8)
— Profit on disposal of trading property (4.5) -
Worlong capital adjustments:
— Development expenditure on trading oroperty (31.1) (5.1
— Proceeds recewved from sale of trading property 57 —
— Increase in other non-current raceivables (2.1} (16.5)
— Increase 1N trade and other receivables (24.2) (21.6)
— Increase In trade and other payables 29.9 495
— Decrease In cther long-term payables {4.5) (24.9)
— Increase In provisians 14.3 —
— Tax paid -_ (1.8)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 12.7 4.3
Investing activities
Cash acquired from acquisition of group of assets 24 - 12.9
Purchase of property, piant and eguicrment (2.0) (1.3)
Deveiopment expenditure (201.2) {157.3)
Decrease/(Increase} in restricted cash 2.4 2.2"
Net cash outflow from investing activities (200.8) (147.9)*
Financing activities
Equity funding from sharehoiders 25 48.0 159.6
Crawdown of -0ar facilites 22 160.4 51.6
Loan and hedge arrangement fees (5.4) -
Interest pawd or loan facilities 22 (28.2) (24.5)
Proceeds on sale of derivative financiai instruments 22 1.0 —
Purchase of derivative financiai instruments 22 (6.2} -
Other financing costs (0.1) (3.9)
Net cash inflow from financing activities 169.5 182.8
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (18.6) 39.2°
Cash ard cash eguivalents at the start of the year 85.1 45.9*
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 66.5 85.1*

Cash and cash equivalents and restncted cash have been refrospectively restated as at ™ January 2021 and 31 Decermoer 2021 following a clar-fication oy IFRIC on the
cresentation of Monies tnat have legal or contractual restrictions on their use put are prysically accessible, see note 16 for furtner informatior
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes 1o the financial statements

1. Corporate information

Ger Living PLC (the "Cempany'™ s a public imited company, incorporatea, domiciled and registered under the laws of England
and Wales with the registered number 11532492, The Company's registered office 1s at 6th Floor Lanscdewne House, Berkeley Sguare,
London W1J BER, United Kingdom

The Company 1s a UK Real Estate Investrment Trust (REIT)Y and its ordinary shares are hsted on The Interrationar Stack Exchange (TISE).

ihe Lompany, togethar with its subsidiaries (the "Group”), I1s Involved in the investment and management of UK bulld-to-rent
(BtR) properties in London at Fast Village and Elephant Central, and Manrchester at New Maker Yards, alongside the ongoing
management of BtR deveiopments at East Village, Elephant and Castle Town Centre, and Lewisham at Newton Place.

The Group's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 weare approved by the Board of Directors on 27 Apnl 2023
and the Group Statement of Finargial Position was signed on the Board's behalf by James Boadte

2. Basis of preparation
The Group’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK adopted international accounting standards.

The financial statements have been prepared for the year ended 31 Decernber 2022, with the comparative pericd being the year
ended 31 December 2021, The financial statements are presented in rmiflions of Sterling (Em) and all values are rounded to the
nearest hundred thousand Sterling (£0.1m), except where otherwise indicated

The financ:al statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for iInvestment properties and denvative financal
instruments which are measured at farr value.

Going concern

The firancial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts

for the penod to 30 June 2024 in order to assess the requirements of the Group and Company over that peried (the “going
concern: period™). Despite the buoyant rental market, driven in part by a market supply and demand imbalance, the going

concern assessment has been performed against the backdrop of a subdued global economic outlook The Directors have
therefore considered a base case. a downside scerario, and performed reverse stress testing, in consiceration of the potential
future risks of economic uncertainty and further recession related to macro-econormic events; the crisis in Ukraine and aftermath
of the global pandemic drniving global supply constraints leading to high inflation and a cost of living cnisis, along with high interest
rates as a result of UK polht:cal mstabinty and policy changes. The Directors have also considered the payment subseguent tc the
year end of £18.9m to HMRC, and the receipt of £7.0m funding from sharehoiders in March 2023 in the going concern assessment.

In the base case scenario

The Directors have performed a detaled going concern review based on the Beard approved 2023 budget, which reffects
current trading trends at high occupancies for stabilised assets, a strong launch of lease-up assets and contirued strorg rertai
growth, with revenue on stabilised assets forecast to increase approximatery in ine with inflationary trends between 2022 and
2023, The impact of inflatior on costs over the going concern period has been incorporated Into this scenanic Key assumptions
ri the base case scenaro inciude.

« The Group successfully refinances the debt facilities on its Portlands Place asset ahead of the matunty date of September 2023,
and 1ts New Maker Yards Phase 1 and Phase 2 debt facilities ahead of their maturity date in March 2024 The Group has the
option to extend the New Maker Yards Phase 2 facihity for one year to March 2025, subject to meeting certain conditions which
the Group are confident can be achieved.

« Tre Group receives further capital from its investors to meet the costs of carrying out fire safety remedial works.

+ The Group recelves further capital from its Investors to meet non-contractual commitments specifically for the development of
other plots at East Village. If funding 1s not obtained, the Group has the option rot to erter into these transactiors.

In the downside scenarno, the Board has considered a severe but plausibie scenaro which considers the following assumptions:

* Reduced occupancy across the Group's assets and downward pressures on pricing, modeilled based on an extended
economic downturn. This scenario assumes a 10% decrease from the base case in PRS, student and retail revenues. This
scenaro also models a 10% increase in void unit and 15% .ncrease :n bad debt costs

+ Yarious mitigation measures that would need to be exercised inciuding the deferral of certain ciscretionary operating
costs, development and capital experditure. The Directors are confident these mitigating actions can be executed In the
necessary timeframe If required and are within the controi of Management. The use of these mitigations would not have a
resultant impact on the forecast revenues.

* There are no breachkes of loan faciity covenants

» The Group receives no further funding from shareholders
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2. Basis of preparation continued

Going concern continued

Based on the downside scenario, assuming the debt facihity refinancings in the going corcern period are achieved arg the
controllable mitigations are actioned, the Directors assess that the Group has sufficient cash reserves to operate as a going
concern. This jJudgement 1s based upon:

« Reference to the approved budget for the year ended December 2023, through which shareholders hava agreed o provide
funiding for fire safety costs and non-contractual commitments for development plots.

« The Directors have considered the financial ability of the investors and assess thay have sufficient cash resources to provide
the funding committed

= In the scenario where no further shareholder funding 1s received the Group has sufficient cash reserves to meet #&s liabilities
after executing the mitigating actions which are within the controf of Management.

The Group also performed a reverse stress test over the impact of a fall in its property valuations during the going concern
period, with an unprecedented percentage fall not even seen during the Covid-19 pandemic required to result In a toan to value
covenant breach, a decrease not historically seen by the Group. This 1s therefore considered to be a remote possibility during
the going concern period

The Directors alsc evaluated potential events and conditions beyond the period ending 30 June 2024 that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, with no significant transactions or events of maternal
uncertainty identified

The Directors are confident In the Group's abiiity to refinance debt facilities expirning dunng the going concern period. The Directors
have held discussions with a number of potential lenders on the refinancings and a series of competitively priced irdicative guotes
have been recaived, subject to credit committee approval The Directors are confident that the market appetite for lending against
PRS assets remains strong and that Get Living PLC 1s well placed to secure the reguired financing on beth the Portlands Place and
the New Maker Yards Phase 1 and Phase 2 debt faciities which fall due in the going concern period. However, If the Group 1s not
successful in refinancing the debt facilities, It will be reliant on sharehclders providing funds to support the repayment of existing
debt Facilities, In addition to the shareholder funding assumed in the base case scenano. The Directors have therefore concluded
that there 1s a material uncertainty with respect to refinancing the Portlands Place, New Maker Yards Phase 1 and New Maker Yards
Phase 2 debt faciities which may cast significant doubt over the Group and Company’s sbility to continue as a going concern.

The Board believe that, subject to the mater:al uncertainty relating to achieving the refinancing described above, the Group will

be able to manage its business risks successfully, and the Group's forecasts and projections show that the Group will be able to
operate within the level of its avallable liquidity and covenant requirerments. Accordingly, the Directors contrnue to adopt the going
concern basis In preparing the anrual report and financial statements, however, the matters described above result in the existerce
of a matenal uncertainty which may cast significant doubt over the Group's ability to coentinue as a going concern.

The consclidated Fnancial statements do not include the adjustments that would result if the Group and Company were unable to
continue as a going concern.

Judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with UK adopted international accounting standards requires the use of critical
judgements, estimates and assurnptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
incorme and expenses. Estimates and assumptions concerning the future, and the accounting resuits of those estimates may

not equal the related actual results

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are sigrificant to
the financial statements, are disclosed In the relevart notes forming part of these financial statements as discussad below

Key judgements

Classification and transfers between investmant and trading property

The Group considers the intention at the outset when each property is acguired in order to classify the property as either an
Investment property or a tracing property. Where the intentior 1s to trade the property within the ordinary course of business,
the property Is classified as trading property Where the ntentron is to hold the property for its lorg-term rertal yield or capital
appreciation, the property is classif:ed as an investment property

Where there 1s a change in use of the property, a transfer between investment property and trading preperty takes place. A change
In use accurs when the property ceases to meet the definition of investment property and there 1s evidence of the change in use,
The transfer will take place when there are observable actions toward effecting a change 1n use. for example the commencerment
of development with a view to a sale

The classification of the Group's properties 1s a significant ;udgement which directly impacts the statutory net asset position,
as trading properties are held at the lower of cost and nert realisable value, whilst iInvestment properties are held at fair value,
with gains or 'osses taken through the Statement of Comprehensive Income Refer to note 14 for further information
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes 1o the financial statements continued

2. Basis of preparation continued

Key judgements continued

Taxation

The Group applies jJudgemenrt in ident:fying uncertainties over income tax treatments, particularly those relating to land and property
transactions The Group determined that it s probabie that 1its tax treatments {including those for the subsidiaries) will be ultimately
accepted by the taxation authorties. A provision for a settiement agreed with HMRC after the Statement of Financial Position date
ras been recagnisend (note 18} The Directors have macls a judgeroont based or their assassmenl Lhal 0o Turther provision 1s reguired.

Other judgements

Sale of trading property

Proceeds received for the sale of trading property are recognised when the buyer assumes control of the property Should
exchange of title occur before the practical compietion of the property, the Group assesses whether the disposal of trading
property and subsequent development by the Group constitutes a single contract or two separate contracts. The profit or
loss on disposal s calculated as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset at the date
of disposal, with this being taken through the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Refer to note 14 for further information.

Property acquisitions and business combinations
wWhere a property is acquired through the acquisition of corporate interests, management considers the substance of the assets
and activities of the acquired entity In deterrmining whether the acquisition represents the acquisition of a business,

The Group accounts for an acguisition as a business combination where an integrated set of actvities 1s acqguired n addition to the
property. More specifically, consideration 1s made of the extent to which significant processes are acquired and, In particular, the extent
of services provided by the subsidiary. IFRS 3 sets out an optional concentration test designed to simplfy the evaluation of whether
an acquired set of activities and assets 15 not a business An acquired set of activities and assets 1s not a business f substantiaily all
of the fair value of the gross assets acguired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.

Where such acquisitions are not deemed to be an acquisition of a business, they are not treated as business combinations. Instead,
they are treated as asset acquisitions, with the cost to acguire the corporate entity being allocated between the identifiable assets
and labilities of the entity based on their relative fair values on the acguisition date. Accordingly, no goodwill arises. Refer to note 24
for more nformation.

Key estimates
The key accounting estimates with a risk of a material change to the carrying value of assets and habilities withir the next year
in terms of !AS 1 'Presentation of Financial Staterments’ are detalled below.

Fair value of investment property
The fair value of the Group's :nvestrment property s a key source of estimation uncertainty; however, .\n accordance with the
accounting policy of the Group, investment property 1s revalued at each reporting date by CBRE Limited as third party speciaiists

Market value 1s defined as the estimatea amount for which a property should exchange on the date of valuation between willing
buyer and seller iIn an arm’s length transaction without compulsion. The Group considers the use of professional external valuers, in
accordance with the latest RICS Valuation Standards in the United Kirgdom, sufficient to reduce but not eliminate the uncertainty.

Tre Group continues to review fire safety reguirements in all homes to ensure they are safe to occupy, and fall in line with
government guidance and professional advice. Whilst none of the Group's buillchngs are currently considered unsafe, such
a classification at a later aate would be expected to matenally affect the vaiue of the Group’s investment properties

In response to the requirements of fire safety regulation the Group continues to perform remediation works where it considers it
appropnate for ensuring all buiidings remain safe. Where the Group has considered It appropriate to carry out remediation work
the cost to perform these remediation works 1s Included as a deduction from the fair value of the investment property as a cost
to complete. Despite the use of specialists and a dedicated internal tearn there 15 a degree of uncertainty involved in estimating
the cost of these works to be performed due to therr inherently complex nature. The existing estimates have been based on
surveys performed by specialists and Management’'s best estimatre

Refer to note 12 for further information

Derivatives

The Group has entered finarcing faciities where the interest expense 15 based on variabie reference rates such as SONIA This
provides a key source of estimation uncertainty. However, the Group has entered inte derivatives to minimise the volatility of its
exposudre to these interest rate moverments. The derivatives are valued at the reporting date by an external consuitant using

a discounted cash flow model and market information (see notes 27 and 23)

Other sources of estimation uncertainty

The following areas of estimation uncertainty are not presented to comply with the requirermnents of paragraph 125 of 1AS 7
‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ as it 1s not expected there s a sk of a material adjustment o the carrying amount of
assets and lizbilities within the next financial year They are presented as additional discliosure of estimates used in the accounts.

Net realisable value of trading property
The Group's wrading property is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value ("NRV™). NRV 15 cawculated with reference to
the expected selling price. less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, discourted
to the net present value
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2. Basis of preparation continued

Other sources of estimation uncertainty continued

Provisiens - fire safety remedial works

When recognising a provision with respect to fire safety remediation works undertaken by the Group on behalf of non-
controlling interests, the Group determines the best estimate for the vaiue of the future economic outflow. The Group takes
a prudert approach and considers all avallable informatior In making such an assessment. Assessments are revisited at each
reporting date Rafer to note 18 for further infarmatinn

3. Accounting standards

a) New and amended standards and interpretations effective in the current financial year

The Group considers new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations which are applicable for the first time in
the year ended 31 December 2022. These were found to be either not relevant or not have a matenal smpact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

b) New and amended standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

The relevant new and amended standards and nterpretations that are 1ssued, but not yet effective, up to the date of 1ssuance
of the Group's financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these new and amended standards and

nterpretations, if applicable. when they become effective. The Directors do not expect the adoption of these standards and

rterpretations to have a material impact on the consolidated or Company financial statements in the period of initial application.

* IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts imcluding Amendments to IFRS 17 (1 January 2023)

= Amendments to |AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2' Disclosure of Accounting policies
(* January 2023

« Amerdments to IAS 8 Accounting policies, Changes In Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definition of Accounting Estimates
(1 January 2023)

« Amendments 1o IAS 12 income Taxas. Deferrad Tax related to Assets and L.abilities arising from a Single Transact:on
(1 January 2023)

« Amendments to (FRS 17 Insurance Contracts Imihial Appiication of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 - Comparative Information
{1 January 2023y

» Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases: Lease Liability i a Sale and Leaseback (1 January 2024)

« Amendments to |AS * Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Nen-current Date
and its Deferral of Effective Date, and Naon-currert Liabilities with Covenants (1 January 2024}

4. Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Consolidation

Subsidianes are consclidated from the date of acguisition, being the date on which the Group obtains contrel, and continue

to be consohdated until the date when such control ceases. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using

consistent accountirg policies. All intra-group balances and transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions and amvidencds are eliminated 1n full.

The list of subsicharies of the Group I1s Included :n note 37

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group 1s exposed, or has nghts to, variable returns
from its iInvolvemeant with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

Non-cortroiing nterests represent the portion of a subsidiary’s eguity which 1s not attributable to the Group. They are presented
separately In the conscligated financial statemants (noto 28).

b) Asset acquisitions and business combinations under common control

The Group accounts for an acquisition as a business combination where an Integrated set of activities 's acqguired In addition to
the property More specifically, consideration 1s made of the extent to which significant processes are acguired and, in particular,
the extent of services provided by the subsidiary. Business combinations under common controi are accounted for using the
pooling of interests method, any difference between the total book value of the net assets obtained and the consideration paid
1s accounted for in the Group financial statements as a consolidation reserve.

Where such acauisitions are not deemed to be an acguisition of a business, they are not treated as business combinations
Instead, they are ‘reated as asset acquisitions and the cost to acguire the corporate entity 1s allccated between the identifiable
assets and llabiities of the entity based on their relative farr values on the acquisition date. Accordingly, no goodwill arises.

Maragement reviewed the acquisition of New Maker Yards Phase 2 (note 24) during the prior year in accordarce with the
requirements of IFRS 3, ard concluded that it met the criteria of an asset acquisition rather than a business combination and
have accounted for it as such. The acquisition was treated as a transaction under common control in accordance with IFRS
3 as the combining entities were ultimately controlled by the same parties both before and after the combination and the
common control 1s not transitory.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes 10 the financial statements continued

4. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

c) Investment property

Investment property is Inhially recognised at cost, inclusive of transaction costs, and subseguently measured at fair value.
Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of investment property are included in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income in the period In which they arise. No depreciation or amaortisation 1s provided in respect of investment property.

The Group has entered Into residertal property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based
anan evaluation of the terms and condilions ol Lhe arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the

ecoromic life of the residential property and the present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting to substantally
all of the fair value of the residential property, that it retains alf the significant risks and rewards of cwnership of the properties
and accounts for the contracts with tenants as operating leases.

d) Trading property

Property acquired or being constructed for sale in the ordinary course of business, rather than to be held for rental or caprtal
appreciation, 1s held as trading property and is measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value ("NRV™) Principally, this
s property that the Group develops and intends to sell before, or on completion of, development. Cost incurred m bringing each
property to 1ts present location and condition includes:

* freehold and leasehold rights for land;
+ amounts pard to contractars for development; and

+ planning and design costs, costs of site preparation, professional fees for legal services, property transfer taxes, development
overheads and other related costs

NRV 1s the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business, based on market prices at the reporting date, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, discounted to the net present value. The NRV of a trading
property is determined by a professional external valuer at each reporting date. If the NRV of a3 trading property 1s lower than
its carrying value, an imparment |0ss 15 recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive income. if, In subseauent periods, the
NRV of a trading property that was previously impaired increases above its carrying value. or if the circumstances that caused
the write-down cease to exist, such that all or part of the write-down 's no longer needead. it shall be reversed to that extent

Where the Group develops affordable housing units as part of focal council requirements of the Group's wider development
schemes with a view to sale in the ordinary course of business, these wnits are held as trading property as they are to be transferred
to third parties at or prior to compietion Where the expected cost of developing affordable units exceeds the amount recoverable,
the expected excess cost 1S assumed In the cost to complete of the premium asset classified as nvestment property Lug to the pont
at which practical completion on the prem.um asset 15 reached Following practical completion of the premium asset. expected
excess ¢costs of any remaining affordable housing units under construction are recognised as a separate hability with the related
capital expenditure being allocated to the premium asset

Trading property 1s disposed of wher controtl transfers to the buyer. Profit or loss on disposal s calculated using the carrying
value of the trading property as at the date of disposal

e) Revenue recognition

=Rental income from operating leases 1s recognised 'n the Staternent of Comprehensive Income on a straight-ine basis over the term
of the lease, in line with IFRS 16 Lease agreements are all-inciusive, and contain income for other services. However. the term of these
services s the same as the lease term, so the recognition period 1s the same, and the value of the services 1s Included within service
charge and other related incorme, see note 6.

interest Income 1s recognised using the effective interast rate method

Revenue from contracts with custorners, as defined in IFRS 15, includes several of the Group's income streams:
+ Sarvice charge and other related income from PRS and retal tenarts;

s Other income being service charge income earned from third part-es for estate management services,

+ Revenue from development contracts, and

* Revenue received for the sale of trading property.

All service charge and other related incame 1s recorded as iIncome over tme in the period in which the services are rendered,
with payment .n line with manthly rental income received Revenue 1s recognised over time because the tenants benef:t from
the services as soon as they are rendered by the Group

Where a single payment Is received from a tenant to cover both rent and other services, the service charge ard other related
income component 1s separated and reparted as service charge and other related income. It has been assessed that the Group 13
acting as a principal In servica charge and other related income arrangements, since the provisior of these benefits 1s iIncorporated
into the provision of rental property as a package of services, accordingly service charge income and expenditure are presented on
a gross basis in the Statement of Comprehensive Incorme The actual service provided during each reportirg perod 1s determined
using cost incurred as the Input metrod.
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4. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

e) Revenue recoghnition continued

Revenue generated from developrent contracts 1s recognised over time as the Group develops assets contrelled by customers
Revenue Is determined using the input method by comparing costs incurred to date against total expected costs to be incurred
over the life of the contract.

Proceeds receved for the sale of trading property are recognised whenr the buyer assumes control of the property. Should exchange
of ttle occur betore the practical completion of the property, the Group assesses whether the disposal of trading property and
subsequent development by the Group constitutes a single contract or two separate contracts. Total consideration received

where property is disposed of via a long leasehold s the sum of upfront premiums and the presert value of any future payments

f) Taxes
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or pa:d te the taxation authorities
The tax rates and tax faws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax is the expectad tax payable on any non-REIT taxable income for the pericd, using tax rates applicable at the
Statement of Financial Position date, any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years, and any charges arising
frorm the requirements to meet the REIT regime rules

Deferred tax is calculated using the rate substantively enacted at the Statement of Financiai Position date Deferred tax
assets are not recognised where there 1s a high degree of uncertainty as to their future utilisation

g) Property, plant and equipment

Property. plant and eguipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation of residential fixtures
and fittings, retall assets, and office fixtures and equipment 1s charged at 25% per annum on a straight-line bas:s Plant and
machinery 15 depreciated between 10% and 25% on cost per annum, dependent on the asset's useful hfe. The carrying values
of tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment If events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may be
greater than its value In use

h} Cash

Cash and cash eguivalents in the Statement of Financial Positon comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value Cash and cash
eguivalents includes amounts accessibie by the Group, even where there are legal or contractual restrictions on therr use.

Restricted cash s cash held by the Group in designated accounts, to which the Group has no physical access, which are hela for
loan compliance requirements and are only accessible by the relevant lender

Cash ard cash equivalents and restricted cash have been retrospectively restated as at 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021
following a clanfication by IFRIC on the presentation of monies that bave 'egal or contractual restrictions on thewr use but are
nevertheless physically acCessible, see note 16 for further information.

i) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Chbhgations for loans and borrowings are recogrised when the Group becomes party to the related cortracts and are measured
nitially at the fair value of consideration recewved less directly attributable trarsactior costs.

After imtial recognition, Interest-bear:ng loars and borrowings are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective
Interest rate method. The discount between the redeemable amount and the net proceeds 15 accreted over the term of the can
and charged to the Statement of Comprehersive Income.

j) Receivables

Receivables are imitially recogrised on the Statement of Financial Position at fair value when the Group has become party to
the contractual provisiors of the instruments. They are subsequently carred at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method If the time value of money may have a significant impact on ther value

Tha Sroup musl igke Julyeienls on tha recoverability of its trade and other receivables at the reporting date and has a policy of
providing for iImpairmenrt based on the expected credhit 10ss model, using a provisions matrix. The Group assesses on a forward-ooking
basis the expected credit losses associated with 1ts trade receivabtes. The Group applies a simpiified approach 1n calculating expected
credit losses and recognises a provision for impairment for the nfetime expected credit losses on nitial recognition of the recetvable. In
determining the expected credit losses the Group takes into accourt any recent payment behaviours and future expectations of hkety
default events ( €. not making a payment on the due date) based on individual customer circumstances, actual or expected nsolvency
filings or Company voluntary arrangements and market expectatiors and trends in the wrder macro-economic envircnment in
which custemers operate. The amount of the provision 1s the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the estimated
future cash flows. The movement In the provision Is recognised in the Statement of Cormprehensive income

Trade recewvables balances are written off when the probabiiity of recovery 1s assessed as being remote.

k) Derivative flnancial instrumaents

The Group uses intarest rate derivative financial instruments to hedge Its exposure to movements in interest rates All ciasses of
derivatives are initiaily recognised at fair value, which 's considerad to be egual to cost on initiai acguisition, and subsequertly
remeasured to their prevalling fair value at cach Statement of Financial Position date. Changes in the fair value of dervative
financial irstruments are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as they arnse.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

4. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

k) Derivative financial instruments continued

Derivatives are derecognised either whan they are sold to a third party or the termination date 1s reached. On a sale to a third
party the price paid 1s considered to be the far value at that date with any difference between the carrying value and the price
paid being taken as a change in the fair value of the derivative. On reaching terminatior all derivatives have a nii fair value and
so no further adjustment 1s required for derscognition

The Gronp dorc net apely Fodye accuunlayg

1) Borrowing costs

The Group recognises borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or develcpment of a
qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income

m) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, if it 1s probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be reguired to settle the obligation and a relable estimate can be made
of the amaount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision te be reimbursed, for example, under an \nsurance
contract, the reimbursement I1s recognised as a separate asset, but only when the rembursement 1s virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision Is presented n the Statement of Comprehensive Income net of any retmbursernent If the effect of the time value
of money Is materiai, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropnate, the risks specific to the
llabihty. Wher discounting Is used., the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. except on
varnable consideration on property acgusitions.

n) Segmental information

IFRS 8 reguires operating seaments to be reported in a manrer consistent with internal financial reporting. The Board 1s responsible
for reviewing the Group's internal reporting n order to assess performance and allocate rasources; and is the chief operating decision
maker The Board ultimately reviews and monitors the performance of the Group by neighbourhood, and across the entire portfolio
on a basis consistent with the Group financial statements. Properties in East Village, Elephant Central, New Maker Yards Phase 1, New
Maker Yards Phase 2, Elephart and Castle Town Centre, and Newton Place are held to generate rental income and caprtal returns

and are aggregated into one operating segrment as all properties are, or are baing developed, to be predominantly residential assets,
somea of which include retail components. The offering across all sites is simuiar, the properties share similar economic characteristics,
there 1s a similar type of customer across afl neighbourhoods and the regulatory environment across all neighbourhoods 1s consistent.
Conseguently, the Board concluded there to be only one operating segment.

All revenue frem continuing operations |s attributable to, and all non-current assets are located n, the country of domiciie of the
Group, the United Kingdom. There 15 ho individual tenant or customer of the Group that contributes greater than 10% of total revenue

o) Leases

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases This includes residential and retall rertal contracts, with rental income being accounted for on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

p) Other equity reserves
Shareholder funding received by the Group Is repayable oniy upon liquidation of Get Living PLC and is therefore classified as equity.

q) Key Management remuneration

The Group has a cash settled fong-term incentive scheme for certain Executives. The awards have a three year grant period and are
inked to the long-term performance of the busiress. At the end of each financial year, the estimated tota! payout under the scheme
15 calculated ard 1s charged to the iIncome statement as an employee expense over the grant penod. This s subsequently adjusted
at each financial year end based on the performance of the business.

The Croup Nas o co-Investrrent schemne for cartain Executives and this 1s accounted for as a cash settled share-based payment
scheme. The grant farr value of the share-based payment awards I1s recognised as an employee expense at the date of grant Any
cash proceeds received are credited to share capital and share premium.

5. Fair value hierarchy
IFRS 13 sets cut a three-tier hierarchy for financial assets and llabihties valued at fair value These are as follows:

« levei | fair value measurements are those derved from queted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or iabilities;

« level 2 farr vaiue measurements ara those derived from inputs other than guoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or llability, either directly (1@ as prices) or indiectly (Le. derived from grices); and

« lavel 3 far value measurements are those derived from valuation technigues that include inputs for the asset or hability
that are not based on observable market data (unocbservable inputs)
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5. Fair value hierarchy continued

Derivatives

The fair value of the swaps and caps entered into In relation to foan balances 1s denved from the present value of future cask
flows discounted at rates gbtained by means of the current yield curve appropriate for those nstruments. As all significant
mputs reguired to value the swaps and caps are observable, they all fali within tevel 2 Information in respect of the fair vatue of
finarciai nstruments 1s included In notes 21 and 23.

investment property

The farr value of investment property falls within level 3 The investment property valuation s a third party valuation, which is
based on a discountaed cash flow model in accordance with RICS Valuation Standards, Sixth Edition in the United Kingdom, ana
includes a number of unobservable inputs ard cther valuation assumptions. Further details of these assumpticns and significant
unobservalble tnputs are Included 1N note 12

Loans and borrowings

The fair vatue of loans and borrowings falls within level 3 Loans are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. The fair values of any floating rate financial habilities approximate their carrying values. The fair values of the fixed rate loans
are assessed based on a discounted cashflow model using the prevailing market rate of interest, determined with reference to recent
transactions and negotiations cccurring within the Group for loans with simiylar terms. Informatior in respect of the farr value of loans
and borrowings s iIncluded In notes 20 and 23.

6. Revenue
2022 2021
£m £m
PRS and student rental mcome 63.5 44.7
Retaill rental :ncome 2.9 2.9
Service charge and other related income 17.0 16.2
Total rental income B83.4 63.8
Revenue from developrment cortracts (note 14) 3.9 -
Trading property disposai (note 14) 5.7 —
Other iIncome 5.2 £.9
Revenue 99.2 70.7

PRS ard student rental income primarily arises from private tenant leases under Assured Shorthold Tenancy ("AST") agreemerts
These lease agreements range from one to three years in terure.

PRS and student tenants make a singie payment under AS5Ts, which covers rent and other services. The component reiating o the
service charge and other services s separated and reported as service charge and other related income. These combined make up
“he total rental iIncome the Group earns from iease arrangements.

Reavenue relating o non-lease income 1s recognised In the period in which the performance cbligatiors are satisfied There was nil
revenue recognised from performance obligations settled in previous periods (2021 £nil)

ASTs have a minimum six-month break clause on the tenant side Student AST agreements are for the duration of the academic
year. The Group has also 1ssued ieases for retail units, having terms up to 24 years with agreed break clauses, which are located
within the iInvestment properties. Break clauses are assumed to be exercised at the earliest opportunity for the calculation of

minimum lease receivable disclosed in the below table.

There are no arrangerments in relation to contingent rert in the year Rental contracts include a clause to allow the Group 1o seek
compensation it premises are not left in good condition There are no recewvabies or contingent assets recognised at 31 December 2022
or at 31 December 2021 1In relation to this clause

Minimum lease receivable s analysed as follows

2022 2021

£m £m

wWithin one year 1.1 21.4
Betweer one and two years 1.9 16
Between two and three years 1.8 1.6
Between three and four years 1.7 1.5
Between four and five years 1.6 14
After more than five years 15.7 14.6
538 421
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7. Cost of sales

2022 2021
£m £m
Service charge expense 15.5 15.1
Void costs 18 —
Other property costs 9.2 a7
Direct property costs 26.5 24.8
Development costs (note 14) 8.3 —
Cost of trading property disposals (note 14) 1.2 —
Cost of sales 36.0 24.8
Other property costs includes management fees of £5.7m (2021 €6 4m).
B. Operating profit/(loss)
Operating profit 15 stated after charging:
2022 2021
£m £m
Salares and wages 12.0 9.0
Social securnty costs 1.3 1.1
Empleyer’s pension contribution 0.3 0.3
Depreciation 1.7 1.1

The average number of employees i the Group during the year was 157 (2021 140).

Directors’ remuneration

The Directors of the Parent Company are aiso directors of other entities controlled by the shareholders {see note 29) that are
rot part of this Group. For the current year, the Directors received no remuneration, reimbursemerts, or pension contr:butions
from the Parent Company or any of 1ts subsidiaries for therr services as Directors of the Parent Company (2021: £nib),

Key management personnel
The Group considers all individuals that have authorty and responsibility for planning, directing, and contreling the Group’s activities,
be it direct or indirect, to be key maragement personnel. Key management personnel compensation :s anaiysed as follows.

2022 2021

£m £€m

Salaries and wages 1.6 11
Other long term incentives 0.5 0.2
Share based payments 0.1 0.1
Termmation payments _ 0.1
Total compensation 2.2 1.5

The Companry has a long-term .ncentive scheme for certain Sxecutives that s cash settled and not inked to shares. The awards have
a three year grant percd and are inked to the long term performance of the business. The Company has a co-investmenrt scheme for
certain Executives and this has been accounted for as a cash settled share based payment scheme, refer to rote 30 for further detaiis.

Fropioyers pengion contributions dummng the yed wes e tess Ly £00mM

9. Auditor remuneration

2022 2021
Services provided by the Group 5 auditor £'000 £:000
Audit fees:
Audit of Parent Company and consolidated financial statements 556 214
Audit of subsidiary undertakings 236 468
Non-audit services:
Other assurance services 20 20
Tax advisory services 20 63
Tax compliance services 472 327
1,304 1,082

Ir the current year the auditor reallocated their spht of fees between the parent entity and its subsidianes.
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10. Finance costs

2022 2021

£€m £m

Interest on loans and borrowings 43.2 318
Less: capitalised barrowing costs (note 12) €10.7) (7.2)
325 24.7

Amertised arrangement fees 1.7 1.8
Cther finance costs 25 0.5
36.7 27.0

The capitalised barrowing costs relate to borrowings used to fund property development, Berrowing costs are capitalised at the

rate specific to the borrowings and are capitalised up te the point of practical completion

11. Taxation

2022 2021
£m Em

Current tax charge 16.1 0.2
Deferred tax credit —_— _
Tax charge for the year 16.1 0.2
Factors affecting the tax charge for the year
Profit before taxation 152.4 58.3
Profit before taxation multiphed by man rate of UK corporation tax of 19% (2021: 19%) 290 111
Effect of:
REIT exempt net property rental (gains) (1.1) (1.0
Falr value adjustments 0.1 (1.1
Capitalised borrowing costs (2.0) (1.4)
Non-allowable expenses 0.6 0.8
Valuation gamn on investment property (25.8) (11.8>
Losses not recogrised (0.8) 3.3
Interest cover ratio charge 0.5 0.8
Adjustments i respect of prior periods - over-provision (0.8) (0.5
Adjustments in respect of prior periods - tax settlerment (see note 18) 16.4 -
Current tax charge in the Statement of Comprebensive Income 16.1 0.2

The Company 's a UK Real Estate investment Trust (REITY. As a result, the Group does not pay United Kingdom carporation tax
on the profits and gains from its qualifying rental business in the United Kingdom prowided it meets certamn conditions Nan-

qualifying profits and gains of the Group continue to be subject to corporation tax as rormal.

The Group has urrecognised deferred tax assets at 31 December 2022 in respect of fixed asset temporary differences and tax
losses carried forward of £32.7m (2021 £23.9m). These deferred tax assets have not been recognised due to the uncertainty of
future taxable profits from the non-REIT business. Deferred tax 15 calculated at the rate substantively enacted at the Staterment

of Financal Postion date of 25% {2027 25%).

Slease refer to the Taxation section within Key judgements in note 2 for further information on tax. For definitions see Glossary.

12. Investment property

2022 2021

£€m £m

COpening balarce 2,366.2 2.001.8
Acguisitions - New Maker Yards Phase 2 (note 24) —_ 119.8
Captal expenditure 146.3 175.5
Capitalised borrowing costs 10.7 72
Valuation gain on investment property 136.0 61.9
Closing balance 2,659.2 2.366.2

The Group acquired the New Maker Yards Phase 2 site in the prior year {note 24) acguiring investment property with a vaiue

at that date of £1198m.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

12. investment property continued

Capital expenditure of £146.3m (2021 £175.5m) includes £6.0m (2021: £60.0m) with respect to the East Village site, £82 2m
(2021 £83 Om) attributable to the development of Newton Place, and £56.4m (2021: £22 5m) attributable to the development
of Elephant and Castle Town Centre, with the remaining capital expenditure relating to operational properties.

The fair values of the irvestment property held by the Group were undertaken in accordance with the latest RICS valuation
standards in the United Kingdom by CBRE Limited. who are qualfied for the purpose of the valuation in accordance with
the KICS valuatior standard. The fee arrangement with CBRE for the valuation of the Group's properties 1s fixed, subject

to an adjustrrent for acquisitions and disposals.

This valuation comprises residential units of £2,187.4m (2021 €2.0211m), properties in the course of development of £435.7m

(2021 £307.5m) and retail units of £36.1m (2021: £37.6m).

The properties in the portfolio were valued on exther an income capitaisaticn or a residual value appraisal approach.

The key unobservable inputs Into the residential and commercial valuation are as follows.

2022

Estimated rental
values (£ per

2021

Estimated rental

2022
unt rate (%)

va'ues (£ per
square foot)

2021
Discount rate (%}

Asset square foot) Discol
Olympic Hormes, East Village - residential 37.91
Qlympic Homes, East Village - commercial 20.00-25.00
Victory Plaza, East Village - residential 38.66
Victory Plaza, East Village - commercial 11.10-38.01
Portlands Place, East Village - residential 43.37
Portlands Place, East Viilage - commercial 16.00-20.00
Elephant Central - residential 49.67
Elephant Central - commercial 15.00-45.00
MNew Maker Yards Phase 1 - residential 23.77
New Maker Yards Phase 1 - commercial 13.50-47.22
New Maker Yards Phase 2 - residential 24.39

3.50
9.00-9.25
3.50
5.75-9.00
3.50
8.00
3.50
5.50-9.00
4.25
6.50-8.50
4.30

3180
15.00-25.00
32.80
10.50-38.00
33.85
20.00
39.70
15.00-45.00
21.5%
13.50-15.0C
21.73

2.00
8.00-8.25
3.10
6.50-8.25
3.2

7.00

5.15
5.00-8.00
4.15
5.75-9.00
4.15

The key urobservable inputs into the development valuation are average construction costs of £255 per sg ft (2027 ranging from

£245 to £295)

Sensitivity to key unobservable inputs

The effect of increasing and decreasing both the discount rate and the estimated rental vaive on the valuation of investment

oroperties is shown in the following table.

2022 2021
Change in unobservable input £m £m
An increase in the discount rate of 50 basis points (282.2) (294.7)
A decrease in the discount rate of 50 basis points 374.0 406.6
An increase In the estimated rentat value of 10% 216.8 210.9
A decrease in the estimated rental value of 10% (217.1) (211.1)

Where estimates have been useq, ar increase/decrease in the value of fire safety remediation work costs deducted from
the fair value of Investrrent property as a cost to compiete of 10% would cause a correspording decrease/increase of £11m

(2021 £1.3m) to the vailiahon of investment pronariips,

13. Property, plant and equipment

SResidentia- fixtures Off'ce f xtures Prant and

and fittings Reral assers and equ prrent machinery Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2021 2.6 3.0 1.6 0.8 8.0
Additions 0.1 — 1.9 — 2.0
At 31 December 2021 2.7 3.0 35 0.8 10.0
Additions 0.6 — 0.4 0.3 1.3
At 31 December 2022 3.3 3.0 39 1.1 11.3
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13. Property, plant and equipment continued

Res:dent ai fixtures Office fixtares Plant and
angd fittings Retail assets  and eguipment machinery Total
£m £m £m £m Em
Depreciation
At 1 January 2021 1.7 2.8 1.0 0.6 6.1
Depreciation charae for the year O.a u.l 0.6 — 1.1
At 31 December 2021 2.1 2.9 1.6 0.6 7.2
Depreciation charge for the year 0.4 0.1 1.0 0.2 1.7
At 31 December 2022 2.5 3.0 2.6 0.8 8.9
Net book value
Balance at 31 December 2022 0.8 - 1.3 0.3 2.4
Balance at 31 December 2021 0.6 0.1 1.9 0.2 2.8
14. Trading property
2022 2021
£m £m
Opermng balance 35.6 30.5
Capital expenditure 34.2 5.1
Disposal during the year 1.2) -
Closing balance 68.6 35.6

The Group's trading property balance iIrcludes. £61.0m (2021: £35.6m) baing a new acaderric bulding that is to be sold to the
Uriversity of the Arts London as part of the Elephant and Castle Town Centre Development; £7.6m (2021 £nil) being a station
box that is to be sold to Londan Underground Limited once completed; £nil (2021 £mil) of affordable housing at East Village
that was disposed of durng the year.

During the year the Group disposed of affordable housing trading property at Fast Village to a third party Consideration received
for the disposal was £5 7m and the trading property had a value at the date of disposal of £1 2m, generating a profit on disposal
of £4.5m. The profit on disposal has been recharged to the premium assets for which the affordable housing has been created as
part of the wider development and for which excess costs have previously been recharged The Group continued to develop the
property for the third party after the sale, separately recognising revenue of £3.9m and cost of sales of £8 3m (see notes & ana 7).

15. Trade and other receivables

2022 2021
£m £m
Non-current receivables
Other receivatles 5.8 105
5.8 10.5
Current receivables
Trade recervables 5.1 2.7
Expected credit loss provision {16 (1.3
3.6 1.4
Other receivables 123.1 89.2
Prepayments 12.7 21.5
Accrued income 0.7 -
Other taxes - VAT 2.2 3.7
142.3 115.8

Non-current other receivables

Non-current other recevables includes £3 2m as an advanced payment to the develoger for the Elephant and Castle Town Centre
development (2021: £10 0m) that 1s expected to be settled in 2024, The balance also includes £1.6m with respect to costs pavd I
advance for land to be owned in a future period (2027 £nil).
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15. Trade and other receivables continued
Trade receivables
Trade and other recevables are non-interest bearing.

Trade receivables are lease receivables due from tenants The expected credit loss provision was caiculated using the
provisions matrix in [Ine with the expected credit foss model The assessed credit risk has not significantly changed
between years.

Included within trade receivables 1s £0.9m (2021 £0.6m) of contract assets in relation to service charge income ard £0 5m
(2021 £nil) of contract assets in refation te revenue from development contracts. All contract asset amounts are realisable
within one year.

Current other receivables
Current other recevables includes £11.5m (2021 Non-current other receivable of £10.0m) as an advanced payment
to the developer for the Elephant and Castle Town Centre development that will be repaid in 2023

Current orher recevabiles due within one year in¢ludes a balance of £85.2m being shareholder equity that has not been
settied in cash, whereby the shareholders have committed equity to guarantee the performance of the New Maker Yards
Phase 2 group companies of payment obligations under both a bulding agreement and a facility agreement to the sum
of this amount. Following practical completion of New Maker Yards Phase 2, the third party guarantees have sigmificantly
reduced and will be fully unwound during the 2023 year (note 323,

There 1s a balance of £0 9rm (2021; £0.9m) within other receivables relating to retention monies held in escrow in respect
of New Maker Yards, for which there 1s a cerresponding payable in trade ana other payables (note 17).

There 1s a balance of £14 3m (2021 £mi) inciuded within other receivables being amounts expected to be recovered from non-
controlling interests to offset the fire safety provision recognised (see note 18).

Recoverabllity of other recevables has been assessed using the expected credit loss model The impairment of the other recevables 1s
immaterial The assessed credit risk has not significantly changed between years.

Prepayments
Prepayments includes £6.9m of prepaid loan arrangement fees (2021 £121m).

The prior year prepayments balance includes £4 8m in respect of prepaid development fees for the Eiephant and Castle Town
Centre Development, which form part of investment property capital expenditure in the current year.

Credit risk
The maximurm exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of trade receivables plus other receivables.

16. Cash
{AS restated™)
2022 2021
£m Em
Cash and cash equivalents
Unrestricted cash at bank 53.4 67.2
Cash restricted under legal or contractual terms:
— Sinking fund 8.9 10.9
— Loan reguirements 4.0 4.0
— Tenant deposits 0.2 3.0
66.5 85.1
Restricted cash
Reastricted cash - [oan requirements 135 15.9
13.5 15.9

Cash and cash equivalents represents amounts physically access:ble by the Group as at the Statement of Financial Position date.
within cash and cash equivalents are £131m (2021 £17.9m) of amounts that the Group considers to be restricted urder legal or
contractual terms,

The sinking fund cansists of amounts held by estate management companies within the Group with receipts into the fund
comirg from the Group and Triathlon Homes LLP The fund 15 intended for future mayjor repair works that will be required on
the properties in East Village (see note 17).

Loan reguirerments consist of funds held ir designated bank accounts to ensure the Group meets specific loan reguirements Where
the Group Is able to physically access mories they are included within cash and cash equivatents, where the Group 15 unable to
physically access monies they are included within restricted cash.
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16. Cash continued
Tenant deposits consist of amounts paid by tenants of the properties where security deposits are required under the respective
tenancy agreement.

* Rastatement
Cash and cash equrvalents ard restricted cash have been retrospectively restated as at 31 December 2021 following a clarficatior by IFRIC on the presertation of manies
that have legal or contractual “estrictiors on their use but are physically accessible As a result of this the sinking fund, a portior of casn held for loan requirerrents,
ard tenant deposits have been reclassified from raestricted cash to casn and cash eguivaleats The total value of tre reclassification as at 31 Decenraer 2027 15 £17 0m

The lulal value of tne reclassification In the Group Statement of Financial Position as at 31 Decemper 202115 £17 9m whicn increased the cash and casn equivalent
from £67.2m to £85I and decroased the restricted cash fram £33 8m to £159m Withir the Group cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2021, this
reclassification also resuited 1In £11m .ncrease 1n net cash outflow fram inrvesting activities from £146.8m to €147 9m and a decrease » the overall net movernent in cask
and cash equivalent from £40.3m to £39.2m. As at 1 January 2027, the total valueg of the rectassification 1s £19 0m which increased the cash and cash equivalent fram
£26 9m to £45 9m and decreasad the restricted cash from ES2.7m to £137m

This prior year restatement did not have an impact on the reported net assets, net current assets or net profit,

17. Trade and other payables

2022 2021

£m £m

Trade payables 2.7 4.0
Defarred income 29.1 14.1
Accruals %6.9 41.5
Other payabiles 15.7 32.0
Other payables - DCMS settlement - 28.7
Other payables - Sink:ing fund 3.3 —
Other payables - Development retentions 5.5 5.7
93.2 126.0

Trade payables are nor-interest bearing and are normally settled in accordance with the Group's terms of business

Deferred income

Deferred income includes £3 4m (2021 Enil) in relation to amourts received from London Underground Limited to fund the
development of work at the E'ephant and Castle Town Centre development. Deferred income includes £4 8m (2021 £3 3m)
of contract habilities in relation to service charge income All contract hability amounts are to be settled within one year
The rernairing deferred income balance of £20.9m relates to rental iIncome

Accruals

Within the accruals baiance of £36 9m (2021 £41.5m) is a development cost accrual of £1.9m (2021 £174m) in reiation to the Group's
ongoing developments of new property and £0.4m (202% £nil) of contract habilies in relation to costs from development contracts.
The pricr year accruals balance ncluded £9.8m in relation to the inception of third party debt financing for Elephant ard Castle

Town Centre.

Other pavables

within the other payables balance of £15.7m {2021: £32.0m) 15 £nit for amounts due to the developer for the Elephant and
Castle Town Centre develocbment (2021 £10.0m), £6.0m In respect of accrued bank loan interest (2021 £6.0m), and £nil relating
to excess development costs (2021 £9 Om)

Other payabies - DCMS settlement

A settlement deed was signed Ir January 2020 between the Group and the Secretary of State for Digital. Culture, Media and
Sport (DCMS, previously the Otympic Delivery Authority) it relaton to the 2011 sale and purchase agreement for SYDP Limited.
Tre deed states that the Group must pay a total agreed sum of £29 Om, with £0 3m payable on the date of the deed and the
remaindar payakle i March 2022, Tle OCMS serrismeant payable at 31 Mecember 2021 represents the £28 7m amount payable
on 31 March 2022 discounted at the government risk-free pre-tax rate, which is based on the three-year GBP government bond
rate, and adjusted for risks specific to the lability. The balance was fully settled in March 2022

Other payables - Sinking fund

The sinking fund 1s held by the subsidiary, East Village Management Limited, to provide funds to meet the costs of future major
repairs, replacements and scheduled works. The balance represents the contribution made to the sinking fund by Triathlon
Homes LLPE, which Folds a non-controlling interest in East Village Management Limited. Management have reviewed the hkely
timing of future expenditure and consider it apprepriate to classify the sinking fund as a current lability as at 31 December 2022
(2021: Non-current lability, refer to note 19). The funds are held in a separate bank account as disclosed in note 16.
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17. Trade and other payables continued

Other payables - Development retentions

The development retention liabilities are due to the contractor of the development property in relation to works done during
the construct:on pericd, and are Liable to be settled as 50% upon practical completion and 50% two years following practical
completion (see note 19) Development retentions as at the year end date are summansed as follows

As at 31 December 2022

Within one year More than one Total due
Asset (£m) year (Em) {Em) Tranche 1 due Tranche 2 due
Portlands Place - 2.7 2.7 Settled February 2024
Plot NDS, East Village 0.3 0.3 0.6 February 2023 February 2025
New Maker Yards Phase 1 0.9 - 0.9 Settled Bue
New Maker Yards Phase 2 1.3 - 13 Settled November 2023
Newton Place 2.7 2.7 5.4 October 2023 October 2025
Eiephant and Castle Town Centre 0.3 2.2 25 Several* Severai”
Total 5.5 7.9 13.4

The Elapnant and Castie Town Centre retention liability "as multiple sub tranches with sattlernent dates dependeant on sectional practical completion.
As at 31 December 2021

Within ona year More than cne

Asset (Em) year (Em)  Total due (Em) Tranche I due Tranche 2 due
Portlands Place 2.8 2.7 3.5 Fabruary 2022 February 2024
Piot NOS, East Village — — — February 2023 February 2025
Elephant Cantral 2.0 — 2.0 Sattled March 2022
New Maker Yards Phase 1 0.9 — 0.9 Settled Due
New Maker Yards Phase 2 — 1.3 1.3 Settled November 2023
Newton Place - 3.2 3.2 October 2023 October 2025
Elephant and Castle Town Centre — 0.5 0.5 Several* Several®

Total 57 7.7 13.4

The Elepnant and Castle Town Centre retentior liaoiity nas multipte sub trarches with settlement dates dependent on sectioral practical completion

18. Provisions

2022 2022

£m £

Provisions - Fire safety remediation works 14.3 —
Provisions - Tax enguiry settlement 18.7 -
330 -

The fire safety remediation works provision of £14 3m (2021 £nil) represents work to be undertaken by East Village Management
Limited ("EVML") on behalf of non-controlling interests for the purposes of fire safety remediation works at £ast Village
neighbourhood properties rot owned by the Group. A receivable of egual value has been recognised, being amounts expected to
be recovered from non-controifing .nterests to offset the fire safety provision recognised (see note 15). The value of the provisian
has been determined with reforonce to contracls etured mils subsegusnt Lo the vear end

There were nc amounts spent during the year in relation to the provision (2021 £nil). Cash outflows in relation to the provision are
expected to occur primarily In the 2023 year.

Subsequent to the yaar end the Group made a payment of £18.9 millon to HMRC as part of an agreement signed in March 2023 to settle
an ongomng tax enduyy. The settlerment of this balance confirms that the Group had a present obligation at the end of the repeorting period
and therefore the Group has recogrised a provision for £18.7m, which includes the tax settlement of £16 4m ard interest accrued or this
balance to 31 December 2022 of £2 3rm. The £18.9 milion paid included £0.2m of interest accrued in the perod after 31 Decernber 2022

19. Long-term other payables

2022 2021

£m £m

Other payables - Development retentions {see ncte 17) 7.9 7.7
Sinking fund (see note 17) — 4.5
7.9 12.2
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20. Loans and borrowings

2022 2021
£m £m

Current liabilities

Loans and borrowings 270.0 98.0
Deferred loan arrangement fees — (U.2)

270.0 g7.8

Non-current liabilities

Loans and borrowings 1,082.9 1,.079.4
Deferred loan arrangement fees {10.56) (121

1,072.3 1,067.3

Drawn down

Drawn down

Facility et at 2022 at 2021

Secured asset Date entered .nto Matunty (Erm) (Em) CEm)
Elephant Central August 2018 July 2034 130.0 190.0 130.0
East Village September 2019 September 2029 550.0 550.0 550.0
East Village Novermber 2019 August 2034 187.0 187.0 187.0
East Village March 2015 September 2023 99.9 98.6 30.1
East Village January 2016 September 2023 67.5 64.4 62.3
New Maker Yards Phase 1 March 2019 March 2023 32.6 32.6 326
New Maker Yards Phase 2 March 2019 March 2023 68.2 64.8 65.4
Newton Place February 2021 Aprl 2026 160.0 76.3 —
Elephant and Castle Town Centre December 2021 April 2027 3650 79.6 —
N/AT January 2022 On demand 9.6 9.6 —
1,729.8 1,352.9 1,177.4

* During the year a loar of £9.6m was receved “rom T3 fesidential Lirrited, an entity under comman control The loan s repayable on demand and 1s not secured against
any of the Group's assets, The loar represents the advarcement of a government grant that was awarded to T3 Residential Limited to help fund the development of
affordable bausing at the Elephart and Castle Town Centre Development

During the year the Group extended the maturty date of both the New Maker Yards Phase 1 and New Maker Yards Phase 2 loans
to March 2023, In February 2023 the Group exercised an option to further extend the New Maker Yards Phase 1 and New Maker
Yards Phase 2 loans maturity dates to March 2024,

The New Maker Yards Phase 2 loan facility agreement inc:udes a further one-year extension options to March 2025 The Elephart
and Castle Town Centre loan facility agreement includes a one-year extension option to April 2028.

21. Derivative financial instruments

The moverment in the fair value of the derivat:ve financial instruments is as follows:

2022 2021
£m Em

Non-current assets
Non-current assets 31.7 2.3
Current assets 0.5 -
Current labilities - (0.3
Non-current habilities -_— (0.6)
Net derivatives valuation 32.2 1.4
Net derivatives valuation
Opening batance 1.4 (2.7)
Acquisitions - New Maker Yards Phase 2 (see note 24) - (L.7)
Purchase of derivatives 6.2 —
Disposal of derivatives (1.0) —
Change in fair value of derivatives 25.6 5.8
Closing balance 32.2 1.4
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21. Derivative financial instruments continued
The Group holds a rumber of swap arrangement to hedge floating rate interest payable on several of its loans:

Notionar amount (£Fm) Effect ve date Terrmination date fixed rate
35.6 13 March 2019 13 March 2024 1.2%
74.5 15 March 20183 15 March 2024 1.3%
323 25 February 2022 25 April 2026 0.8%
32.3 25 February 2022 25 April 2026 3.8%

The Group also holds the following interest rate caps:

Notionar amount (£rm) Effective date Termination date Cap rate
65.8 1 March 2022 21 July 2026 1.5%
161.0 13 October 2022 30 September 2023 4.0%

Noticnal amounts are stated as at 31 December 2022, All of the financial derivatives included in the above table were valued by
ar external consultant using a discounted cash flow model and market information, the primary level 2 input being interest rate
curves. The Group dees not apply hedge accounting so movemeants in fair value are taken directly to the Group’s Statement of
Comprehensive income

22. Liabilities - reconciliation of cash and non-cash movements

Cash *ows Non-cash flows
Change
from
long-term
Interest Dervatve Dervatve o Fair value Amortisation interast
2021 Drawdown paid purchases disposals  short-term changes of loan fees charged”® 2022
Em £m £m Em £m £m £rm Em £m £m
Short-term liabilities
Loans and borrowings 88.0 15.1 — — — 152.4 — — 4.5 270.0
l-oan arrangement fees 0.2 - — — - (0.3) - 0.5 - -_—
Accrued lpan interest** 6.0 — (28.2) - - - - — 28.1 5.9
103.8 i5.1 (28.2) - — 152.1 — 0.5 32.6 2759
Long-term liabilities
Loans and borrowings  1,079.4 145.3 — — — (152.4) — — 10.6 1,082.9
Loan arrangement fees 1z.n — - — - 0.3 - 1z - (10.6)
1.067.3 145.3 - — — (152.1) - 1.2 10.6 1,072.3
Derivatives used to
hedge borrowings
Dervative financial
mstruments (1.4) — — (6.2) 1.0 — (25.6) - — (32.2)
Total liabilities from
financing activities 1,169.7 160.4 (28.2% (6,21 10 — (25.0% 1.7 15.2 1,216.0

Interest charged includes non-utilisation fees ard is nel of acerued interest of £4 3 which s not capitalised or the loan palarce out 1s Included n other payabies (see note 17).

* Accrued Ipan interest relates to intarast on potn long-term habilities and snart-termn haoihties.
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22. Liabilities - reconciliation of cash and

non-cash movements continued

Cash flows Non-cash flows
Loar and  Interest Ba ances Farr value Accrued  Amortsation interest
2020 Drawdown hedge fees paid acquired*** changes Ioan ‘ees  of 0an fees charged* 2021
£mr Em Err £rm £rm £m £m £m fm £rm
Short-term lapinties
Loans and borrowings 32.6 4.5 — - 60.9 — — — — 38.0
Loan arrangement fees (0.1 — —_ — (0.2) — — G — (0.2
Accrued loan interest** 4.3 — — (24.5) — — — — 26.2 6.0
36.8 4.5 - (24.5) 60.7 - — 0.1 26.2 102.8
Long-term liabilities
Loans and borrowings  1,029.4 47.1 — - - — — — 29 1,079.4
Loan arrangement fees {13.8) — — — — — — 1.7 — (12.1)
1,015.6 47.1 — - — — — 1.7 —  1.067.3
Derivatives used to
hedge borrowings
Derivative financial
instruments 2.7 — — — 1.7 (5.8) — — — (1.4
Total liabilities from
financing activities 1,055.1 51.6 — (24.5) 62.4 (5.8) - 1.8 291 1,169.7

Interest charged includes non-utilisation fees and is net of accrued interest of £6 Om which 1s not capitalised an the 10an balance out 15 Included in other payabkles {see note 17).

* Accrued toan interest relates to interest on both leng-term haoiliftes and short-term haoilities

***Dunng the 2027 year the grouo acquired New Maker Yards Phase 2 and resultartly became party to its loan obligations {see note 24)

23, Risks and financial instruments
The Group's key financial risks arising from its operating activities and its financial instrurments are:

* credit risk,

e liguidity risk, and

* market risk ¢(including interest rate risk and currency risk)
The Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk managemeant framework.

Categories of financial nstrurrents:

2022
Carrying value Fair value
£m £m
Financial assets
At fair value through profit or ‘oss:
Derivative financial instruments (level 2) 322 32.2
Financial liabilities
At amortised cost:
Luans ahd borrawings - hixed rate {level 3) 926.0 779.9
Loans and barrowings - floating rate (level 3) 416.3 416.3
2027
Carrying value Fair value
£m £m

Financial assets
At fair value through profit or ioss:
Derivative financial instruments (level 2) 2.3 2.3
Financial liahilities
At amortised cost:
Loans and borrowings - fixed rate (level 3) 9151 960.2
L.oans and borrowings - floating rate (level 3) 250.0 250.0
At fair value through profit or loss:
Derwvative finangial instruments (level 2) 0.9 0.9
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23. Risks and financial instruments continued

Management assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, financial assets included n tragde ard other receivables
and financial vabilities iInciuded in trade and other payables (all at amortised cost) approximate their carrying amounts largely due
to the short-term maturities of these instruments. The difference between the fair value and the carrying amount of non-current
trade and other receivables and .org-term other payables 1s immatenal. The fair values of the fixed rate loans and borrowings have
been caculated based on a discounted cashflow model using the prevailing market rate of Interest, determined with reference
to recent transactiors and negotiat:ons occurring within the Group for icans with similar terms,

Financial iInstruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value are disclosed as levels 1 to 3 based on the
degree to which the farr vatue 1s observable (see note 5)

Credit risk

The Group services the private rental property sector as It rents its investment properties to third party private residents. The PRS
industry s highly competitive and reiies on payment of financial obligations by private iIndividuals, whose economic circumstances
can alter from time to time If a tenant experiences financial difficulties this may result in arrears which, ultimately, are pursued
through a iegal process which can end in repossession of the property. The Group mitigates this risk by conducting comprehensive
credit checks. Currently, for thase tenants that do rot pass credit checks, the Group reguires receipt of a deposit prior to tenancy
commencement and will Insist on guarantoers as required. The effectiveness of the Group's policy in this regard 1s evidenced by the
Group's consistently high collect:on rates of 97% (2027 97%).

The Group considers the credit worthiness of counterparties holding baiances that are inciuded withir other receivables,
ensuring that amounts are not advanced unless full recoverability 1s anticpated.

The credit risk on iquid funds 1s Imited because the significant counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
‘nternational credit-rating agencies

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk s the risk that the Group will rot be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due The Group aims to mitigate
hquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturty profiles of fnancial assets and liabilties For details of the Group's avallable debt
faciities, inciuding undrawn amounts, see note 20.

The following table represents the contractual unaiscounted cash flow

Carrying Contractual Less than One to Two to Over five

amount cash flow one year two years five years years

2022 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Trade and other payabies 72.0 72.0 64.1 2.7 4.1 1.1
Loans and borrowings 1,342.3 1,558.3 2911 23.3 225.7 1,018.2
Total 1,414.3 1,630.3 355.2 26.0 229.8 1,019.3
Carrying Contractua Less thar One ta Two to Over Ave

amount cash flow ane year TWO years five years years

2021 £m £ £m £m £m £m
Trade and other payabies 122.5 122.5 110.3 2.9 8.8 a.5
Loans and borrowings™ 1,166.7 1,451.5 122.0 182.0 79.6 1.067.9
Dervative financial instruments 0.9 09 0.3 0.6 — —
Total 1,290.1 1,574.9 232.6 185.5 88.4 1.068.4

ncluded witmin loans and borrewings s a carrying amount of £18m which i1s classified as frade and other payaores on the Staternent of Zinancial Position at 31 December 2021
Tris balance relates to accrued interest ard non-utilisatior fees or loan faciities rot yet utibsed and the contractual cashflows are alse snrown in the loans and berrowings
line of tne above note
Market risk
Market risk s the risk that changes In market prices, such as interest rates, will affect the Group's income or the value of its
investment properties and holdings of finarcial instruments. The objective of market risk management s to manage and
cortror market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return,

Currency risk
The Group has no significant assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than Pounds $terling and was therefore not
exposed to currency risk at the Statement of Financial Pasitior date.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities expose it to risks associated with the effect of fluctuations in the
prevalling levels of market interest rates on its financial position and cash flows. The long-term other payabies are not subject
to interest rate rsk as they do not bear interest
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23. Risks and financial instruments continued

Interest rate risk continued

The interest rate profile of the Group's fnancial assets and labilities, excluding short-term payables and recevables,
as at 31 December 2022 was’

Total carrying
value (before

unamaortised
Fixed rate Floating rate loan issue
items items costs)
2022 £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash at bank — 66.5 66.5
Monias held In restricted accounts and depesits -_ 135 135
Total - 80.0 80.0
Financial Habilities
Loans and borrowings (before the effect of the
derivative and excluding accrued interest) 936.6 416.3 1,352.9

{As restated™)
Tota: carry'ng
value (before

unamortised

Fixed rate Floating rate van I1ssug
Items tems costs)

2021 £m Em £m
Financial assets
Cash at bank — 851 85.1"
Restricted cash - 15.8* 15.9*
Total - 101.0 101.0
Financial liabilities
Loans and borrowings (before the effect of the
derivative and excluding accrued interest) 827.0 250.4 1,177.4

Cash and cash equivalerts and restricted cash nave been retrospectively restated as at 31 Decermber 2021 following a clarificatior py ‘FRIC on the presentatron of
Tories that have iegal or contractual restrichiors on ther use out are paysically accessible, see note 16 for further informatior
The Group makes use of derivative financial instruments where possible to minimise the Group's overall exposure to
interest rates.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The Group has dervative arrangerments in place to fix the interest rate on the majority of its vanable rate loans with hugh

hedge efficiency. Therefore the Group's Ioans and borrowings as at 31 December 2022 are not subject to significant changes

N Interest rate movemeants. However, the interest rate dernvatives are subject to movements in floating interest rates based on
SONIA (see note 2). The impact on the fair value of the dervative financial iInstruments if interest rates increase/decrease by
50 basis points would be an increase/decrease Ir the gair on derivative financiai instruments of £4 6m (2021 £3 5m).

Fair value measuraments
The foilowing table presents the Grour's assets and iabilities that are measured at fair value

Total galn/
2022 Assets Liabilities {losses)
Recurring fair value measurements £m £m £fm
Level 2
Derivative financial instruments 32.2 - 25.6
2021 Assets L .athities Tota. losses
Recurring fair value measurements £m £m £m
Level 2
Jerivative financial instruments 2.3 (0.9 5.8
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24. Asset acquisition between entities under common control

On 15 September 2027, the Group acquired the entire share capital of Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Phase 2 Topco
Limited (MWL2 TopCo'), ccllectively known as New Maker Yards Phase 2, from Middiewooed Locks LLP (MWL LLP") for a total
consideration of £142.3m.

Get Living Group (Middlewood _ocks) Phase 2 Topco Limited 1s a private imited company registered in the British Virgin Islands.
Middlewnnd | acks | 1R and 1t subsidianans arn entinies jointly contralled ultirmately by Uie same shareialders (nula 237,

The acquisition was for the New Maker Yards Phase 2 site in Salford, Manchester with a view to completing the develocprment of
this property as a residentiai scheme, alongside the Group's existing New Maker Yards Phase 1 property

The acquisition was not treated as an acquisition of a business as the acauired group held one property asset with neghgible
operations. As such, the transaction was treated as an asset acquisiion between entities under common control and the
identifiable assets and habihties of the acguired group were recorded at their fair values on the acquisition date.

£m
Fair value of net assets acquired:
Investment property 119.8
Trade and other recewables 85.2
Cash and cash equivalents 12.9
Loan net of arrangement fees (60.7)
Trade and other payabtes (13.2)
Derivative financial instruments (1.7
Net assets acquired 142.3

No cash was transferred in consideration for this transaction as it was funded through Shareheclder funding of £142.3m (note 25).

25. Other equity reserves

2022 2021

£m £m

Opening balance 541.3 239.4
Equity contribution for asset acauisition {(note 24) — 142.3
Other equity contribution 48.0 158.6
Closing balance 589.3 541.3

During the year there was a cash equity contribution from shareholders in the ordinary course of business of £48.0m
(2021. £159.6m) Shareholder furding 1s interest free and repayable only upon liguidation of Get Liv:ng 2LC. In the prior year
there was alsc a non-cash contribution of £142.3m 1n respect of the acquisit-on of New Maker Yards Phase 2 (see note 24)

26. Retained earnings
The retained earnings reserve represents cumulatve profits, :ncluding unrealised profit on the remeasurement of investment
properties and investment properties under construction.
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27. Share capital and other reserves

Qrdinary shares Sharg
Number of of £1 each premiurm
ordinary shares £m £m
Allotted, called up share capital:
At 31 Decermber 2021 and 31 December 2022 1,000,000 10 —

Heiders of ardinary shares are entitied to one vote per share. The Company Is authonsed to 1ssue unhimited shares.

For the purpose of the Group's capital mapagerment, capital inciudes 1ssued capital and ail other equity reserves attributabie to the
equity holders of the parent. The primary cbjective of the Group's capital management 1s to maximise shareholder value. There are
no debt covenants that place any restriction over capital.

Distributable reserves
The distributable reserve was created in 2018 by transferring share premium of £950.7m to distributable reserves through a capital
reduction During the year. a total dividend of £nil (202% £nil) has been paid to sharehelders from the distributable reserve

Amounts avallable for distribution consist of the Company’s realised profits within retained earnings and the distributabie reserve
{see note 12 to the Company’s financial staterments),

Consolidation reserve

In November 2018, the Group was formed through a reorganisation m which the Company became a new parent entity of the Group
The Group financial statements were prepared using the pooling of interests method, with the difference in share capitai and reserves
resulting from the use of the pooling of Interests method of £10.8m being recorded as an adjustment to the consclidation reserve
in the penod ended 31 March 2019,

28. Non-controlling interests
The ron-controlling interest relates to the estate management company for East Village, EVML. The non-controling interast
represents the units operated by Triathlon Homes LLP - shared ownership and social housing.

The cumulative non-controlling interest of EVML at 31 December 2022 was £0.1m (2021 £01m)

The non-controlling interest reserve represents corresponding cumulative profits from EVML's company operations

29. Controlling parties
At 31 December 2022 Get Living PLC was jointly controlled as follows

(i) by DOOR, 5L2 a imited partnership registered and incorporated in Jersey;
(iny by QD UK Holdings LP, a imited partnership registered and incorporated in Scotland, and
() by Stichting Depaositary ARG Strategic Real Estate Pool, a pension fund asset manager based in the Netherlands.

Subsequent to the year end QD UK Holaings LP. ene of the Group's controlling parties, exchanged on a transaction to dispose
of its entire sharehalding in Get Living PLC to Aware Super, an Australian superannuation fund.

30. Related party disclosures
Transactions between the Group and ts related parties that are recogrised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Statement of Financial Position are summarnsed below:

2022 2021
£m £rm
Group Statement of Comprehansive Income
Advisory fees charged by Qatari Diar Europe LLP and expensed {0.8) -
Developrnent advisory fees charged to entities under common control 0.5 -
2022 2021
£m £m
Group Statement of Financial Position
Advisory fees charged by Qatar Diar Europe LLP and capitalised to investment property 0.8 1.8
Receivable from QD UK Holdings LP 0.4 -
Development adwisery fees recevable from entities under common control 0.5 -
Shareholder eguity not settied in cash 85.2 85.2
Insurance proceeds payable to shareholders (1.3) (1.3
Loar from T3 Residentiai Limited (9.6) -
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30. Related party disclosures continued
Qatar Diar Europe LLP 15 a wholly owned subsidiary of Qatari Diar Real Estate Investment Company which has control over

QD UK Holdings LP as a nmited partner

Total fees of £1.6m were iIncurred with respect to services provided by Qatarl Drar Europe LLP in the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021 £19m), of which £0 8m (2021 £nil) were expensed and E0 8m (2021: £1.9m) were capitalised to investment property
As at 31 December 2022 there were no faes payahle tn Natar Diar Eurcpe LUK (2027 Cnil)

During the year the Group incurred expenses of £0.8m (2021 €nil) on behalf of D UK Holdings LP. The Group recharged £0.8m
(20271 Eril) of these expenses to QD UK Holadings LP of which £0.4m (2021 Eml) remains receivabie as at the Statement of Financial
Position date

The Group recegnised other incorme of £0 5m as a result of development advisory services provided to entities under common
control {2021 £nih).

There 1s a balance of £85 2m included within other receivables being sharehclder equity that has not been settled in cash, whereby
the shareholders have committed equity to guarantee the due performance of the New Maker Yards Phase 2 group companies
of payment obligations under both a bullding agreement and a facility agreerment to the sum of this amount. Following practical
completion of New Maker Yards Phase 2, the third party guarantees have significantly reduced.

The Group received Insurance proceeds from a third party, which as at the statement of financial position date were payable to
shareholders and were therefore recognised as an other payable.

During the year a loan of £9.6m was received from T3 Residential Limited, an entity under cornmon contrel. The toan 1s repayable
on demand and 1s not secured against any of the Group's assets. The loan represents the advancement of a government grant
that was awarded to T3 Residential Limited to help furd the development of affordable housing at the Elephant and Castle Town
Centre Development.

Get Living operates a co-investment plan for certain members of the Executive Team The plan allows the participant 1o invest
into the Company over the term of the plar. The plan allows for a subscription for units that vest on a hiquidity event or at the
end of seven years by reference to Net Asset Value per share. The amount of co-investment held on the Statement of Financial
Position as at 31 December 2022 15 £0.4m (2021 £nmil). The amount of the co-investment scheme expensed to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income s included within salaries and wages for key management personnei, see note 8

During the year ended 31 Decermnber 2021, there was an asset acquisition between entities under common contrel which 1s disclosed
in note 24.

See note 37 for the list of subsid:ary undertakings of the Company.

31. Capital commitments
The Group has the following currert commitments under its developrnent projects

2022 2021

£m frm

Newton Place 72.1 132.8
Elephart and Castie Town Centra 440.0 505.7
New Maker Yards Phase 2 - 3.2
East Village 34.5 27.%
Total 5486.6 669.0

Capita commitments represent contractually committed development expenditure, including amounts agreed under forward
funding centracts and a rommirmant 1o purchaseo the ewsting acaderic Luillding uwnied by the uriversity ot the Arts London
for £70 5m, with the cash outflow for this purchase anticipated to be in 2024. Al amounts aside from the commitment to
purchase an academic bullding are already captured in the financial statements as either a deduction to the fair value of
nvestment property or a provision \n the Statement of Firancial Position
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32. Contingent liabilities

As part of the acquisition of New Maker Yards Phase 2 {note 24) the Group became party to guarantee agreements relating to
financing arrangements and development contracts Initially there was a maximum aggregate hability of £85 2m payable under
these guarantees which 15 backed by shareholder foans to the sum of £85 2m (see note 15). Followng practical completion of
the New Maker Yards Phase 2 development, the total guarantee outstanding as at 31 December 2022 15 £2.3m (2021, £57m)

The Group was subject to an ongotng tax enguiry at the Statement of Firancial Position dafe that subsequently resulted
in o future cutflow of economic resources, accordingly a provision has been recognised, refer to note 18.

23. EPRA performance measurements

In accordance with the latest published EPRA guidehines {EPRA Best Practices Recommendations) the Group has presented the
appropriate measures being EPRA Net Remstatement Value ("EPRA NRV”), EPRA Net Tangible Assets ("EPRA NTA"), EPRA Net
Disposal Value ("EPRA NDWV™) and EPRA Loan to Value ("EPRA LTV")

The EPRA NRV seeks tc highlight the value of net assets on a long-term basis and assumes that entities never sell assets and aims to
reprasent the value required to rebulld the entity Assets and liabilities that are not expected to crystailise in normal crcumstances,
such as the fair vaiue moverments on derivatives, are therefore excluded Since the aim of the metric 1s to also reflect what would
be needed to racreate the company through the investment markets based on its current capital and financing structure, related
costs such as real estate transfer taxes should be Included. EPRA NRV will be the primary EPRA measure used by the Group.

The EPRA NTA calculation assumes entities buy and sell assets, with fair value movements on derivatives being exciuded
it I1s the board's intention to hold all iInvestment propertres for the long term and not to sell them.

The EPRA NDV seeks to represent the full extent of habilities and resulting sharehclder value if company assets are sold and/
or If liabiities are not held until maturity. For this purpose, the SPRA NDV provides the reader with a scenario where financial
nstruments and certain other adjustments are calculated as to the full extert of flabilities, net of any resulting tax.

2022

£m
EPRA Net Asset Value measures EPRA NRY EPRA NTA EPRA NDV
Total shareholders' equity 1,513.6 1,513.6 1,513.6
Deficit of far value of trading property over carrying value 3.5 35 3.5
Dervatve financial instruments (32.2) (32.2) -
Deficit of fair value of fixed interest rate debt over carrying value - - 146.1
Real estate transfer tax 79.0 — -
EPRA measure 1,563.9 1,484.9 1,663.2
Per share measure (E)* 1,564 1,485 1,663

* “he EPRA NAV per snare, EPRA NRY per share, EPRA NTA per snare and FERA NDV per share are calculated by dividing the EPRA performance measure oy the numoer
of ordinary shares in issue at the end of the reporting perod, being 1.0C0.000 snares

2021

£m
CPRA Net Asset value measures EPRA NRV EPRA NTA CPRA NDV
Total sharehclders’ equity 1,329.3 1,329.3 1,329.3
Derivative finapcial instruments (1.4 (1.4 -
Excess of fair vaiue of fixed interest rate debt over carrying value — - (45.1)
Real estate fransfer tax 75.5 — —
EPRA measure** 1,403.5 1,327.9 1,284.2
Per share measure (£}* 1,404 1,228 i.284

Tre EPRA NAV per snare, EPRA NRY oer share, EPRA N1A per snare ard EPRA NDV per share are calculated by dividing the EPRA performance measure oy the numoer
of ordinary snares |m ssue at the end of the ~eportirg oenod, peing 1,000,000 snares

AL 3T Decemnber 2021, the far value of tradirg oroperty 1s equal fo the carrying value.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes 1o the financial statements continued

33. EPRA performance measurements continued
The EPRA LTV seeks to present a gearing metric that 1s comparabie between entities through standardisation of calculation.

2022 2021
EPRA LTV measure £m £€m
Net debt
Include:
_oans and borrowings 1,342.3 1,.165.1
Net payables — 12.6
Exclude:
Cash and cash equivalents (66.5) (85.1)
Net debt 1,275.8 1,092.6
Investment property portfolio and other eligible assets
Investment properties at fair value 2,659.2 2,366.2
Trading property 68.6 35.6
Net receivables 135 —
Restricted cash 13.5 15.9
Total investment property poritfolio and other eligible assets 2,754.8 2,417.7
EPRA LTV 46.3% 45.2%

34. Net asset value per share
Net asset value per share 15 calculated as equity attributable to owners divided by the number of ordinary shares in 1ssuc at the

end of the reporting period. As at 31 December 2022, net asset value per share is £1,514 {2027: £1,.329).

35. Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated as profit after taxatior attributable to eguity holders of the parent of £136.3m (2021 £58.1m)
divided by the weighted number of shares in 1ssue during the year ended 31 Decernber 2022 of 1,000,000 shares

(2021 1,000,000 shares) Basic earnirgs per share and diluted earnings per share amount to £136.36 (2021: £58 03).

36. Subsequent events
Subseguent to the year end Q0 UK Holdings LE one of the Group's cantrolling parties, exchanged on a transaction ta dispose

of its entire sharehaiding 1in Get _iving PLC to Aware Super

Subseguent to the year end the Group made a payment of £18 @ million to HMRC as part of an agreement signed 1in March
2023 to settle an ongoing tax enauiry The settlement of this balance confirms that the Group had a presenrt obligation at the
end of the reporting period and therefore the Group has recegnised a provision for £18.7m, refer to note 18,

There are no further subseauent events that impact the Group.
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37. Subsidiaries

Country of C'ass of 2022 2021

Subsidiaras of Get Living PLC ncorporatien Status shares held awnership % ownership %
Get Living London EV Holdco Limited UK Active Crrctinary 100 1060
Get Living London EV NO1 Limited UK Active Ordirary 100 100
Get Living London BV NO2 _imited UK Active QOrrlinary 100 100
Got Living London BV NGS Limited UK Active Ordirary 100 100
Get Living London EV NO4 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living London EV NOS Limited** UK Active Ordirary 100 100
Get Living London EV NO6 Lirmited UK Active QOrdirary 100 100
Get Living London EV NO7 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living London EY NO8 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living London EV N09 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living London EV N10 Lirmited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living London EV N13 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living Longdlon EV N14 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living London EV N15 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Lwving London EV N26 Limited UK Active Ordirary 100 100
Get Living London EV1 Holdco Limited UK Dormant Qrdinary 100 100
Get Living London EVZ Hotdco Limited UK Active Qrdinary 100 100
Get Living Lendon Larmited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Newincco 1234 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD Athletes village UK Limited UK Active Qrdinary 100 100
QDD East Village UK Limited UK Dormant Ordinary 100 100
QDD (Village Plots) Holdco Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV Holdeco Limited UK  Dormant Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NO1 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NOZ Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NO3 Limitea UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD Ev NO4 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NO7 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NO9 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV N10O Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDO EV N13 umited UK Active COrdinaty 100 100
QDD EV N14 Limited UK Active Qrdinary 100 100
QDD EV N1& Limited 124 Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EY N26 Limited LK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NO5 Holdeo 1 Limited UK Dormant Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NO5 Holdco 2 Limited UK  Dormant Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NOS Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NO6 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NO6 (992) Limited UK Dormant Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NO6/NO8 Holdco 1 Limited W3¢ Active QOrdinary a0 100
QNN FV NNASMOIE Huldeo 2 Linnited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NOB/NO8 Holdco 3 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD Ev NO6/NO8 Holaco 4 Lirmited [912¢ Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NO8 Holdco Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NO8 L'mited Uk Active QOrdinary 100 100
QDD EV NO8 (995) Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD Ev1 Investment UK Limited UK Dormant Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV2 Investment UK Limited UK Dormant Orcinary 100 100
GDD Holdco Limited* BvL Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD uimited BVI Active Ordinary 100 100
tratford Vitlage Development (GP) Limited UK Dormant Ordinary 100 100
Stratford Viilage Development LP1 Limited UK Dormant Ordinary 100 100
Stratford Village Development LP2 Limited UK Dormant Ordinary 100 100
Stratford Village Development Partnership UK Active Ordinary 100 100
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Notes 1o the financial statements continued

37. Subsidiaries continued

Country of Class of 2022 2021
Subsidiaries of Get Living PLC incorporation Status shares neld ownership % ownearship %
Stratford Village Property Holdings 1 Limited UK Dormant Ordinary 100 100
Stratford Village Property Holdings 2 Limited UK Dormant Ordirary 100 100
SVDP Limited UK Darrmanrt Ordinary 100 100
Eact Willage Managwinenl Limited UK Active Limited by 58 58
guarantee
Dv4 613 Limited® B8vI Active Ordinary 100 100
DV4 Eadon Co. Limited BVI Active Ordinary 100 100
Dv4 Eadon Development UK Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Elephant Central Management Limited UK Active Limited by 100 100
guarantee
Tribeca Sauare (Commercialy 175 Co. Lirmited B! Active Ordinary 100 100
Tribeca Sauare (Commercial) 950 Co. Limited BVt Active Ordinary 100 100
Tribeca Saquare (Mawes House) 175 Co. Limited Bv! Active Qrdinary 100 100
Tribeca Square (Mawes House) 990 Co. Limited BvI Active Ordinary 100 100
Tribeca Square (Portchester Bouse) 175 Co. Limited BWVI Active Ordinary 100 100
Tribeca Square (Portchester House) 920 Co. Limited Bvi Active Ordinary 100 100
Tribeca Sauare (Raglan and Tantallon House) BWVI Active Ordinary 100 100
175 Co. Limited
Tribeca Square (Raglar and Tantallon House) BV Active Ordinary 100 100
990 Co. Limited
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Topco Limited BvI Active Ordinary 100 100
(Previously Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks)
Phase 1 Topce Ca. Limited)”
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) BVI Active Ordinary 100 100
Phase 1 Holdco Co. Limited
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) BvI Active Ordinary 100 100
Phase 1 Co. Limited
Get Living Group (Middlewcod Locks) Phase 1 399 BVI Active Ordinary 100 100
Holdco Co. Limited
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) § 999 BV Active Ordinary 100 100
Co. Limited
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Phase 1 175 BWVI Active Ordinary 100 100
Holdeco Co. Limited
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) | 175 Co. Limited BV Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Reversionary BV Active Qrdinary 100 100
Co. Limted
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) F Reversionary BWVI Active Ordinary 100 100
Co. Limited
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) J Reversionary BvI Active Ordinary 100 100
Co. Limited
MWL Estate Management Limited UK Active Limited by 100 100
guaraniae
Get Living (Middlewood Locks) Phase 2 Topco Limited BVI Active Crdinary 100 100
(Previously Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks)
Holdco Co. Limited)
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Co. Limited BwvI Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Residental BVI Active Crdinary 100 100
Co. uimited
Get Living {Middlewood Locks) Phase 2 Holdco BvVI Active Oradinary 100 100
Co. Limited
Get Living {Middlewood Locks) Phase 2 Co. uimited BwvI Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living (Middlewood Locks) Deveioprrenrts Limited UK Active Qrdinary 100 100
Get Living (MWL) One Lirmited UK Active Qrdinary 100 100
Get Living (MWL) Two Limited UK Active Crdinary 100 100
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Phase 2 999 UK Active Crdinary 100 100

Holdco Limited
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37. Subsidiaries continued

Country of Class of 2022 2021
Subsidiaries of Get Living PLC ‘ncarcoration Status shares bald ownarship % ownership %
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) G 999 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) H 999 Limited UK Active Ordirary 100G 100
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Phase 2 175 LK Active Orcitpary 100 100
Holdeo Lyoited
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) G 175 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 166
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) H 175 Lirmited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisham Holdco Limited* Jersey Active QOrdirary 100 100
GL Lewisham Holdco 1 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisharn Holdco 2 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisham D1 Holdco Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Gl Lewisham D1 250 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisham C Holdco Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisham C 250 Lirmited UK Active Crdirary 100 100
GL Lewisham D2 Holdco Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisharm D2 250 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisham E Holdco Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisham E 250 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisham Common Parts Limited UK Active Qrdinary 100 100
GL Lewisham Developrment UK Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Gl Lewisham Gateway Management Limited UK Active Limitect by 100 100

guarantee
GL E&C Holdco Limited™ Jersey Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Elephant Two (Holdco) Limited Jersey Active Ordinary 100 100
clephant & Castle Development UK Limited UK Active Qrdinary 100 100
Elephant & Castle Properties Co. Limited BvI Active Crdinary 100 100
Elephant & Castle 930 Unr Co Limited UK Dormant Ordinary 100 100
Elephant & Castle Propertias Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Eiephant Three (Heldco) Limited BV Active Ordinary 100 100
E'ephant Three Develapment UK Limited UK Dormant Ordinary 100 100
Elephant Three Properties Limited BV Active Ordinary 100 100
E&C Manco Limited UK UK Limited by 100 100
guarantee

* Directly owned by Get Living PLC

** hewly incarporated during the penod ended 31 December 2022
Qwnership % i5 egual to the voting rghts held.

Subsidiaries have the following registered offices:

UK mcorporated: 6th Floor Lansdowne House, Berkeley Square, London WiJ 6ER

British Virgin islands incorporated: Craigmuir Cambpers, PO Box 71, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islards.

Jersey incorporated: 47 Esplanade, St Heher, Jersey JE1 QRD

Exceptions to the above UK incorporations:

East Village Management Limited Websters, 12 Melcombe Place, Marylebone, London NW? 6JJ.

38. Subsidiary audit exemption

The following subsidiary entities have taken exemption from the requirements relating to the audit of therr individual financial
statements for the year ended 3! Decaember 2022 by virtue of section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 and the exemption

contained therein. Accordingly the Company has guaranteed the obligat.ons of each of -ts subsidiary undertakirgs.

Supsidiaries of Get Living PLC

Registration number

Coun:ry of ncorporation

QDD EV NQ8/NO8 Holdeo 1 uimited
QDD Athletes Village UK Limited
Stratford Vilfage Developrment (GP) Limited

09504426
Q7503926
06583350

LK
UK
UK

Annual Report 2022



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company statement of financial position

2022 2021

Notes £m £rn
Non-current assets
Investments in subsicharies 7 866.2 9c4.7
Loans to subsidiaries 8 409.3 336.5
Total non-current assets 1,275.5 1,241.2
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 9 74.3 371
Cash and cash equivalents 0.5 1.9
Total current assets 74.8 35.0
Total assets 1,350.3 1,280.2
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 10 (9.2) (3.9
Income tax payable (0.5) (0.73
Loans and borrowings 11 {9.6) —
Total current liabillties (19.3) (4.2
Net assets 1,331.0 1.276.0
Equity
Share capital 12 1.0 1.0
Distributable reserve 12 783.6 783.6
Cther eguity reserves 13 589.3 541.3
Retamned deficit (42.9) (49.9)
Total equity 1,331.0 1,276.0

The Company profit for the year was £7 0m (2021 £78m). There was no other comprehensive income In the year or prior period.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors for 'ssue on 27 Aprit 2023 and were signed on 1ts behalf by

Vames Bosdle

James Boadle
Director
27 April 2023

Company registration no 11532492
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Company statement of changes in equity

Share Retained Distrbutable Other eguity Total

capital earnmings roserve reserve equity

Notes £m £m Em £m Em

At 1 January 2021 1.0 (57.7) 7836 239.4 966.3
Total comprehensive profit for the year — 7.8 - — 7.8
Other equity contributions 17 - — — 301.9 3019
At 31 becember 2021 1.0 (49.9) 783.6 541.3 1.276.0
Total comprehensive profit for the year — 7.0 - - 7.0
Other equity contributions 13 — — - 48.0 48.0
At 31 December 2022 1.0 (42.9) 783.6 589.3 1,331.0
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the Company financial statements

1. Statement of compliance with FRS 101

The Parent Company financial statements of Get LLiving PLC (the “Company™) for the yvear ended 31 December 2022 were authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 April 2023 and the Statement of Financial Pesition was signed on the Board's behalf by
Jarmes Boadle. These Parent Company financial statements were prepared in accordance with Firancial Reporting Standard 101
“Reduced Disclosure Framework” (FRS 101).

2. Basls of preparation

The Company's financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. The financial statements are presented in
millions of Ster'ing (£m) and all values are rounded to the nearest hundred thousand Sterling (£01m), except where otherwise
indicated The financial statements have been prepared for the year ended 31 December 2022, with the comparative period
being the year ended 31 December 2021

See note 1 to the Group financial statements for general information about the Company

The Company applies consistent accounting pelicies, as apphed by the Group. To the extent that an accounting pohcy 1s relevant to
both Group and Company financial statements, refer to the Group finanaal statements for disclosure of the accounting policy (see
rotes 2, 3, and 4 in the Group accounts). Accounting policies that apply to the Company only are included as appropriate (see note 3).

The Company has used the exermption granted under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 that allows for the non-disclosure
of the income statement of the Farent Company.

The Company did not have items to be reported as other comprehensive income. therefore, no Statement of Comprehensive
Incorme was prepared,

The Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 10T

* the requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - the management of financial risk disclosures including management
of credit, hguidity and market rsk and interest rate sensitwvity analyss,

the requirements of paragraphs 91-99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - disclosures around fair values of assets and labilities:

the requirerments of paragraphs 10(d), 16, 111 and 134-136 of 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - presentation of statement
of cash flows, explicit and unreserved statement of compliarce with international Financial Repoerting Standards and disclosures
of the Companry's objectives, policies and processes for managing capital,

the reguirements of |AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows,

= the reguirements of paragraphs 20 and 31 of 1AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changas in Accounting Estimates and Errors - disclosure
of new accounting standards and interpretations that have been 1ssued but are not yet effective;

+ the requirements of paragraphs 17 and 18A of IAS 24 Related Party Disciosures - disclosure relating to compensation of key
maragement personnel; and

« the requirements in 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose related party transactions entered into between the parent
and wholly owned subsidiaries,

Where required. equivalent disclasures are given in the consolidated financial statements of Get Living PLC. in which the Company
Is consolidated.

Going concern

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared or a going concern basis. The Directors have referred to cash
flow forecasts for the penod to 30 June 2024 n order o assess the requiraments of the Company over that period For further
information see note 2 1n the Group f rancial statements.

Judgements and estimates

The pirewaalion of Mhanclal sidemeants In contormity with FRS 101 requires the use of critical jJudgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of palicies and reported amounts of assets and llabilities, iIncorme and expenses. Estimates and assumptions
concerning the future and the accounting results of those estimates may rniot equal the related actual results.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas wheare assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financiai statements, are disciosed :n the retevant notes forrming part of these financial staterments as discussed below.

Key estimates

Investments in subsidiaries

Get Living PLC carries out an annual impairment review on the value of iInvestments heid by the Company The underlying ret assets
of the subsidiaries are deemed to be the net recoverable amounts. Where the carrying value of an investrment in a subsidiary exceeds
1ts recoverable amount, an impairment 1s recognised Further information 1s included in note 7

Discount rate

The Company entears Intc 1ong-terre interest free loans with subsidiary entities. These icans are measured at fair value, represented
by the present value of future cash flows discounted at the market rate of interest at the date of the initial drawdown. In determining
the market rate of :nterest, management considers interest rates which could be achieved on external funding, and other market
observations. Further mformation 1s included 1in note 8.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Investments in subsidiaries

Investments In subsidiaries are shown at cost less provision for imparment. Impairment exists when the carrying value of an invastment
m a subsidiary exceeds its recoverable amount, which 15 the tigher of 1its fair value iess costs of disposal and its value i use

b) Interest-free intercompany loans

Receivables arising from .nterest-free intercompany loans arc recognised when the Company beécomes party to the related
contracts and are measured Intaly at the fair value represented by the present value of future cash flows discounted at market
interest rate. An other equity reserve increasing the cost of investment In subsidiary 15 recognised, being the difference between
the above and the consideration advanced

After initial recognition, interest-free intercompany loans are subsasquently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The finance income s recogrised in the Staternent of Comprehensive Income,

©) Current tax
Current tax assets and habilities are measured at the amount expected tc be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on any non-REIT taxable income for the period, using tax rates applicable at the
Statemenrt of Financial Position date. any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years, and any charges arnising from
the requirements to meet the REIT regime rules.

4. Taxation

2022 2021
£m £m

Current tax credit (0.3) 0.2
Deferred tax charge - -
Tax (crecht)/charge for the year (0.3) 0.2
Factors affecting the tax (credit)/charge for the year
Profit before taxation 6.7 8.0
Profit befere taxation muitiphed by main rate of UK corporation tax of 19% (2021; 19%) 1.3 1.5
Effect of:
‘Mputed interest not deductible for tax purposes (6.8) (3.6)
Impairment of Investments 51 1.7
Losses not recognised - 0.3
Transfer pricing adjustment 0.4 -
Interest cover ratio charge 0.5 0.8
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (0.8) (6.5
Tax (credit)/charge (0.3) 0.2
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Notes forming part of the Company financial statements

-
continued

S. Auditor remuneration

2022 2021

£'000 £'000
Services provided by the Company's auditor:
Audit fees - audit of Parent Company accounts 4 5
Non-audit servires
Other assurance services - Interim review 20 20
Tax advisory services 20 63
Tax compliance services 472 327

516 415
6. Employees and Director remuneration
Refer to note 8 of the consolidated financial statements for Director remuneration disclosures
The Company had one employee during the year (2021 one).
7. Investment in subsidiaries

2022 2021

£m £m

Opermng baiance 904.7 808.7
Cther equity contribution to subsidrary undertakings 3.3 105.0
True-up of fair value discounting {15.0) —
impairment of Investments {26.8) (9.0)
Closing balance 866.2 904.7

The true up of the farr value discounting relates to the correction of the initial discounting provided on lcans to subsidiaries
in 2021 The directers do not consider this correction to be materal to the financial statements and as such, no prior year
restatement has been recorded. Refer te note 8 for the corresponding entry in lcans to subsidiaries

The Directors beleve that the carryirg value of the investments s supported by ther underlying net assets. After an assessment
of net recoverable amount, an iImpairment of £26 8m (2021 £9.0m) has been made. Impairments in the current year are primarily
due to far vaiue lasses an the revaluation of investment property, resulting i a decrease in the underlying net assets of the
mvestments. The overall iImpact on the Group's cansoildated results 1s £nif (2021 Enif),

2022 2021
Subsidiaries directy held by the Company- ownership % ownership %
QDD Holdeco Limited 100 100
DV4 613 Limited 100 100
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Topco imited 100 100
GL Lewisham Haldco Limited 100 100
GL E&C Holdeo Limited 100 100

The fuil list of subsidiary undertakings of the Company and their details are set out In nete 37 to the Group financial statements.
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8. Loans to subsidiaries

2022 2021
£m Em
Interest-free intercompany term toans:

Amounts due from Get Living Group {(Middlewccd Locks) Topco Limited 146.9 133.7
Amaunts due from GL Lewisham Holdco Limited Yy4.q9 /9.1
Amounts due from GL E&C Holdco Limited 141.4 116.2
Amounts due from QDD Holdco Limited 17.0 7.5

Interast-free iIntercompany loans repayable on demand:
Amounts due from GL E&C Holdco Limited 9.6 -
409.3 336.5

The Company has 1ssued interest free term lcans to 1its subsidiary entities in order to finance their operations. The totai
orincipal advanced s discounted to present value using the market interest rate of 10%. The difference between the principal
advanced and its present value Is recognised as an investment mn subsidiary. Imputed interest 1s charged on the interest free
loan balance.

The interest free loan due from Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Topco Limited 1s a term loan issued 'n March 2019 with
further drawdowns in Septembear 2021 and 1s repayable in March 2025.

The interest free locan due from GL Lewisham Holdco Limited 1s a terrm loan 1ssued in July 2020 with multiple further drawdowns
between July 2020 and December 20271 and 15 repayable in July 2026.

The interest free loan due from GL E&C Hoidco Limited 1s a term loan 1ssued 1in August 2020 with multiple further drawdowns
between August 2020 and June 2022 and 13 repayable in July 2025

The interest free loan due from QDD Holdco uimited 1s a term loar 1ssued in December 2021, with further subsequent drawdowns
beyond that date, and 1s repayable in December 2027

During the year the Company 1ssued an interest free loan to GL E&C Hoideo Limited which is repayable on demand (see note 11).

Reconcihation of movements during the year and cumulative totals:

Get Living Group GL Lew sham Gi FAC QDD
(Middlewood Locks) Heldco Holdco Holdco
Topco Limited Limited L sruted Lirmited Tota
Counterparty £m £m £m £rm £m
COpening balance 133.7 791 116.2 7.5 336.5
True-up of farr value discounting — 6.6 5.7 2.7 15.0
Issue of interest free loar — - 8.7 6.9 15.6
Farr value adjustment on 1ssue
of interest free loan (note 7) - - (2.2) (1.1 (3.3)
Imputed interest income 13.2 8.7 13.0 1.0 359
Closing balance 146.9 94.4 141.4 17.0 399.7
Cumulative totals
Drawdown 179.8 130.8 i77.0 20.2 507.8
Fair value adjustment on 1ssue (56.1) (49.6) (62.3 (6.9 (174.9)
b iahiity racogmcod on drovwelown 125,/ 81.2 114.7 13.3 2229
Imputed interest accrued 23.2 13.2 26.7 3.7 66.8
Tatal liability 146.9 94.4 141.4 17.0 399.7

The true up of the fair value discounting relates to the correction of the initial discounting provided on loans to subsichanes
In 2021, The directors do not consider this correction to be matenal to the financiai staterments and as such, no prior year
restaternent hasg been recorded. Refer to note 7 for the corresponding entry in investrnent in subsidiaries.

The Company has considered the recoverability of the loans to subsicharies at the reporting date based or the expected credit
loss model. The expected credit loss calculated s immaterial to the Company
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the Company financial statements

-
continued

9. Trade and other receivables
2022 2021
£m £m
Trade and other receivables 0.3 0.1
Prepayiments 0.1 —
Armounts due from subsichary undertakings 73.9 47U
74.3 37.1

Arnounts due from subsidiary undertakings are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand, with balances expected to

be settled within bwelve months aof the Statement of Financial Position date. Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings mncludes
amounts due from multiple subsidiary undertakings and represents short terrn funding requirements and operational amounts
advanced In the normal course of business. The Company has considered the recoverability of the amounts due from subsidiary
undertakings at the reporting date based on the expected credit loss model The expected credit loss calculated is immatenial to
the Cornpany.

10. Trade and other payables

2022 2021
£m Em
Other creditors 1.9 1.1
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings 7.3 2.4
9.2 3.5
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand.
11. Loans and borrowings
2022 2022
£m £m
Loan from T3 Residential Limited 9.6 -
9.6 —

Dunng the year a ioan of £9.6m was received from T3 Residential Limited, an entity under common control. The loan 1s repayable
cr demand and 1s not secured against any of the Company or Group's assets. The loan represents the advancement of & government
grant that was awarded to T3 Residential Limuted to heip fund the developrnent of affordable housing at the Elephant and Castle
Town Centre Development. The Company in turn advanced this funding to GL E&C Holdco Lirmted as & subsidiary (see note 8).

12. Share capital and other reserves
Refer to note 27 of the consolidated financial statements for share capital and other reserves disclosures

Total distributable reserves are the distributable reserve of £783.6m (2021 £783.6m) tess realised retamed deficit of £42.9m
(2021 £49.9m),

13. Other equity reserves
For detalls or other equity reserves see note 25 0 the Group accounts

14. Contralling parties
At 31 December 2022, Get Living PLC was jointly controlled as follows:

* by DOOR, SLP a imited partrership registered and incorporated in Jarsey,
* by QD UK Holdings LP a limited partnership registered and incorporated in Scotland,; and
s by Stichting Depositary APG Strategic Real Estate Pool, a pension fund asset manager based in the Netherlands.

Subseguent to the year end QD UK Holdings LP, one of the Group's controlling parties, exchanged on a transaction to dispose
of its entire shareholading in Get Living PLC to Aware Super, an Australian superannuation fund.

15. Contingent liabilities
For details on contingent liabilities see note 32 1n the Group accounts. There are no other contingent habiities that impact

the Cempany.
16. Subsequent events
For detalls an subseguent events see note 36 :n the Group accounts. There are no other subsequent events that impact the Company
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Glossary of terms

Assured Shorthold Tenancles ("AST”) are the agreements used
by iand'ords to et residential properties to private tenants.

Inherent RiIsk 1s untreated risk without any m tigating act.ons
or controls.

Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment
Method (“BREEAM?™) assesses the sustainability of buildings
against a range of criteria.

Bulld ta Rent {“BtR™) s prvate rented residential assets, built
and designed specifica ly for renting.

Company ang/or parent :s Get L ving PLC.

Direct property costs comprise ground rents payable under head
ieases, void costs, other direct irrecoverable property expenses,
rent review fees and valuation fees,

DOOR ‘s Delancey Oxford Residential, a co-investment vehicle.

Earnings before interest, tax, deprreciation and amortisation
("EBITDA") 15 3 metr'c used to evaluate 2 company's
operating performance.

Earnings per ordinary share from continuing operations (“"EPS”)
15 the profit attributab e to equity hoiders of the Parent divided by
the weightea average number of shares in ssue guring the period

European Public Real Estate Assoclation ("EPRA™) 5 a real estate
industry body, which has ‘ssued Best Practice Recommaeandations
In orger to provide cansistency ang transparency in rea estate
reporting across Europea. Geat Living has not early adopted the
new EPRA Best Pract:ce Recommaenaations ("BPRs").

EPRA cost ratlo 1s the ratio of net gverheads and operat.ng
expenses against gross rental income (w'th poth amounts
excludng ground rents payable). Net overheads and operat'ng
expenses relate to all agaministrative and operating expenses,
net of any service fees, recharges or other iIncome specifically
‘ntended to cover overhead and property expenses.

EPRA earnings is the profit after taxation excluding investment
and development property revaluations, gains/losses on disposals,
changes in the farr value of financ al instruments ang assocated
close-out costs and their reiated taxat on.

EPRA vacancy rate is, 3s a percentage, the ERV of vacant space n
the Group's property portfolio divided by ERV of the whole portfolio.

Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") are the three
key factors in measuring sustanabiity.

Estimated rental value (“ERV"™) s the external Valuers opinion as to the
open market rent which, on the date of va'uation, could reascnably be
expected to be obtained on a new 'etting or rent review of a property.

GHG is greenhouse gas emiss.ons.

GRESB s the iead ng ESG benchmark for real estate and
infrastrycture nvestrents across the world.

INREV s the European Assoc at:on for Investors in Non-L'sted
Real Estate.

Interest cover 13 the (wrnber of nmes met niterest pavable s
covered by net rentat ncome.

Interest Cover Ratle (“ICR”) charge s applicable to UK REITs
when property profits do not pass the ieverage test, being 1.25
t'mes the property financing costs.

interest rate cap s a contract to receive payments when nterest
rates are above a certain threshold, and 's generally used to
manage exposure to fluctuations in interest rates.

interest rate swap s a contract to exchange fixed payments for
floating payments linked to an ‘nterest rate, and 1s generally used
to manage exposure to fluctuations .n interest rates.

Loan to value (“LTV") 5 the rai o of net debt to the total value of
‘nvestment and trading property.

Mark to market (“MTM™) s the a'fference hetween the book vaiue
of an asset or hability and 1ts market value,

Net debt is total borrowings, excluding oan 1ssue costs, |ess
unrestricted cash.

Net promoter score (“"NPS”) measures customer experience and
predcts business growth. This proven metric provides the core
rmeasurerment for customer experience management globally.

The Net Promoter Score can range from a low of -100 (f every
customer 1s unhappy) to a high of 100 (if every customer 1s happy
to refer others).

Net rental Income s the rental income rece vable in the per ca
after payment of direct property costs. Net rental ‘'ncome 1s
quoted on an account ng bas's.

Portfollo value ncludes both investment and trading property.

Property Income Distribution (“PID™) is the requirea distribution
of income as dividends under the REIT regime. It 15 calculated as
90% of exempted net ncame.

PRS is the UK private rented sector.

Real Estate Investment Trust (“REIT”) is a listed property
company which qualifies for ang has elected nto a tax regime,
which exempts quaify'ng UK profits, arsing from property

rental income and gains on investrment property aisposals, from
corporation tax, but which has a number of spec .fic requrements.

Rent reviews take place at intervals agreea in the 'ease and ther
purpose s usually to agiust the rent to the current market leve at
the review date.

Gross rental iIncome ‘s the gross accounting rent receivable.

RICS s the Roval Institution of Charterea Surveyors.

Group 5 Get Living PLC and its subsidiaries.

SECR 15 Streamined Energy & Carbon Reporting

IFRIC s the IFRS Interpretations Commuttee Updates.

IFRS s Internationa Financial Reporting Standards.

Sterling Overnight Index Average {“"SONIA") s the effective
reference for overnight indexea swaps for unsecured transactions
in the Sterling market.
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FURTHER INFORMATION

APPENDIX: SECR Reporting Methodology

The Companies {Directors’ Report) and Limited Liability
Partnershups (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations

2018, also referred to as Streamlined Enargy and Carbon
Reporting (SECR). reguires all auoted companies, “large”
unguoted companies and LLPs to report ther UK energy use,
associated Scope 1 and 2 emissians, an intenstty metric and,
where applicable, global energy Lise mn their Annual Reports
Get Living PLC has foilowed the GHG Reporting Protecol -
Corporate Standard] for company reporting tc identify and
report relevant energy and GHG emissions which are materal
for the company for the year ending 31 December 2022

Data 15 included for the year 31 December 2021 to enabie
comparison with the previous year

Get Living has considered the materiality of environmental
rmpacts ansing from its operations and 1dentified GHG emissions
(generated via energy use) for Scope 1 and 2 to be the most
significant. This assessment was based on financial spend and
the ability for Get Living to control impacts. Although Scope 3
emissions reporting 1s voluntary, Get Living believes the impacts
from resident’'s energy use 15 materia! and has also included
the related GHG emissions In this report Other areas, such as
water, waste, biodiversity and emissions to air, water and land
are deemed iess matenal, however, some or all iImpacts may
be reported Ir the future.

Scope

Get Living PLC has chosen to report GHG emissions using the
Operational Control approach for its orgarisational boundary
This boundary iIncludes owned assets where the REIT, acting
as the landlord, 1s directly responsibie for electrnicity and/or
gas supplies and/or has control of arr conditioning eguipment.
Additionally, Get Living has included any scope 3 material
sources of emissions from owned assets, such as res:dent’s
electricity use in the reporting scope. where data 1s available.
Emissions from residential units under control of Triathion
Homes on a long leasehold agreement are excluded, or the
hasis that these units are rot under the operaticnal control

of Get Livirg PLC

Get Living PLC has considered the seven main GHGs covered
by the Kyoto protocol, including

+ Carbon dioxide (CO,)

+ Methane (CH,)

+ Nitrous oxide (N,O)

« Hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs)
+ Perfluorocarbons {(PFFCs)

» Sulphur Hexafluornde (SF )
= Nitroger Trifluoride (NF )

Total GHG emissions are reported in terms of carbor dioxide
equivalent (CO,e) Conversion factors have been sourced from
the UK Goverrment's Greenhouse Gas Reporting Factors for
Company Reporting (2021 and 2022)

The following sources of emissions have been considerea
as part of this reviow

Scope 1

= Direct emissions from controlled gas boilers in energy
centres at Elephant Centrai New Maker Yards (converted
from kWh usage)

« Business travel through company owned vehicles
(excluded as emissions from vehicle use Is negligible for
the reporting period).

» Get Living PLC has chosen not to report fugitive emissions,
eg. from refrigerant leaks

Scupe 2

» Inclirect emissions from electricity purchased by Get Living
PLC and consumed within real estate assets owned by the
company (converted from k\Wh usage}.

s |ndirect emissions from district heating purchased by Get
Living PLC and consumed within landlord controlied areas
of real estate assets owned by the company (converted
from kwWh usage). Emissions have been apportioned
between landlord and tenant use on a floor area basis

s Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions from electricity and
district heating (Scope 2) are reported according to the
‘location-basaed’ approach.

Scope 3

s |Indirect emissions from electrnicity purchased by Get Living
PLC assets residents and consumed within real estate assets
owned by the company {converted from kWh usage).

s Indirect emisstons from district heating purchased by Get
Living PLC and consumed within residential urits of reai
ostate assets owned by the company {converted from kWwh
usage). Emiss:ons have been apportioned between the
landlord and tenant use on a floor area basis.

Emissions within Operational Control

As a property company, the majerity of Get Living PLC
emissions arise through assets that are owned and leased.
Ar multi-let properties, Get Living PLC acting as the landlord,
has contrel ard influence over the whole bullding and/or
shared services, external lghting and void spaces. In this
reporting year, Get Living PLC was responsible for Scope |
and/ocr Scope 2 emissions at the assets held by entities listed
n note 37 to the financial statements All Get Living PLC's
assets are located n the UK.

Carbon Offsets
No carbon offsets were purchased during the
reporting pencd.

Emissions outside of Operational Control

Get Living PLC 15 not directly responsible for any GHG
emissions/energy usage at single let/FRI assets nor at muilti-let
assets where the tenant 1s counterparty to the energy contract.
These emissicns form part of the wider value chair (1L.e ‘Scope 37
ermissions, which are currently monitored and reported only
for tenants energy use. Ermissions from rasidential units under
control of Triathlor Homes or a long easehold agreement

are excluded, on the basis that these units are not urder

the operational controt of Get Living PLC

Baseline Year

A basehne year of 2021 has been selected to enable
comparison over time. The baseline year comprises energy/
GHG data from all the assets {where data has been reported).

Get Living PLC



Intensity Ratios (Key Performance Indicator)

In addition to reporting relevant absolute GHG ermissions

{by scope and per sector), Get Living PLC has chosen to
report Intensity ratios, where appropriate The denominator
determined to be most relevant to the business s sguare
metres of net lettable area. The :ntensity ratio s expressed as:

= Encrgy: kilowall hours per metre square (net lettable area)
per year, Or, kWh/m?/yr

+ GHG: kilograms carbon dioxide equivalent per metre square
(net lettable area) per year. or. kgCCe/m?/yr.

Like-for-like Reporting
Assets are included within like-for-like and mntensity analysis
where each of the following conditions 1s met

-

assets owned for two consecutive years,

* 1o major renovation or refurbishment has taken place
Le. affecting more than 50% of the bullding by area or

number of occupants:

.

at {east 24 months data 1s avalable; and

bulldings have mantained at least 75% occupancy 1in the
last 24 months.

New Maker Yards Phase 1 tenant etectricity has been excluded
from hke-for-like due to data avallability, whilst New Maker
Yards Phase 2 and Portiands Place have been exciuded from
like-for-like due to the development works being completed
during the 2021 reporting year.

Normalisation Factors

Normalisation of intensity rabios and like-for-ike data has been
completed to account for year-on-year changes in annual
temperatures. Annual gas usage data for 2022 has been
compared to, and normansed against, the UK degree day
rat:o between 2021 and 2022, Degree days data 1s sourced
from www.degreedays.net using the closest and rmaost reliable
weather station to each asset.

As 2072 was a warmer year than 2021, this normailisation
presents an increase in like-for-lke degree day adjusted
emissions and energy consumption where absolute energy
consumption 1s unchanged. This reflects that during 2 warmer
year the energy required to heat a space shouid be reduced,
and therefore the consumption i the warmer year 15 adjusted
upwards to negate the impact of the warmer weather.

Nao further agjustrrents are cons:dered for this Annual Report,
however, further ovaluation concerrmy verupancy and/or
operation hours may be considerad in the future

Data Collection and Validation

Data has been sourced from Get Living’s Property Managers
and their utility brokers. Data 1s held within the sustammability
cata platform SIERA which 1s used as the basis for data checking
and validation, In summary, the apphed process includes:

1. Confirmation of asset location and scope of landlord
impacts (Scopes 1 and 2)

2. Input of Scope 1 and Scope 2 data (provided by Property
Managers and appointed brokers)

3. Completion of data accuracy checks

4 Initial review and/or approval of data (by Property Managers)

Furthermore, energy use within the assets 15 actively tracked
and reported against cn an annual basis.

EVORA has reviewed the accuracy of data as determined by
actual or estimated kwh usage As a percentage of the total
kWh reported, actual/estimated data was reported on the
following basis for 2021 ard 20722

» Scope 1 (gas) 96% actual data/4% estimated
s Scope 2 (electricity) 99% actual data/1% estimated
= Scope 3 {residents electricity): 99% actual data/1% estimated

Note that residential electricity has been excluded at New
Maker Yards Phase 2. Data 1s only availlable for residentiai
units on @ move In / move out basis and, due to the age of
the asset, data 1s currentiy unavaillable

Where data estimations have been calculated, the following
approach has been undertaken:

Electricity: Average dally consumption rate calculated from
actual data received in same year and apportioned over the
data gap pernod.

Gas: Actual gas consurnption for the same months at
Middlewoad Locks Phase 1 used to fill gaps in Middlewood
Locks Phase 2, uplifted for fioor area differerces.

District Heating: No district heating estimations have
keen requirea.

Scope 1 data {gas) s based on whole asset gata as the
landlord procures the mamn gas supply to the heat plants
which 1s then provided and recharged to residents through
heat meters.

Scope 2 and scope 3 district heating has been apportioned
between landiord and tenart space on a floor area basis to
better reflect the consumption of heat at the asset

ENERGY EFFICIENCY ACTIONS

Data guality and granularity is a key focus in prontising
asset-level energy efficiency and sustainabiiity measures.
Throughout 2022, asset performance was monitored through

a ‘data guardian' process. Get Living uses SIERA to collect and
validate energy and GHG emission data (as well as water and
waste) for all assets where the portfolio has operational control.
A quarterly dashboard enables data trends to be wvisualised,
allowing for improved engagement with property management
teams to understand and act upon consumption trends. Data
qguality has been improved through this process, for example
ensurmy Lhat distret heating at East Village can be included i
this year's report, having been exciuded fast year

The vatue of this process will continue to improve as data qualty
and granularity improves, aided by a smart meter pilot process
has been implemented for automated data collection at the
individual unit-lavel, with a view to rolling this out on a wider
basis in future reporting years. This automation should aiso
read to improved access to tenant data Additionally, Get
_iving has established energy reguction targets across all

the assets. The quarterly momtoring of data will better allow
progress against these targets to be monitored.

Further to this, Get Living has carried out training for all Estate and
Property Managers on ESG topics, including monitoring of erergy
usage, reporting of energy data and improvement cpportunities
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FURTHER INFORMATION

Company information

Directors Registered office
Mabel Tan 6th Floor Lansdowne House
James Alexandler Boadle Berkeley Square
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